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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA MORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603.271-9544 1-800-852.3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-271.4332 TOD Access: 1.800.735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

December 2. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend the existing contract with the vendor listed in bold below by adding additional financial
reporting and employment verification requirements, with no change to the price limitation of
$18,709,274 and no change to the contract completion dates of June 30, 2022, effective upon
Governor and Council approval.

below.

The Individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified In the table

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C Approval

Connections

Peer Support
Center

#157070

-B001
Portsmouth $2,069,950 $0 $2,069,950

0:06/29/16 #23
A1; 06/20/18

#338

A2: 06/19/19 #28

A3: 06/24/20 #27
A4: 12/02/20 #14

H.E.A.RT.S

Peer Support
Center

Region IV

#209287

•B001
Nashua

$2,913,757
$0 $2,913,757

0:06/29/16 #23
A1: 06/20/18
#338

A2: 06/19/19 #28

A3: 06/24/20 #27
A4: 12/02/20 #14

Lakes Region
Consumer

Advisory
Board

#157060

-8001
Laconia $2,036,620 $0 $2,036,620

0:06/29/16 #23
A1:06/20/18
#338

A2: 06/19/19 #28
A3: 06/24/20 #27
A4: 12/02/20

#TBD

Monadnock

Area Peer

Support
Agency

#157973

-8001
t  Keene

$2,223,907 so $2,223,907

0:06/29/16 #23
A1: 06/20/18
#338

A2:06/19/19 #28
A3: 06/24/20 #27

A4: 12/02/20 #14

»  • I 1

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cilieens to achieve health and independence.
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On the Road

to Recovery.
Inc.

#158839

-8001
Manchester

$3,166,471
SO $3,166,471

0:06/29/16 #23
A1: 06/20/18

#338

A2: 06/19/19 #28

A3: 06/24/20 #27

A4: 12/02/20 #14

The

Alternative

Life Center

#168081

•B001
Conway $2,863,522 $0 $2,863,522

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/21/17 #38

A2: 06/20/2018

#33B

A3: 06/19/19 #28

A4: 06/24/20 #27

The Stepping
Stone Orop-ln

Center

Association

#157697

-8001
Claremont $2,296,642 $0 $2,296,642

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18

#338

A2: 06/19/2018

#28

A3: 06/24/20 #27

A4: 12/02/20

#T8D

Tri-City .
Consumers'

Action Co

operative

#157797

-8001
Rochester $1,138,405 $0 $1,138,405

0:06/29/16 #23
A1: 06/20/18

#338

A2: 06/19/19 #28

A3: 06/24/20 #27

A4: 12/02/20

#TBD

Total: $18,709,274 $0 $18,709,274

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend the contract in bold with the Alternative Life
Center to add additional provisions to the existing contract relative to; (1) ensuring proper fiscal
oversight by requiring the Contractor to submit monthly reports to the Department detailing the
organization's current liabilities, assets, timeliness in paying invoices, revenues, and expenses;
and (2) adding employment requirements that require reference, criminal records, motor vehicle,
and Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services state registry checks.

The Contractor will continue to provide peer support services for adults who are 18 years
of age and older who self-identify as a recipient, a former recipient, or are at significant risk of
becoming a recipient of mental health services. Services are designed to enhance personal
wellness. Independence, and recovery by increasing personal awareness, and symptom
management of mental illness. Peer support services include supportive interactions and shared
experiences using an Intentional Peer Support model that fosters recovery from mental illness
and self-advocacy skills through personal connection and building relationships.

Peer support agencies provide individuals with a comprehensive array of in-house and
community based discussion groups, practice groups, educational events, social outings,
community outreach, and community support. Peer support agencies provide Intentional Peer
Support sen/ices through face-to face meetings and telephone calls. Telephone-based peer
support services, known as Warmline Services, are available statewide to assist individuals who
may experience mental health crises outside of regular business hours.
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The Department will monitor contracted services though use of programmatic audits,
reviews and ongoing financial audits including but not limited to:

• Monthly financial ratios, expenses, and status;

• Outreach activities;

•  Educational events;

•  Program evaluations and surveys;

•  Service deliverable expectations;

•  Numbers served, number of current members, and program utilizations tools; and

•  Ongoing steps to increase membership.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1. Revisions to General Provision, Section 3. of the original
contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval. The Department is not exercising its option to renew at this time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, improved fiscal
oversight to ensure financial sustainability of the org and background checks to increase safety
protocols for those served will not occur.

Area served: Mental Health Region i

Source of Funds: General Funds

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Peer Support Services Contract

This 5'^ Amendment to the Peer Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #5") is
by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Alternative Life Center, (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 6 Main Street, Conway, NH 03818.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2016, (Item #23), as amended on June 21, 2017, (Item #38), June 20, 2018, (Item #33B),,June
19, 2019, (Item #28), and on June 24, 2020, (Item #27), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation and modify the scope of services to support
continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Delete Exhibit A - Amendment #3, Scope of Services, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A -
Amendment #5, Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2. Delete Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in Its entirety
and replace with Exhibit B - Amendment #5, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

The Alternative Life Center Amendment #5 Contractor Initials

RFP-2017.BBH.02-PEERS-06-A05 Page 1 of 3 Date^i^l^i^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/12/2020

Date

C—DeeuSlgnvd by:
fc*

-poQDosenjcfm^?

Name: Katja Fox

Director

11/5/2020

Date

The Altemative Life Center

Ooeu$ign*d by:

.ivi»*PFHHnr.fus<>

Name; uaura Mekinova

Title:
Executive Director

The Alternative Life Center

RFP-2017.BBH-02-PEERS-06-A05

Amendment #5

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OoeuSl^d by:

11/17/2020

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Alternative Life Center Amendment #5

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS^A05 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance sen/ices
they shall provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
(NH) General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide peer support services in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule He-M 400, Community Mental Health, Part 02, Peer Support,
referred to as He-M 402, that:

1.3.1. Increase quality of life for individuals living with mental illness in NH.

1.3.2. Increase hope for and belief in the possibility of recovery for individuals living
with mental illness in NH.

1.3.3. Increase choice regarding the services and supports available to individuals
living with mental illness in NH.

1.3.4. Provide alternatives to and reduce the use of more restrictive and expensive
sen/ices such as hospitalization.

1.3.5. Increase social connectedness for individuals living with mental illness in NH.
I

1.3.6. Increase satisfaction with peer support services.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide mental health peer support services to individuals who are
eighteen (18) years of age or older who:

1.4.1. Self-identify as a recipient, as a former recipient, or at a significant risk of
becoming a recipient of mental health services, and mayinclude individuals
who are homeless.

1.5. For the purposes of this contract, any reference to days shall mean consecutive calendar
days, unless othenvise denoted as business days.

1.6. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage, ordisposition of Part 2 substance use disorder (SLID) information
or records created by a Part 2 provider the information or records shall be subject to all
safeguards of 42 CFR Part 2.

2. Definitions

2.1. Board of Directors means the governing body of a nongovernmental peer support
agency.

2.2. Business Days are defined as Monday through Friday, excluding Saturday and
Sunday.

2.3. Consumers are any individual, eighteen (18) years of age or older, who self-identifies
as a recipient, as a former recipient, or as a significant risk of becoming a recipient of

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initiais
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

publlcally funded mental health services.

2.4. Guests are any Individuals who are invited to visit the peer support agency by a
member, participant, or the peer support agency.

2.5. Homeless is (1) an individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate
nighttime residence; or (2) an Individual or family who has a primary nighttime residence
that is a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to provide temporary
living accommodations (including welfare hotels and congregate shelters), an institution
other than a penal facility that provides temporary residence for individuals Intended to
be institutionalized, or a public or private place not designed for, or ordinarily used as, a
regular sleeping accommodation for human beings.

2.6. Members are any consumers, who have made an informed decision to join, and agree
to, abide by, and support the goals and objectives of peer support services.

.2.7. Mental illness is defined in RSA 135-C:2 X; namely, "a substantial impairment of
emotional processes, or of the ability to exercise conscious control of one's actions, or
of the ability to perceive reality or to reason^ when the impairment is manifested by
instances of extremely abnormal behavior or extremely faulty perceptions. It does not
include impairment primarily caused by: (a) epilepsy; (b) intellectual disability; (c)
continuous or noncontinuous periods of intoxication caused by substances such as
alcohol or drugs; or (d) dependence upon or addiction to any substance such as alcohol
or drugs."

2.8. Participant means a consumer, who is not member, who participates in any aspect of
peer support services.

2.9. Peer Support Agency (PSA) means an organization whose primary purpose is to
provide culturally appropriate peer support, peer education, and peer programming to
persons eighteen (18) year of age and older who self- identify as having a mental Illness.

2.10. Quarter or Quarterly is defined as the periods of July 1 through September 30, October
1 through December 31, January 1 through March 31, and April 1 through June 30.

2.11. Recovery means for an individual with a mental illness, development of perspnal and
social skills, beliefs and characters that support choice, increase quality of life, minimize
or eliminate impairment, and decrease dependence on professional services.

2.12. Region is the geographic area of cities and towns in New Hampshire, as defined by the
Department.

2.13. Serious Mental Illness (SMI) refers to individuals whom the state defines as having
either Serious Mental Illness (SMI) or Serious and Persistent Mental Illness (SPMI)
pursuant to N.H. Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C:2, XV.

2.14. Week is defined as Monday through Sunday.
k

3. Scope of Services

3.1. Peer Support Services

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide in-house and community based services for New
Hampshire residents.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall provide peer support services that are provid^fer
The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A ♦ Amendment #5 Contractor Initials J
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

consumers and by consumers including, but not iimited to:

3.1.2.1. Peer support services that include supportive interactions,
shared experiences, acceptance, trust, respect, lived
experience, and mutual support among members, participants,
staff and volunteers.

3.1.2.2. Maintenance of a safe physical location that:

3.1.2.2.1. is open a minimum of forty-four (44) hours per week,
eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per week and
four (4) hours on one (1) additional day per week at
each location; and

3.1.2.2.2. Provides face-to-face or telephone peer support
services to PSA members or others who contact the

PSA at a minimum of forty (40) hours per week at
each location.

3.1.2.3. Peer support services based on the Intentional Peer Support
model that:

3.1.2.3.1. Foster recovery from mental illness by helping
individuals identify and achieve personal goals while
building an evolving vision of their recovery.

3.1.2.3.2. Foster self-advocacy skills, autonomy, and
independence.

3.1.2.3.3. Emphasize mutuality and reciprocity as
demonstrated by shared decision-making; strong
conflict resolution; non-medical approaches; and
non-static roles, including but not limited to, staff who
are members and members who are educators.

3.1.2.3.4. Offer altemative views on mental health, mental
illness and the effects of trauma and abuse.

3.1.2.3.5. Encourage informed decision-making about all
aspects of people's lives.

3.1.2.3.6. Support people with mental illness in challenging
perceived self-limitations, while encouraging the
development of beliefs that enhance personal and
relational growth.

3.1.2.3.7. Emphasize a holistic approach to health that
includes a vision of the whole person.

3.1.2.4. Providing opportunities to learn wellness strategies by using, at a minimum,
Wellness Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) and Whole Health Action
Management (WHAM), to strengthen individual abilities to attain and
maintain their health and recovery from mental illness.

3.1.2.5. Provide In-house and community-based services according to the
OS

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

Deliverables in Subsection 12.1. through Subsection 12.2.

3.1.2.6. Provide outreach by face-to-face or by telephone contact with consumers
by providing support to individuals who are unable to attend agency
activities, visiting people who are hospitalized with a psychiatric condition,
and reaching out to people who meet membership criteria and are
homeless.

3.1.2.7. Provide monthly newsletters published by the peer support agency (PSA)
that describes agency services and activities: other community services;
social and recreational opportunities; member articles and contributions
and other relevant topics that might be of interest to members and
participants.

3.1.2.8. Distribute the newsletters to the members and other interested parties,
which may include but are not limited to community mental health centers
and other appropriate community organizations, at least five (5) business
days prior to the upcoming month.

3.1.2.9. Provide monthly education events and presentations topics germane to
issues and concems of consumers of mental health services which must

include, but are not limited to:

3.1.2.9.1. Rights Protection.

3.1.2.9.2. Peer Advocacy.

3.1.2.9.3. Recovery.

3.1.2.9.4. Employment.

3.1.2.9.5. Wellness Management.

3.1.2.9.6. Community Resources.

3.1.2.10. Provide an electronic copy of the monthly newsletters and education events
in Subparagraph 3.1.2.7. and Paragraph 11.6.3., to the Office of Consumer
and Family Affairs within the Department's Bureau of Behavioral Health,
and the Mental Health Block Grant State Planner and Mental Health Block

Grant Advisory Council no later than five (5) days prior to the beginning of
the following month.

3.1.2.11. Provide individual peer assistance by assisting adults to:

3.1.2.11.1. Locate, obtain, and maintain mental health services and
supports thr.pugh referral, consumer education, and self-
empowerment;

,3.1.2.11.2. Support individuals who are identifying problems by
assisting them in addressing the issue and/or in resolving
grievances; and

3.1.2.11.3. Promote self-advocacy.

3.1.2.12. Provide employment education by providing members with:

3.1.2.12.1. Information relative to obtaining and maint^yiig

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5
competitive employment.

3.1.2.12.2. Referrals to community mental health center employment
programs.

3.1.2.12.3. Employment-related activities, which may include, but are
not limited to:

3.1.2.12.3.1. Resume writing.

3.1.2.12.3.2. Interviewing techniques.

3.1.2.12.3.3. Assistance with completing employment
applications..

3.1.2.13. Inform members and the general public about peer support and wellness
services available by providing Community Education Presentations about
mental illness and the peer support community on a monthly basis to
potential referral sources, funders, or families of individuals affected by
mental illness.

3.1.2.14. Inform local human service providers and the general public about the
stigma of mental illness, wellness and recovery and collaborate with other
local human service providers that serve consumers in order to facilitate
referrals and share information about services and other local resources.

3.1.2.15. Provide training and technical assistance to assist consumers to advocate
for themselves and on their own behalf regarding healthcare such as, but
not limited to:

3.1.2.15.1. Preparation techniques for doctors' appointments.

3.1.2.15.2. How to take notes.

3.1.2.15.3. How to use the physician's desk reference book for
medications and a review of patient rights.

3.1.2.16. Invite guests to participate in peer support activities.

3.1.2.17. Provide residential support services, as needed, by providing support and
assistance such as help with staying in their home or apartment, or finding
a place to live.

3.1.2.18. Maintain at least a monthly schedule of peer support and wellness services
and activities, which includes, but is not limited to:

3.1.2.18.1. Staff development and training.

3.1.2.18.2. Events that include community-based services.

3.1.2.18.3. Community outreach events.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide transportation services to members, participants and
guests, as needed. The Contractor shall:

3.2.1. Transport members, participants, guests, in a Contractor owned or leased
vehicle, to and from their homes and/or the Contractor's PSA to participate in
activities that may include, but not limited to: os

The Alternalive Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

3.2.1.1. Peer support services.

3.2.1.2. Wellness and recovery activities.

3.2.1.3. Annual conferences.

3.2.1.4. Regional meetings.

3.2.1.5. Council meetings.

3.2.2. Ensure all vehicles and drivers used for transportation comply with Federal and
State Department of Transportation and Department of Safety regulations, which
include, but are not limited to;

3.2.2.1. Vehicles must be registered pursuant to NH Administrative Rule Saf-
C 500, Vehicle Registration Rules.

3.2.2.2. Vehicles must be inspected in accordance with NH Administrative
Rule Saf-C 3200, Official Motor Vehicle Inspection Requirements.

3.2.2.3. Drivers must be licensed in accordance with NH Administrative Rule

Saf-C 1000, Driver Licensing.

3.2.3. Require all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor-owned
vehicles sign a State of New Hampshire Release of Individual Motor Vehicle
Driver Records form in order to access individual driver records that indicate

drivers have safe driving records.

3.2.4. Require all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor-owned
vehicles complete a National Safety Council Defensive Driving course offered
through a State of New Hampshire-approved agency.

3.3. The Contractor shall acknowledge funding from the Department to support
transportation costs:

3.3.1. Is not used for activities other than peer support related activities defined in this
Agreement.

3.3.2. May be used on an 'as needed' basis to pay for bus rides that are necessary to
transport individuals to peer support services provided by the Contractor.

3.4. Warmline Services

3.4.1. The Contractor shall provide warmline services that offer on-call telephone peer
support services to members, participants, and others. The Contractor shall
ensure warmline services:

3.4.1.1. Are provided to any individual with the ability to receive calls and
make calls statewide and who lives or works in the State of New

Hampshire.

3.4.1.2. Are provided during the hours the PSA is closed.

3.4.1.3. Assist individuals with addressing a current crisis related to their
mental health.

3.4.1.4. Include referrals to appropriate treatment and other resources
available in the consumer's service area.

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5

3.4.1.5. Are provided by staff who are trained in providing warmline services.

3.4.1.6. May include outreach calls described in Subparagraph 3.1.2.6.

4. Geographic Area and Physical Location of Services

4.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support services separately from the confines of a
local community mental health center, unless otherwise pre-approved by the
Department.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide peer support services at a physical location and/or building
that is in compliance with Exhibit C, Section 15. and with the Life Safety requirements,
which include, but are not limited to, ensuring the building;

4.2.1. Is in compliance with local health, building and fire safety codes.

4.2.2. Is maintained in good repair and free of hazards, and includes, but is not limited
to:

4.2.2.1. A minimum of one (1) indoor bathroom that includes a sink and toilet.

4.2.2.2. A minimum of one (1) telephone for incoming and outgoing calls.

4.2.2.3. A functioning septic or other sewage disposal system.

4.2.2.4. A source of potable water for drinking and food preparation as
follows:

4.2.2.4.1. If drinking water is supplied by a non-public water
system, the Contractor shall ensure the water is tested
and found to be in accordance with NH Administrative

Rules Env-Ws 300, Drinking Water Rules, Part 15,
Maximum Contaminant Levels and Maximum

Contaminant Level Goal for Regulated Organics and
Part 316, Regulated Secondary Maximum
Contaminant Levels initially and every five (5) years
thereafter.

4.2.2.4.2. If the water is not approved for drinking, the Contractor
shall implement an alternative method for providing
safe drinking water.

5. Enrolling Consumers for Services and/or as Members with a Peer Support Agency (PSA)

5.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support services to individuals defined in Subsection
1.4. who have a desire to work on wellness issues, and who have a desire to participate
in services.

5.2. The Contractor shall request consumers complete a membership application to join and
support the activities and mission of the PSA.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure the membership application includes, but is not limited to:

5.3.1. The minimum engagement policy.

5.3.2. Suspension of membership policy.

5.3.3. Membership rules.

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A - Amendment #5 Contractor Initiak
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #5
5.3.4. Attestation that the consumer supports the mission of the PSA.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide services to both members and non-members.

6. Staffing Requirements for a PSA

6.1. The Contractors shall employ an Executive Director who:

6.1.1. Is appointed by the Board of Directors.

6.1.2. Is employed by the Contractor and is supervised by the Board of Directors.

6.1.3. Has, at a minimum, the following qualification:

6.1.3.1. One (1) year of supervisory or management experience; and

6.1.3.1.1. An associate's degree or higher administration, business
management, education, health, or human services; or

6.1.3.1.2. Additional years pf experience in the peer support field
that can be substituted for one (1) year of academic
experience.

6.1.4. Is evaluated annually by the Board of Directors to ensure peer support and
wellness services and activities are provided in accordance with:

6.1.4.1. The performance expectations approved by the Board.

6.1.4.2. The Department's policies and rules.

6.1.4.3. The Contract terms and conditions.

6.1.4.4. The Quality improvement reviews.

6.2. The Contractor shall screen each staff member for tuberculosis prior to employment.

6.3. The Contractor shall not add, delete, defund, ortransfer staff positions among programs
without prior written permission from the Department.

6.4. The Contractor shall develop a Staffing Contingency Plan for Department approval no
later than thirty (30) days from the contract effective date, which includes but is not
limited to:

6.4.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key personnel
or other personnel during the period of this Agreement.

6.4.2. The description of how additional staff resources shall be allocated to support
this Agreement in the event of inability to meet any performance standard.

'  6.4.3. The description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff replacements.

6.4.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide. In a timely manner,
staff replacements/additions with comparable experience.

6.5. The Contractor shall submit an emergency staffing plan within thirty (30) days of the
contract effective date if the contract that includes, but not limited to:

6.5.1. Inclement weather notifications for programming and transportation services.

6.5.2. Emergency evacuation plans for the Agency.
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6.6. Prior to making an offer of empioyment or for voiunteer work, the Contractor shall, after

obtaining signed and notarized authorization from the person or persons for whom
information is being sought;

6.6.1. Obtain at least two (2) references for the person;

6.6.2. Submit the person's name for review against the bureau of elderly and adult
services (BEAS) state registry maintained pursuant to RSA 161-F:49;

6.6.3. Complete a criminal records check to ensure that the person has no history of:

6.6.3.1. Felony conviction; or

6.6.3.2. Any misdemeanor conviction involving:

6.6.3.2.1. Physical or sexual assault;

6.6.3.2.2. Violence;

6.6.3.2.3. Exploitation:

6.6.3.2.4. Child pornography;

6.6.3.2.5. Threatening or reckless conduct;

6.6.3.2.6. Theft;

6.6.3.2.7. Driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol; or

6.6.3.2.8. Ariy other conduct that represents evidence of behavior
that could endanger the well-being of a consumer; and

6.6.4. Complete a motor vehicles record check to ensure that the person has a valid
driver's license if the person will be transporting consumers.

6.7. Unless the Contractor requests and obtains a waiver from the Department, it shall not
hire any individual or approve any individual to act as a volunteer if:

6.7.1. The individual's name is on the BEAS state registry;

6.7.2. The individual has a record of a felony conviction; or

6.7.3. The individual has a record of any misdemeanors specified in Subparagraph
6.6.3.2.

7. Staff Training and Development

7.1. The Contractor shall verify and document all staff and volunteers have appropriate
training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the responsibilities of their
respective positions. The Contractor shall ensure:

7.1.1. All personnel and training records are current and available to the Department,
as requested.

7.1.2. All staff training shall be in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative Rule
He-M 400, Community Mental Health, Part 402, Peer Support, Section 402.05,
Staff Training. Staff Development and Orientation.

7.2. The Contractor shall maintain documentation in files of the staffs completed trainings
and certifications.

DS
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7.3. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval thirty (30) days prior to the training

date, for all trainings provided by the Contractor or to attend trainings other than offered
by the Contractor for staff at least on an annual basis such as, but not limited to:

7.3.1. Peer Support.

7.3.2. Warmline.

7.3.3. Facilitating Peer Support Groups.

7.3.4. Sexual Harassment.

7.3.5. Member Rights.

7.4. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support training and its required
consultations to meet state certification.

7.5. The Contractor shall provide Wellness, Recovery, and Planning training to staff during
the years in which Intentional Peer Support is not provided.

7.6. The Contractor shall ensure administrative staff, including the Executive Director,
participate in trainings on:

7.6.1. Staff Development.

7.6.2. Supervision.

7.6.3. Performance Appraisals.

7.6.4. Employment Practices.

7.6.5. Harassment.

7.6.6. Program Development.

7.6.7. Complaints and the Complaint Process.

7.6.8. Financial Management.

7.7. The Contractor shall ensure that annual Wellness Training is available to staff and
members, and may be provided to other mental health consumers who do not identify
themselves as members of a PSA in the region. ,

7.8. The Contractor shall obtain prior approval by the Department no later than thirty (30)
days prior to the training, to provide or refer staff to specific training proposed by either
the Department or the Contractor.

7.9. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Support Agencies to offer combined
trainings to facilitate efficient use of training funds and to increase the scope of trainings
offered.

7.10. The Contractor shall purge all data in accordance with the instructions from the
Department pertaining to members, participants, and guests who have not received
peer support services within the prior two (2) year period.

8. Composition and Responsibilities of a PSA

8.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain a status as a PSA by:

8.1.1. Being incorporated with the Secretary of State's Office as a non-for-prgjit
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agency.

8.1.2. Having a plan for governance that requires a Board of Directors who:

6.1.2.1. Are responsible for the management and control of the property and
affairs of the corporation.

8.1.2.2. Have the powers usually vested in the Board of Directors of a non-
for-profit corporation.

8.1.2.3. Are comprised of a minimum of nine (9) individuals with at least 51%
of the individuals who self-identify as consumers.

8.1.2.4. Have membership where less than 20% of the Board members are
related by blood, marriage, or cohabitation to other Board members.

8.1.2.5. Establish and maintain the bylaws that include, but are not limited to:

8.1.2.5.1. Responsibilities and powers of the Board of Directors.

8.1.2.5.2. Term limits for the Board of Directors officers ensuring
not more than 20% of the Board members serve for

more than six (6) consecutive years.

8.1.2.5.3. A nominating process that actively recruits diverse
individuals whose skills and life experiences serve the
needs of the agency.

8.1.2.5.4. A procedure by which inactive PSA members are
removed from the PSA Board.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit a corrective action plan to the Department within five (5)
days when the Board of Directors membership falls below the required minimum of nine
(9) members.

8.3. The Contractor shall submit an updated list of current Board of Directors members and
a corrective action plan with timeframes to comply with the required number of
members when membership falls below the minimum required number of five (5)
members to the Department and NH Department of Justice, Division of Charitable
Trusts.

8.4. The Contractor shall have a documented Orientation Process and Manual for the

members and officers of the Board of Directors, which includes written descriptions
outlining the duties of the members and officers of the Board of Directors.

8.5. The Contractor shall have annual trainings related to the members and officers of the
Board of Directors roles and responsibilities, including fiduciary responsibilities.

8.6. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall have fiduciary responsibility for the agency
including approval of agency financial policies and procedures that includes, but not be
limited to, the following:

8.6.1. Cash Management including, but not limited to:

8.6.1.1. Cash receipts.

8.6.1.2. Cash disbursements.
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8.6.1.3. Petty cash.

8.6.2. Accounts Payable/Receivable Procedures, payroll, and fixed assets.

8.6.3. Internal Control Procedures.

8.6.4. Expense Reimbursement and Advance Policy.

8.7. The Contractor shall have open attendance to PSA members during a portion of a
Board meeting.

8.8. The Contractor shall publish the times and locations of Board of Directors meetings In
an effort to encourage PSA member attendance.

8.9. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall maintain written records that are available to

the Department upon request, which include, but are not limited to;

8.9.1. Board of Directors meeting minutes that include, but are not limited to:

8.9.1.1. Topics discussed.

8.9.1.2. Votes and actions taken.

8.9.1.3. A monthly review of the agency's financial status.

8.9.2. Current Board of Directors list that includes, but is not limited to:

8.9.2.1. Member name.

8.9.2.2. Member address.

8.9.2.3. Member phone number.

8.9.2.4. Member e-mail address.

8.9.2.5. Board office held.

8.9.2.6. Date joined the Board.

8.9.2.7. Member Board expiration date.

8.9.3. Documentation of the process and results of annual Board of Directors
elections.

8.9.4. Policy manuals that Include, but are not limited to policies for:

8.9.4.1. Human Resources.

8.9.4.2. Staff Development.

8.9.4.3. Financial Responsibilities.

8.9.4.4. Protection for member and participant rights.

8.10. The Contractor shall pursue other sources of revenue to support additional peer support
services and/or supplement other related activities that the Department may not pay for
under this Agreement.

9. Participation in Statewide/Regional Meetings

9.1. The Contractor shall support the recruitment and training of individuals for serving on
local, regional and state mental health policy, planning and advisory initiatives.
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9.2. The Contractor shall ensure the participation of individuals other than the Contractor's
employees who provide leadership development meetings, workshops, and training
events.

9.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Executive Director, or designee, attends the
Department's monthly Peer Support Directors meeting for the purpose exchanging
information as well as supporting and strengthening the statewide Peer Support
system.

9.4. The Contractor shall meet, a minimum of two (2) times per year, with other regional
community support organizations that serve the same populations, which may include,
but are not limited to:

9.4.1. Mental health centers.

9.4.2. Area homeless shelters.

9.4.3. Community action programs.

9.4.4. Housing agencies. ^
9.5. The Contractor shall submit documentation to the Department that demonstrates

attendance at the meetings in Section 9.

10. Grievance and Appeals

10.1. The Contractor shall submit a grievance and appeals process to the Department for
approval. The Contractor shall ensure the grievance and appeals process includes,
but is not limited to:

10.1.1. How to receive complaints orally, or in writing, ensuring information collected
includes, but is not limited to:

10.1.1.1. Consumer name.

10.1.1.2. Date of written grievance.

10.1.1.3. Nature and subject of the grievance.

10.1.1.4. A method to submit an anonymous complaint.

10.1.2. A policy relative to assisting consumers with the grievance and appeal process
including, but not limited to, how to file a complaint.

10.1.3. A method to track complaints.

10.1.4. Investigating allegations that a member's or participant's , rights have been
violated by agency staff, volunteers or consultants.

10.1.5. An immediate review of the complaint and investigation by the Contractor's
director or his or her designee.

10.1.6. A process to attempt to resolve every grievance for which a formal investigation
is requested.

10.1.7. An appeal process for members or participants to appeal any written decision
rendered by the Board of Directors.

10.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Board of Directors issues a written decision to tf^e
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member or participant filing a grievance upon completing an investigation and within
twenty (20) business days setting forth the disposition of the grievance.

10.3. The Contractor shall submit a copy of the written decision In Subsection 10.2. of the
complaint to the Department within ten (10) days from the written decision.

11. Reporting Requirements

11.1. The Contractor shall submit a report that lists the names of the trained individuals in
accordance with Section 7. Staff Training and Development, utilizing reporting forms
provided by the Department.

11.2. The Contractor shall provide the prior month's interim Balance Sheet;* and Profit and
Loss Statements to the Department no later than the 30'^^ of the month, ensuring the
report includes, but is not limited to:

11.2.1. The Current Ratio that measures the Contractor's total current assets available

to cover the cost of current liabilities. The Contractor shall;

11.2.1.1. Utilize the following formula: Total current assets divided by total
current liabilities.

11.2.1.2. Maintain a minimumcurrent ratio of 1.1:1.0 with no variance allowed.

11.2.2. Accounts Payable that measure the Contractor's timeliness in paying invoices,
ensuring no outstanding invoices greater than sixty (60) days.

11.2.3. Budget Management that compares budgets to actual revenues and expenses
to determine the percentage of the Contractors budget executed year-to-date.

11.2.4. Ensure revenues are equal to or greater than the year-to-date calculation while
ensuring expenses are equal to or less than the year-to-date calculation.

11.3. The Contractor shall prepare an Annual Report presentation for the benefit of the
Mental Health Block Grant Advisory Council.

11.4. The Contractor shall submit a quarterly written report to the Department, on a form
supplied by the Department, no later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the month following
the end of each quarter that includes, but is not limited to:

11.4.1. Community outreach activities as outlined in Section 12. Deliverables.

11.4.2. Compilation of program evaluation and surveys submitted in the past quarter.

11.4.3. Peer support service deliverables as identified on templates provided by the
Department.

11.4.4. Statistical data including, but not limited to:

11.4.4.1. The total number of unduplicated participants served on a daily
basis.

11.4.4.2. The total number of current members, defined as only those
members who have been served within the past year.

11.4.4.3. Program utilization totals by percentage.

11.4.4.4. Number of telephone peer support contacts.
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11.4.4.5. Number and description of outreach activities.

11.4.4.6. Number and description of educationai events provided;

11.4.4.6.1. On-site; and

11.4.4.6.2. in the community.

1 i.4.5. Board of Directors meeting minutes for the previous quarter that include, but are
not be iimited to:

11.4.5.1. Executive Director's report.

11.4.5.2. Board of Directors roster.

11.5. The Contractor shali provide a report for Department approval by July 31 of each State
Fiscal Year, which outlines:

11.5.1. Specific steps the Contractor has taken to increase membership in the previous
State Fiscal Year.

11.5.2. A plan for how the Contractor shall increase the undupiicated numbers served
In the above activities by ten (10) percent of the total served in the previous
year, for each subsequent State Fiscal Year.

11.5.3. Monthly in-house schedules and newsletters.

11.5.4. Quarterly revenue and expenses by cost, category and locations.

11.5.5. Quarterly Capital Expenditure Reports.

11.5.6. Quarterly Auditor's Reports: The prior three (3) months of monthly interim
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements including separate statements
for related parties that are certified by an officer of the reporting entity to
measure the agency's fiscal integrity.

12. Deliverables

12.1. The Contractor shali provide a minimum of fifteen (15) hours of in-house services at
each Center each week, of which five (5) hours may be' conducted in the Center's
community or region, as approved by the Department. The Contractor shall provide
services that include, but are not limited to:

12.1.1. New topics introduced every month.

12.1.2. A minimum of five (5) separate discussion groups per week that address
emotional wellbeing topics, which may include, but are not Iimited to:

12.1.2.1. IPS.

12.1.2.2. WRAP.

12.1.2.3. WHAM.

12.1.2.4. Setting boundaries.

12.1.2.5. Positive thinking.

12.1.2.6. Wellness.
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12.1.2.7. Stress management.

12.1.2.8. Addressing trauma.

12.1.2.9. Reduction of negative or intrusive thoughts.

12.1.2.10. Management of emotional states including, but not limited to:

12.1.2.10.1.Anger.

12.1.2.10.2. Depression.

12.1.2.10.3.Anxiety.

.  12.1.2.10.4.Mania

12.1.3. A minimum of five (5) discussion or practice groups per week that address
physical wellbeing topics which may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.3.1. Smoking cessation.

12.1.3.2. Weight loss.

12.1.3.3. Nutrition and Cooking.

12.1.3.4.. Physical exercise.

12.1.3.5. Mindfulness activities including, but not limited to:

12.1.3.5.1. Yoga.

12.1.3.5.2. Meditation.

12.1.3.5.3. Journaling.

12.1.4. A minimum of four (4) activity groups per week that that provide positive skill-
building activities which may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.4.1. Arts and crafts.

12.1.4.2. Music expression.

12.1.4.3. Creative writing.

12.1.4.4. Cooking.

12.1.4.5. Sewing.

12.1.4.6. Gardening.

12.1.4.7. Movies.

12.1.5. A minimum of one (1) group per week based on topics relevant to fostering
independence which may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.5.1. Online blogs or articles that relate to mental health.

12.1.5.2. Obtaining employment.

12.1.5.3. Budgeting.

12.1.5.4. Decision-making.

12.1.5.5. Self-advocacy.
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12.2. The Contractor shall provide community-based services including, but not limited to a
minimum of one (1) trip into the community per month for activities that may include,
but are not limited to;

12.2.1. Visiting a natural setting.

12.2.2. Volunteering opportunities.

12.2.3. Visiting a museum.

12.2.4. Visiting a local historical site.

12.2.5. Visiting local farms or gardens. .

12.3. The Contractor shall provide community outreach that includes, but is not limited to:

12.3.1. Providing monthly community education presentations about mental illness and
the peer support community to potential referral sources, funders, or families of
individuals affected by mental Illness, including, but not limited to:

12.3.1.1. Local psychiatric hospitals.

12.3.1.2. Local mental health clinics.

12.3.1.3. Local community events.

12.3.2. Providing monthly educational events and presentations to members,
participants, or other individuals seeking support and information relating to the
issues and concerns of consumers of mental health services which includes, but
is not limited to educational topics to be covered over the course of the year,
which may include, but are not limited to:

12.3.2.1. Rights protection.

12.3.2.2. Peer Advocacy.

12.3.2.3. Recovery.

12.3.2.4. Employment.

12.3.2.5. Wellness Management.

12.3.2.6. Community Resources.

13. Quality Improvement

13.1. The Contractor shall participate in quality program reviews and site visits on a schedule
provided by the Department. All contract deliverables, programs, and activities shall be
subject to review during this time. These reviews shall result in a report and potential
corrective action.

13.2. The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance reviews as follows:

13.2.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract
compliance requirements as identified in 0MB Circular A-133.

13.2.2. Ensure the Department is provided with access that shall include, but is not
limited to:

13.2.2.1. Data.
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13.2.2.2. Financial records.

13.2.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor work sites, locations, and work
spaces and associated facilities.

13.2.2.4. Unannounced.access to Contractor work sites, locations, and work

spaces and associated facilities.

13.2.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals and staff.

13.3. The Contractor shall perform monitoring and comprehensive quality and assurance
activities Including, but not limited to;

13.3.1. Participating in bi-annual quality improvement review as in Subsection 13.1.

13.3.2. Participating in ongoing monitoring and reporting based on the bi-annual review
.and corrective action plan submitted in conjunction with the Department and
Contractor.

13.3.3. Conducting member satisfaction surveys provided by and as instructed the
Department.

13.3.4. Reviewing personnel files for completeness.

13.3.5. Reviewing the complaint process.

13.4. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty (30)
days of notification of noncompliance with contract activities:

13.5. The Contractor shall provide all requested audits to the Department no later than ten
(10) days after receiving the request from the Department.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
of the General Provisions of this Agreement, Form P-37, for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by: .

2.1. 100% General Funds.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of
Services in compliance with funding requirements in Section 2., above.

4. The Contractor shall submit one (1) invoice to the Department upon Governor and Council
approval of this Agreement requesting an advance payment in an amount not to exceed
$35,696 for peer support services as described in Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of
Services. The Contractor shall ensure:

4.1. The invoice clearly states a request for the advance payment, to be provided at the start
of each State Fiscal Year (SFY). in the amount of $35,696, referenced in Exhibit A -
Amendment #4, Scope of Services.

4.2. The Invoice includes how funds will be utilized toward peer support services in
accordance with Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services, Exhibit 8-5 Amendment
#3 and Exhibit B;-6 Amendment #3.

4.3. The .Contractor shall submit monthly invoices for actual expenditures incurred in
accordance with Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services. Exhibit B-5 Amendment
#3 and Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3.

4.4. The Department shall recoup the advance payment back by deducting 1/3"* of the
advanced amount from the December 2020, January 2021. and February 2021 invoices,
unless otherwise agreed upon by the Department.

5. Subsequent to the action in Section 4., the Department shall make monthly payments to the
Contractor based upon cost reimbursement, as submitted by the Contractor to maintain
services and as approved by the Department, of the Department approved budget amounts
in Exhibit B-1 Budget Form through Exhibit B-6 Amendment #3 SFY 2022 Budget.

5.1. In no event shall the total of the Initial payment in Section 4. and monthly payments in
Section 5. exceed the budget amounts set forth in Section 5.

5.2. The Department will adjust monthly payments for expenditures set forth in Section 10.,
below and amounts paid to initiate services in Section 4., above.

6. Payment for services provided in Exhibit A - Amendment #4, Scope of Services shall be made
as follows:

6.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice on Department supplied forms, by the tenth (10th)
working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized
expenses incurred in the prior month.
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6.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor on actual expenditures, within thirty (30)
days of receipt of each Department-approved invoice for Contractor services provided
pursuant to this Agreement.

6.3. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager
Bureau of Mental Health

Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
105 Pleasant Street, Main Building
Concord. NH 03301

7. The Contractor shall provide its Revenue and Expense Budget on Budget Form A supplied
by the Department, within twenty (20) calendar days of the contract effective date and then
twenty (20) days from the beginning of each fiscal year thereafter.

8. The Contractor shall provide quarterly Revenue and Expense Reports on Budget Form A,
within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each fiscal quarter, defined as July 1 to
September 30, October 1 to December 31, January 1 to March 31, and April 1 to June 30.

9. The.Contractor shall provide supporting documentation, when required by the Department, to
support evidence of actual expenditures, in accordance with the Department approved,
budgets in Section 5.

10. Any expenditure that exceeds the approved budgets in Section 5. shall be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor.

11. When the contract price limitation is reached the program shall continue to operate at full
capacity at no charge to the Department for the duration of the contract period.

12. Funding may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from another
source.

13. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said sen/ices have
not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

14. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an
amendment limited to the budget amounts identified in Section 5., to adjust amounts within
the budgets, within the price limitation, can be made by written agreenient of both parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and Executive Council.

15. The Department reserves the right to recover any program funds not used, in whole or in part,
for the purposes stated in this Agreement from the Contractor within one hundred and twenty
(120) days of the Completion Date.

16. Contractor will have forty-five (45) days from the end of each State Fiscal Year to submit to
the Department final invoices fo.r payment. Any adjustments made to a prior invoice will need
to be accompanied by supporting documentation.

17. Property Standards

17.1. Insurance coverage.

The Allernative Life Center Exhibit B - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit B - Amendment #S

17.1.1. The Contractor shall, at a minimum, provide the equivalent insurance coverage
for real property and equipment acquired or improved with State funds as
provided to property owned by the Contractor.

17.2. Real property.

17.2.1. Subject to the obligations and conditions set forth in this section, title to real
property acquired or improved in whole or in part with State funds will vest upon
acquisition in the Contractor.

17.2.2. Except as othenA/ise provided by State statutes or in this Agreement, real
property will be used for the originally authorized purpose as long as needed for
that purpose, during which time the Contractor must not dispose of or encumber
its title or other interests without State approval.

17.2.3. When real property is no longer needed for the originally authorized purpose,
the Contractor must obtain disposition instructions from the State. The
Instructions must provide for one of the following alternatives:

17.2.3.1. Retain title after compensating the State. The amount paid to the
State will be computed by applying the State's percentage of
participation in the cost of the original purchase (and costs of any
improvements) to the fair market value of the property. However, in
those situations where the Contractor is disposing of real property
acquired or improved with State funds and acquiring replacement real
property prior to expiration of this Agreement and any amendment
thereof, the net proceeds from the disposition may be used as an
offset to the cost of the replacement property.

17.2.3.2. Sell the property and compensate the State. The amount due to the
State will be calculated by applying the State's percentage of
participation in the cost of the original purchase (and cost of any
improvements) to the proceeds of the sale after deduction of any
actual and reasonable selling and fixing-up expenses. If the State
appropriation funding this Agreement or any amendment thereof has
not been closed out, the net proceeds from sale may be offset against
the original cost of the property. When the Contractor is directed to
sell property, sales procedures must be followed that provide for
competition to the extent practicable and result in the highest possible
return.

17.2.3.3. Transfer title to a third party designated/approved by the State. The
Contractor is entitled to be paid an amount calculated by applying the
State's percentage of participation in the purchase of the real property
(and cost of any improvements) to the current fair market value of the
property.

17.3. Equipment.

17.3.1. Equipment means tangible personal property (including information technology
systems) purchased in whole or in partiwith State funds and that has a useful
life of more than one (1) year and a per-unit acquisition cost which or
exceeds $5,000. , '

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit B - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit B - Amendment #5

17.3.2. Subject to the obligations and conditions set forth in this section, title to
equipment acquired with State funds will vest upon acquisition in the Contractor
subject to the following conditions:

17.3.2.1. Use the equipment for the authorized purposes of the project during
the period of performance, or until the property is no longer needed
for the purposes of the project.

17.3.2.2. Not encumber the property without approval of the State.

17.3.2.3. Use and dispose of the property in accordance with Paragraph
18.2.2., Paragraph 18.2.1. and Paragraph 18.3.5.

17.3.3. Use.

17.3.3.1. Equipment must be used by the Contractor in the program or project
for which it was acquired as long as needed, whether or not the
project or program continues to be supported by State funds, and the
Contractor must not encumber the property without prior approval of
the State. When no longer needed for the original program or project,
the equipment may be used in other activities funded by the State.

17.3.3.2. During the time that equipment is used on the project or program for
which it was acquired, the Contractor must also make equipment
available for use on other projects or programs currently or previously
supported by the State, provided that such use will not interfere with
the work on the projects or program for which it was originally
acquired. First preference for other use must be given to other
programs or projects supported by the State that financed the
equipment. Use for non-State-funded programs or projects is also
permissible with approval from the State.

17.3.3.3. When acquiring replacement equipment, the Contractor may use the
equipment to be replaced as a trade-in or sell the property and use
the proceeds to offset the cost of the replacement property.

17.3.4. Management requirements. Procedures for managing equipment (including
replacement equipment), whether acquired in whole or in part with State funding,
until disposition takes place will, as a minimum, meet the following
requirements:

17.3.4.1. Property records must be maintained that include a description of the
property,, a serial number or other identification number, the source
of funding for the property, who holds title, the acquisition date, and
cost of the property, percentage of State participation in the project
costs for the Agreement under which the property was acquired, the
location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate
disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the
property.

17.3.4.2. A physical inventory of the property must be taken and the results
reconciled with the property records at least once every two (2) years.

The Alternalive Life Center Exhibit B - Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit B - Amendment #5

17.3.4.3. A control system must be developed to ensure adequate safeguards
to prevent loss, damage, or theft of the property. Any loss, damage,
or theft must be investigated.

17.3.4.4. Adequate maintenance procedures must be developed to keep the
property in good condition.

17.3.4.5. If the Contractor is authorized or required to sell the property, proper
sales procedures must be established to ensure the highest possible
return.

17.3.5. Disposition. When original or replacement equipment acquired with State funds
is no longer needed for the original project or program or for other activities
currently or previously supported by the State, except as otherwise provided by
State statutes or in this Agreement, the Contractor must request disposition
instructions from the State. Disposition of the equipment will be made as follows:

17.3.5.1. Items of equipment with a current per unit fair market value of $5,000
or less may be retained, sold or otherwise disposed of with no further
obligation to the State.

17.3.5.2. Items of equipment with a current per-unit fair-market value in excess
of $5,000 may be retained by the Contractor or sold. The State is
entitled to an amount calculated by multiplying the current market
value or proceeds from sale by the State's percentage of participation
in the cost of the original purchase. If the equipment is sold, the State
may permit the Contractor to deduct and retain from the State's share
$500 or ten (10) percent of the proceeds, whichever is less, for its
selling and handling expenses.

17.3.5.3. The Contractor may transfer title to the property to an eligible third
party provided that, in such cases, the Contractor must be entitled to
compensation for its attributable percentage of the current fair market
value of the property.

17.3.5.4. In cases where the Contractor fails to take appropriate disposition
actions, the State may direct the Contractor to take disposition actions.

18. Property Trust Relationship and Liens

18.1. Real property, equipment, and intangible property, that are acquired or improved with
State funds must be held in trust by the Contractor as trustee for the beneficiaries of
the project or program under which the property was acquired or improved. The State
may require the Contractor to record liens or other appropriate notices of record to
indicate that personal or real property has been acquired or improved with State funds
and that use and disposition conditions apply to the property.

The AJternative Life Center

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06-05

Exhibit B - Amendment #5
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-  State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

!. Williatn M. Gordncf, Sccreiar>' of Stale of ihc Suue of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE

CENTER is it New Hampshire Nonprofit Owponuitw registered to mmaaa business in New Hampshire on Januar)- 15.1999, 1
further certify Umt till fee* und,documents re<|uircd by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received ood is in good siandinga*

far 05 ihbi office is concerned.

Husincis ID; 307757

Ccnificatu Nuniha: 0004516713

la.
s

e

4*

<1

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cau.sc to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this llihdayof November A.D. 2019.

William M. fiuidncr

Secretary* of Suite
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I  j£~A- Pr) a! ̂  30\) thl . hereby certify that:
(Name of the electjed Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot ̂  contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected cierkO^etai^fficer of _ KCi L\Q. ̂.pn4er-J
(C'orp'oration/LLC

2. The following is a t^ie copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on /D /J ̂  20^d). at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

/  (Date)

VOTED: That _ (may list niore than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of y to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to -execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or hecessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I furttier certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this ceffificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
positlon(s) indicated and that they 'haye full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Harnpshire,
all such limitatipns are. expressly stated herein.

Dated:

f ■ 7 Signature of Elected Officer
Name;

™e:5ec.REf7^<^^

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM(DD/YYYY)

10/19/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hoider is an ADDiTIONAL INSURED, the poiicy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate hoider In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

Fairley Kenneatly

(603)293-2791 (603)293-7188

ADDRESS- f8ir1ey@esinsurance.net

INSURERtS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICI

MSURERA- Fhlladelphia insurance Co
INSURED

Alternative Life Center

c/o Debit One

41 Washington Street

Conway NH 03818

INSURER B ■ Insurance Co 25011

INSURER C: Mount Vemon

INSURER D:

INSURER E;

INSURER F;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2020 REVISION NUMBER:

WSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

FoucTIFT
TYPE OF INSURANCE i

POUcY EXP

X
i!nsiivAn POUCY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GENTAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER

POLICY

OTHER;

□ IIILOC

PHPK2053469

(MM/DO/YYYYI

10/25/2020

IMM/DCVYYYYI

10/25/2021

UMIT8

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TD RENTES
PREMISES (E» aeeuTOnfl

MEO EXP (Any OfV«

PERSONAL A ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

Abuse and Molestation

1,000.000

100,000

5,000

1,000,000

2,000.000

2,000.000

50,000

AUTOMOBLE LIABIUTY

ANYAUTOX

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea •ecidwii

BODILY INJURY (P«r parson) 1.000,000
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2053473 10/25/2020 10/25/2021 BODILY INJURY (Par acddani)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par pcddanl)
Uninsured motorist B1 1.000,000

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

(XCUR

CLAIMS44ADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

RETENTION »

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTFVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yai, dascrtba undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bakiw

OTH-
15_

WWC 3491913 10/20/2020 10/20/2021 E L, EACHACaOENT 100,000

E,L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 100,000

E,L, DISEASE . POLICY LIMIT 500,000

Directors and Officers
Per claim S1.000.000

ND02552060B 10/25/2020 10/25/2021

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarfcs Schadult, may ba attaehad If mera ipaca la raqulrad)

locations:
6 Main Street, Conway. NH
27 Lombard Street. Colebrook. NH
567 Main Street. Berlin, NH
267 Main Street. Littleton. NH

Employee Dishonesty Coverage 537,500

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS DBH

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
® 1986-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Alternative Life Center

"Mission Statement"

"Our Mission is to provide a sanctuary where
people, eighteen years and older, learn to create a
personal vision leading their own recovery. The

journey towards recovery occurs in a
compassionate atmosphere through education,
peer support, sharing of common experiences
and utilizing individual as well as community

resources."

www.alccenters.o.(j 3lcccnler5l<?Bniail.com
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Financial Statements

THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTFR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

STRATHAM

PROFHSSIONaL ASSOCIATION

CERTIFIED PUBIJC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors of wolfeboro • north conu'ay
The Alternative Life Center ' concord

Conway, Nevi/ Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Alternative Life Center (a nonprofit
corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related
statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Alternative Life Center as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its net
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

--
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Report on Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The Schedule of Functional Revenue, Support and Expenses and the Schedule of Bureau
of Mental Health Services (BMHS) Refundable Advance on pages 12 and 13 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the The Alternative Life Center's 2018 financial statements, and our
report dated October 3, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

November?, 2019
North Conway, New Hampshire
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CEMTFR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30. 2018

ASSETS

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictiona

2019

Total

2018

Total

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents • member funds
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

S 23,240

10,584

11,071

2,990

$ 193

39,731

$ 23,433

10,584

50,602

2,990

$ 195,270

10,531
7,787

6,859

Total current assets 47,885 39,924 87,809 220,447

PROPERTY

Vehicles

Equipment

Leasehold improvements

90,787

31,811

4,500 •

90,787

31,811

4,500

90,787

31,811

4.500

Total

Less: accumulated depreciation
127,098

(110,355)
- 127,098

(110,355)

127.098

(93,610)

Property, net 16,743 16,743 33.486

Total assets $ 84,628 $ 39^924 $ 104,552 $ 253.935

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Refundable advances

Refundable advances • Crisis Respite

$ 3,654

12,856
S

39,924

$ 3,654

12,856

39,924

$ 5,445

11,270

182,103

13,366

Total current liabilities 16,510 39,924 56,434 212,184

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions 48,118 . 48,118 41,751

Total net assets 48,118 48,118 41,751

Total liabilities and net assets $ 64.628 s 39.924 $ 104,552 $ 253,936

See Notes to Financial Statements

3
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30. 2018

Without Donor Witfi Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

2019

Total

2018

Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Bureau of Mental Health Services support and revenue:
Grants.

Interest

$  552,169 $

52

$  552.169 $

52

473,521
107

Total Bureau of Mental Health Services

support and revenue 552,221 552,221 .473.628

Other support and revenue:
Peer support revenue
Fundraising and donations

24.348

2,335

24.348

2,335

10,036

5,777

Total other support and revenue 26,683 .. 26,683 15,813

Total support and revenue 578,904 578,904 489,441

EXPENSES

Program services
Management and general

488,459

84,078
488,459

84,078
421,645

79,465

Total expenses 572.537 572,537 501,110

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 6,367 6,367 (11,669)

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 41,751 41,751 53,420

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $  48,118 $ $  48,118 $ 41,751

See Notes to Financial Statements

4
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTFR

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30. 2018

Without Donor With Donor 2019 2018

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  6,367 $ $  6,367 $  (11,669)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 16,745 ■ 16,745 16,745

(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable (8,115) (34,900) (43,015) (5,747)
Prepaid expenses 3,869 ■ 3.869 1,355

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (1.791) • (1.791) 1,960

Accrued payroll and related taxes 1,586 - 1,586 1,648

Refundable advances ■  - (142,179) (142,179) 2,052

Refundable advances • Crisis Respite - (13,366) (13,366) 5,379

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18,661 (190,445) (171,784) 11,723

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18,661 (190,445) (171,784) 11,723

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,163 190,638 205,801 194,078

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,

END OF YEAR $  33,824 $  193 $  34,017 $ 205,80,1

See Notes to Financial Statements

5
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30. 2018

Management
Program and 2019 2018

Services General Total Total

Salaries and wages $  274,410 $  41,572 $  315,982 $  262,313
Payroll taxes 21,987 3,195 25,182 21,421
Employee benefits 16,585 13,306 29,891 21,178
Rent 48,907 1,661 50,568 49,663
Education and in service training 30,936 - 30,936 33,697
Professional fees 10,105 8,785 18,890 15,397
Travel ■ staff transportation 21,482 - 21,482 25,070
Depreciation 8,372 8,373 16,745 16,745
insurance 8,082 4,814 12,896 11,129
Telephone and internet 10,244 387 10,631 10,742
Transportation - client services 6,485 . 6,485 6,318
Utilities 7,858 - 7,858 7,483
Office supplies and advertising 1,986 1,985 3,971 4,625
Consumable supplies and food 2,765 - , 2,765 3,790
Building and household supplies 2,059 - 2,059 2.418
Repairs and maintenance 3,061 3,061 3,454
Postage 9,328 - 9,328 551

Membership expenses 2.492 2,492 2,421
Other 1,315 - 1,315 2,695

Total functional expenses $  488,459 $  84,078 $  572,537 $ 501,110

See Notes to Financial Statements
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Alternative Life Center (the Center) Is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
providing four sanctuaries where people coping with or recovering from symptoms of
mental illness or emotional disorders learn to create a personal vision leading to their
own recovery in a compassionate atmosphere through education, peer support, sharing
of common experiences and utilizing Individual as well as community resources In
Conway, Berlin, Colebrook, Littleton and Wolfeboro, New Hampshire and surrounding
communities!

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Center have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses - during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Center have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the Center to report
information regarding its financial position and, activities according to the following net
asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Center. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Center's management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to stipulations imposed
by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature;
those restrictions will be met by actions of the Center or by passage of time.
Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.
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Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from
net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the

statement of activities.

The Center only had net assets without donor restrictions for the year ended
June 30,2019.

The financial statements Include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the Center's financial statements for the year ended June 30. 2018, from which the
summarized infonnation was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Center classifies certificates of deposit as cash equivalents. The Center maintains
cash accounts for funds raised by members' to be used for members' benefit.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of grants and program service fees receivable. At June 30,
2019, accounts receivable were considered fully collectable, and therefore, no
provisions for bad debts have been made in these financial statements.

Reclassificatlons

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current-year financial
statements.

Advertising

The Center expenses advertising costs as incumed.

Property and Depreciation

Property is stated at cost or fair value at date of donation. Material assets with a useful
life in excess of one year are capitalized. Depreciation is computed using straight-line
methods over the estimated lives of the related assets as follows:

Vehicles 5 years
Equipment 5-7 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred and betterments
are capitalized. Assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts,
along with the related depreciation allowances, and any gain or loss is recognized.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instalments, provides a definition of fair value which
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework in generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value
is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC
820-10, the Center may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and
cost approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, ASC Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values.

The carrying amount of cash, other assets and current liabilities, approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Income Taxes

The Center is a nonprofit corporation exempt from income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Intemal Revenue Code. The Intemal Revenue Service has determined the Center to

be other than a private foundation.

The Center follows FASB ASC Topic No. 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, which requires the Center to report uncertain tax positions, related interest and
penalties, and to adjust its assets and liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits and
accrued interest and penalties accordingly. At June 30, 2019, the Center determined it
had no tax positions that did not meet the "more likely than not" standard of being
sustained by tax authorities.

The Center's open audit periods are 2015 through 2018. The Center does not expect
any tax positions to change significantly within the next twelve months.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized
on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited. Such allocations have been determined by management
on an equitable basis. Salaries and wages have been allocated based on time and
effort. All other expenses are allocated based on direct assignment.

Donations

Donated materials and equipment are reflected as contributions in the accompanying
financial statements at their estimated values at date of receipt. No amounts have been
reflected in the statements for donated services, as no objective basis is available to
measure the value of such services: however, a number of volunteers have donated

time to the Center's program services. The Board of Directors serves in a .volunteer
capacity.
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Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the estimates
inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized subsequent
events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the
statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through November 7, 2019, the date the June 30, 2019
financial statements were available for issuance.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit'Entitles (Topic 958) -
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information
about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of
Information provided about expenses and investment retum. The Center has adjusted
the presentation of these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied
retrospectively to all periods presented.

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABITY

The following represents the Center's financial assets as of June'30, 2019;

Financial assets at year-end:
2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 34,017
Accounts receivable 50.802

Total financial assets $ 84.819

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:

Refundable advances available to spend
only with approval from the State $ 39.924

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 44.895

The Center's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of operating
expenses (approximately $46,000).
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NOTE 3 REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

The Center records grant revenue as a refundable advance until it is expended for the
purpose of the grant, at which time it is recognized as revenue. The balance in
refundable advance liabilities at June 30, 2019, represents amounts received from the
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Mental Health
Services (BMHS) that will be expended in future fiscal years in accordance with the
grant agreement and the approval of BMHS. The Schedule of Bureau of Mental Health
Services (BMHS) Refundatile Advances reconciles the refundable advance liabilities.

NOTE 4 FUNDRAISING REVENUE

The Center recorded fundraising activities revenue for proceeds from yard-sale type
fundralsing events during the year ended June 30, 2019. The Center conducts these
activities to raise funds for specific client activities or non-budgeted Center expenses.
These funds are kept in separate accounts by the Center, and related expenses are
recorded as either fundraising or client expenses. The net income from these activities
Is not related to the refundable advance received from the New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Mental Health Services.

NOTE 5 LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Center leases Its facilities under the terms of operating leases that expired June 30,
2019. New one year leases were signed effective July 1, 2019. Lease payments totaled
$50,568 for the year ended June 30, 2019 and future minimum lease payments are
$50,568.

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the year ended June 30, 2019, approximately 95% of the total support and revenue
was derived from the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services,
Bureau of Mental Health Services. The future existence of the Center is dependent upon
the funding policies and continued support of this source.

NOTE 7 CONTINGENCIES - GRANT COIVIPLIANCE

The Center receives funds under a state grant and from Federal sources. Under the
tenms of these agreements, the Center Is required to use the funds within a certain
period and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenses
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the
Center might be required to repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for these contingencies because specific amounts, if
any, have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of June 30, 2019.

NOTE 8 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Center maintains a tax sheltered 403(b) plan that covers substantially all full-time
employees. The Center contributes up to 3% of the base compensation of eligible
participants to the plan. Contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2019
totaled $2,281.
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THE ALTERWATIVP Ufg ePMT^B

SCHEOULS OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUE. SUPPORT ANO EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE M.

Pmt SuppoR Ppvr Suppen pMr Support Pmt Support
Conwsv Berlin Cotabrook tJttlatan Uq*

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

C>rwU .5 161,756 8 60.264 i 72.091 t 128,059 I 21.646
Poor support rtvonuo

Fundnbaig snd donsUons . . .

Inioroti 52 .

Total rovonua and support i 181.806 I 60.264 8 72,091 i 128.059 S 21.646

EXPENSES

Program Sarvieot:
SNartas and wagas t 27,526 % 35.507 S 48.674 i 56.419 t 20.351
Patrol taxas 2.052 2.903 3,927 4.614 1,699
Emptoraa bansAs 6.482 1.009 2.096 4.690 542
Rant 14.947 9,660 10.600 13.500
Education and in larvica minam 27.487 . 104

Profassianai faas 10.105 .

Travai • staff transportation 4.657 1.436 4.132 7.062 .

Dapradalian 8.372 . .

Insuranea 8.082 .

Tfisphona and Intemat 2.146 1.615 2.366 1.7CM 879
Transportation - ciont sarvicat 2.344 747 1.664 1,151
UtOtws 2.057 1,671 1.227 693

Offiea supplas and advariising 137 361 669 819
Consumabta suppias snd lood 815 S9S 457 661
OuidSig ar«1 tvusahoid wppCas 360 573 344 567 .

Rspairt and niarsananca 2.588 83 5 341
Postaga 9.231 20 30 47
Mambarsrtp axpansas
Othar 354 45 44 272

Total program sarvieas: I 1X.S44 i 56.426 S 76.539 $ 92.560 t 23.471

Managamanl and ganaral:

Salsrias and wagas % 6,314 t t $ 33,256 t
Paytoi taxes 799 2.396

Emfioyea banaffis 1,331 . 11,975
Rant 1,661 . .

ProtassiortBl leas 8,785 ,

Oapraciation 8,373

Insuranea 4,614

Talaphona and Mamai 387

Office si«plias and advertising 1.588 397

Totai managamertt arxl general i 36.052 i 5 % 46.026 t

Total asgiansas S 166.596 i 56.426 8 76,539 % 140 606 s 23,471
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9.326 9,328
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1.661 1.881
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8.373 8.373
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THE ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

SCHEDULE OF BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES (BMHS)
REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

Total FY 2019 BMHS funds received

Recognition of funds released by BMHS

Total funds received

BMHS expenses (taken from audit report)
Paid on behalf of other agencies
Interest on BMHS funds held

Depreciation expense

BMHS surplus

Refundable advances balance at June 30, 2018

Refundable advances used

Refundable advances balance at June 30, 2019, including Crisis Respite

Less: refundable advances • Crisis Respite

Refundable advances - balance at June 30,2019

Total

S  500,858
155.545

656,403

(551,989)
(121,211)

52

16.745

195,469

(155.5451

39.924

$  39.924

See Independent Auditors' Report
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BOARD MEMBERS 2019-2020

Maddie Costcllo (2Q21)
KftAaaMiii^onway NH 03818

Convvuy KH 03818

mcpond I @hotmail.com

Gardiner Perry (2022)

Conwoy NH 03818

gardpeny029@gmail,cdm

Robert Raiiddll (2020)

No Conway NH 03860
n ceil

Fay Rcilly (2021)
Conway NH 03818

iCtrConway NH 03813
rayinak@hotniaiI;com

Ccll:<

(Prcsidcni)

Elaine South (2022)
IWcst Ossipcc NH 03890

•rcedom NH 03836

H:MiWn9 cc]f4iMiM

claincsouth(grbadrunner.com
(Secretary)

Bonnie Hayes (2020)

North Conu-ay NH 03860
work

bonnic@selcctreatestQte.com
(Vice president)

JudilhEnglish (2020)
03846

lacksohNH 03846

H-.mmM cell:

jtenh@roadnjnner.com

Leo Sullivan (202!)

Intervale NH 03845

lrsutl@roadrunner.com

FYl: Laura Mckinova

Alternative Life Center

PO Box 241, Conway NH 03818
cell: 603 259-6610

ALC 447-1765 Laura: 444-5344 (LPS)
nicccrners/trlumail.com websileialcccnlers.org

(10/15/2019)
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Laura Mekinova

OBJECTIVE

To challenge myself and grow in my position and life.

EDUCATION

2018

2016

2015

2014

2013

2008

1998

Recovery Coach
intentional Pmf Support Trainer Refresher

Intcntionol Peer Support Trainer Refresher

WRAP Facilitator

Peer Specialist Ccrtincation

Intentional Peer Support Trainer

Certified in intentional Peer Support

G.E.D

WORK EXPERIENCE

May 2014' Present
Intentional Peer Support Trainer
Responding for effectively training the
Peer Support Agencies in intentional Peer
Support, also maintaining their Co
Renectipns, Warm line trainings, Conflict
Resolutions, and Crisis Respite training.

December 2006 - Present
The Alterriativc Life Center

Started as floor siaff and currently
Executive Director. Duties include but not

limited to, focilitaiing support/wellness
groups, building community ties and
contacts, promoting the wcllncss of the
individuals we serve. Overseeing four
sites, one outreach, a \varm line, a respite
and two peer specialist positions.
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Laura Mekinova

May 2006« December 2006
Sunny Gardeo Restaurant
Wailrcssing

November 2005- April 2006 HR Block

Bookkeeper and occounts payable

SKILLS

Computer litcrotc. cPTcctive communication
skills, and a team player. Proficient writing
skills.

REFERENCES

Available upon request.
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Kevin A.Rodwell

Wo6dsville/NH 0378S

OBJECTIVE:

My objective to obtaining the A5sist8nt Director, Is to continue my development and knowledge of Core
IPS Tasks, Principles, & Values of the Intentional Peer Support practice. To carry on the practice of IPS

and play an active rote in the training process and execution of peer support on all fronts. In addition I

would like to be able to support and encourage those in peer support to take it to the next level. Those

new to it, to understand its purpose and Instill its effectiveness, i want to be an avenue of effective IPS

practice and a practitioner of passing the message along to all those whom could benefit from Peer
SupporL

SKILLS a ABIirrV:

Quick Learner

Passionate

Adaptable

Knowledgeable about the IPS Core Tasks & Principles

Energetic

Team Player

EXPERIENCE:

FEBRUARY 2018 - CURRENT

PEERSUPPORTASSISTANT, ONTHE ROAD TO WELLNESS

I was hired as a peer support assistant to learn the practice of IPS and practice peer support
intentionally. I created and maintained peer relationships with the reasponsabllity of facilitating fifteen
of our twenty available groups. I base the groups and create material that is relevant to the group, the
daily needs of fellow Peers, and ultimately spreading the practice of Intentlonolly practicing peer
support. I help support my fellow peers end co workers to achieve wellness an optimal level,
consistently.

4 2"^ Annual Breakfast Speech
4> Chosen to be sponsored and trained at state level.
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OCTOBER 2018 - CURRtNT

Mentee/State Trainer Trainee, NH Peer Support Mentoring Program

^ Trained to conduct co-reflections as of April 16,2019.

Trained to teach the new training modules as of April 16,2019.

FEBRUARY 2019 -JUNE 2019

RESPITE / FLOOR STAFF, ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

4> Worked Floor and Respite as staff expanding my experience of demonstrating IPS with my peers in

the communities we serve.

JUNE 2019-FEBRUARY 2020

NH IPS STATE TRAINER. NH PEER VOICE

♦ Conduct state-wide Trainings for IPS In NH:

-  IPS CORE

-  IPS REFRESHER

-  WARMLINE

-  CRISIS RESPITE

•  COREFLEaiONS

JUNE 2019 - FEBRUARY 2020

DIREaOR OF PUBLIC RELATIONS, ALTERNATIVE LIFE CENTER

^ Establbhed and maintained relotionmships In the community.

A Redesigned organizational forms and created on easy-access database.

♦ Rebranded our organizational logo, pamphlet, and website.

4 Helped design and promote programming fro ALC with organizations in our community:

CCOP-Lincoln Police

CCDP — Littleton Regional Hospital
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FEBRUARY 2019-CURRENT2020

ASSISTANT DIREaOR, ALTERNATIVE UFE CENTER

♦ Malntslin PubDc Relations Responabllltles

♦ Working with staff and Executive director to Improve programming and staffing.

MOU - The Bridge Project

EDUCATION;

Northern Essex Community College - Kaverhin, MA - Associates in Business

JUNE 2012 Degree Awarded

REFRENCES:

Laura MeUnova

Executive Director - Littleton Peer Support

(603)-U9-6610
alccenters^grr^aiLcom

pavid Blacksmith

Executive Director - On The Road To Wellness

(6p3)-S40 1431

Oavld.b@otrtw.org
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Lori A. ShlbiMttc
Conalisbaer

K«gi S. Fos
Director

JUN10'20 Ptt

STATE OF I^W HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLBASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603.271-9544 1-800-852.3345 EiL 9544

F«*: 603-271-4332 TDDAccew: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbh».Dh.gor

9-1 y

June 9, 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State Hou^
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Departnient of Health and Human Services, Division for
Behavioral Health, to amend existing agreements with the vendors listed below
to continue providing peer support services to adults vnth mental illness by
exercising renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by $5,368,958
from $10,940,316 to $16,309,274 and by extending the completion dates from
June 30.2020 to June 30,2022. effective upon Governor and Council approval.
55.1% Federal Funds, 44.9% General Funds.

Further authorize a total advance payment of $221,627, for the vendors listed
below in accordar^ce with the terms of the contracts, effective upon Governor
and Council approval. 55.1% Federal Funds and 44.9% General Funds.

The agreements were approved by Governor and Council as Indicated in the table

2)

below.

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Number

Location Contract

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Contract

Amount

G&C Approval

Connections
Peer

Support
Center

#15707

0-8001
Portsmouth $977,544 $492,406 $1,469,950

O.06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18#33B

A2; 06/19/19 #28

H.E.A.R.T.S
Peer

Support
Center

Reaion IV

#20928

7-8001'
Nashua $1,533,325 $780,432 $2,313,757

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 06/20/18#33B

A2: 06/19/19 #28

Lakes

Region
Consumer

Advisory
Board

#15706
0-B001

Laconia $1,355,548 $681,072 $2,036,620

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 08/20/18#33B
A2: 06/19/19 #28

Monadnock

Area Peer

Support
Aaency

#15797

3-8001
Keene $1,057,447 $556,450 $1,623,907

0:06/29/16 #23

Ai: 06/20/18#33B
A2: 06/19/19 #28



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorat>le Council

Page 2 of 4

On the

Road to

Recovery.
Inc.

SI5883

9-B001
Manchester $1,739,123 $827,348 $2,565,471

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 08/20/16#336

A2: 06/19/19 #28

The

Alternative

Life Center

#16808

. l-BOOl
Conway $2,000,576 $862,946 $2,863,522

0:06/29/16 #23

A1:06/21/17#38

A2: 06/20/2018

#338

A3: 06/19/19 #28

The

Stepping.
Stone Drop-
In Center

Association

#15769

7.B001
Claremont $1,520,154 $776,488 $2,296,642

0:06/29/16 #23
A1: 06/20/18 #338

A2: 06/19/2018

#28

TrI-City
Consumers'
Action Co-

ooerative

#15779

7-8001
Rochester $746,599 $391,808 $1,138,405

0:06/29/16 #23

A1:06/20/18#33B

A2: 06/19/19 #28

Totals $10,940,316 1 $5,368,968 $16,309,274

Funds are available in the following accounts for Stale Fiscal Year 2021 and
anticipated to be available for State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, v/ith authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920010-7143 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT
06-96-92-920010-7011 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, PEER SUPPORT SERVICES
05-96-92-922010-4118 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, PEER SUPPORT SERVICES
05-95-92-922010-4120 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT
05-95.91-910010.5710 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS; GLENCLIFF HOME FOR ELDER, GLENCLIFF HOME.
PROFESSIONAL CARE

See Attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing peer support sen/ices for adults
who are eighteen (18) years of age .and older who self-Identify as a recipient, a former
recipient, or are at significant risk of becoming a recipient of mental health services.
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Approximately 2,200 individuals v^ll be served from July 1,2020 through June 30.
2022.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provision, Section 3 that allows the Department to renew the contract for up to four (4)
years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service,
parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The
Department is in agreement with renewing services for two (2) of the remaining two (2)
years at this time.

The contractors provide sen/ices that enhance personal wellness, independence,
and recovery by increasing personal awareness, and symptom management of mental
illness. Peer support services include supportive Interactions and shared e^eriences
using an Intentional Peer Support model that fosters recovery from mental Illness and
self-advocacy skills through personal connection and building relationships. The
contractors provided peer sen/ices to 2,161 adults with mental Illness in State Fiscal Year
2019 as evidenced by quarterly data reports. The Department conducted on-site reviews
in State Fiscal Year 2019 of all contractors As evidenced In the reviews, programming
was. delivered using principles and practice of Intentional Peer Support and related peer
disciplines.

All contractors met expectations as outlined in NH Administrative Rule He-M 402
and developed quality improvement plans with the Department to address areas needing
improvement. The contractors have taken advantage of available technical assistance
and trainings to maintain well-rounded, professional, and sustainable peer-run programs.

Peer support agencies provide individuals with a comprehensive array of in-house
and community based discussion groups, practice groups, educational events, social
outings, community outreach, and community support. Peer support agencies provide
Intentional Peer Support services through face-to face meetings and telephone calls.
Telephone-based peer support sen/ices, known as Warmline Services, are available
statewide to assist individuals who may experience mental health crises outside of regular
business hours.

Three (3) of the agencies, H.ElA.R.T.S. Peer Support Agericy, Monadnock Area
Peer Support, and The Stepping Stone Drop-In Center Association, also provide respite
beds for Individuals who have a mental illness, are experiencing or at risk of a mental
health crisis, and need a therapeutic respite from their current living situation. Respite
beds provide twenty-four (24) hour seven (7) days a week access to peer support sen/ices
and are available for up to a maximum of seven (7) days. Peer Support Agencies and
peer respite services are also in accordance with the recommendations 10 Year Mental
Health Plan and Community Mental Health Agreement.
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Each contractor's effectiveness to deliver services will be measured through
programmatic audits, reviews, and ongoing financial audits relative to areas that Include,
but are not limited to:

• Monthly financial ratios, expenses, and status;
• Outreach activities;

•  Educational events;

•  Program evaluations and surveys;
•  Sen/ice deliverable expectations; '
t  Numbers served on daily basis, number of current rhembers, and program

utilization totals;

• Ongoing steps to increase membership; and
• Number of services provided beyond the immediate crisis stabilization, including

referrals. ' ,

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals with
mental health conditions, statewide, may not have access to the valuable support they
rely on to manage the symptoms of their mental illness. Should the^ peer support
services t>ecome unavailable, some individuals may require a higher level of service,
including hospitalization. which Is significantly more costly than peer support services.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 55.1% Federal Funds. CFDA #93.958/FAIN SM010035-19 and
44.9% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respect^Ily submltti

.ori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

Tht Deparlmenl of MeoUfi and Human Sorvicts'Musion i$lojoin communitia and femititt
in providing opporiuniliti for cUixen$ to achitve fieollh and indtpendencc.



nn«ncl»l Detail

05-95-92-920010-7143 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVOF DIV
OF 8EHAVI0RAL.HEALTH. MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRAMT

100% Fevers! Funds

AcLvily Code: 92^7143
The Alternative Life Center

Vendor 111066801

State Fiscal Year Class TlUe Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Conlracls (or Prog Svs 102-500731 i  . 290.154.00 i i  290.154.00
2018 Ccntracis (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  290.154.00 s S  290.154.00
2019 Contracls (or Prog Svs 102-500731 5 s j

2020 Contracts (or Proq Svs 102-500731 $ s S
2021 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s 5

2022 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 5 s S
Subtotal s  sao.3oa.oo s a  seo.308.00

The Stepping Stone Orop-ln Center Asaocletlon

Vendor F 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

-  (Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 5  209,790.00 S $  209.790.00
2018 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 %  209.790.00 s S  209.790.00
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ J

2020 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 5 $ s
2021 Contracls (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ J

2022 Corttracls (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s s c

Subtotal S  419.580.00 $  419.580.00

Lshes Region Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor F 157060

Stale Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts (or Proq Svs 102-500731 S  188,183.00 S S  188.183.00
2018 Contracls for Prog'Svs 102-500731 %  188,183.00 $ $  188.183.00
2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ ' s
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s $
2021 •Conlracls for Proq Svs 102-500731 s $ s
2022 Contracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ • J

Subiolal S  376.366.00 $ $  . 376.366.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency

VendorF157973

Slete Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Currant Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  146.449.00 $  . i  146.449.00
2018 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  146.449.00 5 S  146.449.00
2019 Contracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 s S $
2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ S S'

•  2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s $
2022 . ' Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 6 s

Subtotal 1  292.898.00 s $  292,898:00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI
Vendor F 209267

State Fiscal Yoer Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decroese)

Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Conlracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  • 211.880.00 S $  211.660.00
2018 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  211.660.00 s S  211.860.00
2019 Conlracls (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s S
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s
2021 Contracts for FVoo Svs 102-500731 $ s $
2022 Contracts (or Proo Svs 102-500731 $ s $

Subtotel $  423.720.00 5 S  423,720.00.
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On thB Rnnd to Racoverv. Inc.

Vendor 0156639

State Fiscel Year Clasa Title Claae Account Current Budget
Amount increase'

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Conirscis (or Proo Svs 102-500731 $  245,582.00 S S  ' 245.562.00

,  2018 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 i  245,562.00 S S  245.562.00

2019 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 5 $ S

2020 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s s $

2021 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s s

2022 Contracts (or Prog Svs'- 102-500731 s s s  •

Subtotal t  491.124.00 s %  491.124.00

Vendor# 157070

Slate FiacalYear ' ClaasTlUe Ciesa Account Current Budget
Amount Increase'

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  135,751.00 $ S  135,751.00

2018 •Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  135.751.00 $ S  135.751,00

2019 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 5 . $

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s S S

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i S $

2022 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 5 $ s

Subtotal $  271.502.00 i $  271,502.00

Tri'Cltv Conaumert' Action Co^ooaretlve

vendor#157797
'

Slate FiacalYear Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase'

(Decrease}

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  102.362.00 S 5  102.362.00

2018 Contracts'for Prog Svs 102-500731 5  102.362.00 $ S  102.362.00

2019 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 5 S %

2020 ' Contracts for ProQ Svs' 102-500731 i s i

I  204,724.00 $ t. 204,734.00

1 $ 3.060.222.00 |ISUB total" I S 3.000.222.00 | $

05-95-92-920010-7011 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OERT OF. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF. OIV
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100% General FufKis

Activity (>le; 92207011

The AllornaUvo Life Center

Vendor #066801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase'.

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $  233.122.00 S S  233.122.00

2018 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $  233.122.00 s S  233.122.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S s S

2020 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s s

2021 Contracts (or Proo Svs 102-500731 s s

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s s

Subtotal S  466.244.00 $ S  466.244.00

The StoDolna Stone Drop-In Center Association

Vendor # 157967

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase'

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  166.555.00 $ S  166.555.00

2018 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  168.555.00 $ i  166,555.00

2019 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s i $

2020 .Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $ i i

2021 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s %

2022 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 s s $

Subtotal S  337.110.00 s $  337,110.00
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Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor a 157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  151.196.00 S S  151.196.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i  151.196.00 S $  151.196.00

2019 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2020 . Coruracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s S

2021 • Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ i $

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs . 102-500731 s i %

Subtotal . i  302.392.00 s -s • .302,392.00

Monadnoek Area Peer Suooort Agency

Vendor 0 157973

State Fiscal Year Clase Title Class Account Current Budget ,
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 - Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  117,685.00 S S  • 117.665.00

2018 Coniracts for Prog Svs •102-500731 S  117,665.00 s $  117.665.00

2019 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 5 $ s

2020 Conlracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s $

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s s

2022 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S s s

Subtotal i  235,330.00 s S  235,330.00

H.E^.R.T.S. Peer Suooort Center of Greater Nashua Region VI

Vendor 0 209287

Stste Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increasef

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 %  170,218.00 $ S  - 170.218.00

2018 Conlracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  170,218.00 $ S  170.218.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S S

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ s

. 2021 Coniracts for Prog Svs - 102-500731 $ s i

2022 Conlracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 s % s

Subtotal $  340.436.00 s i  340,436.00

On the Road to RocovprY, Inc.

Vendon* 156639

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount '

2017 Coniracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 197.296.00 197.296.00

2016 Coniracts (or Proa Sv» 102-500731 197.296.00 197.296.00

2019 Coniracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731

2020 Conlracls for Prog Svs 102-500731

2021 Conlracls for Prog Svs 102-500731

2022 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731

Subtotal 394.592.00 394,592.00

Connections Peer Suooort CCenter

Vendor # 157070 I

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 . Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  109.071,00 $ S  109.071.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  109.071.00 S S  109.071.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S $ s

2020 CorMracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ s

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ s

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s

Subtotal $  218.142.00 S i  218,142.00

TrI-Cltv Consumers' Action Co-ooerailve .

Vendor0 157797

State Fiscel Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount increese/

(Docroaso)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S 82.245.00 i S  82.245.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S 62.245.00 $ S  62.245.00

2019 CorMracts for Prog Svs. 102-500731 s - S 5

2020 Corrtracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s $
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2021 Contracit for Proo Svs 102-500731 S S %
•  2022 Coniracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s S S .

Subtotal S  164.490.00 S t 164,490.00

1  SUBTOTAL S  2.458.736.00 $ . s 2,458,736.00
.

05-95.92.92201IW118 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OP. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV
. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100^ General Funds

ActivltyCcde; 92204118

The AttematJve Life Center

Vendor 1*068801 ■

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increasef

(OecresM)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Conlracls for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ S $
2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s S S
2019 Conlracls lor Proo Svs 102-S00731 S  233.122.00 s . $ 233.122.00

2020 Contracts lor Proa Svs 102-500731 $  190,832.00 S 6.250.00 $ 197.082.00'
2021 Contracts lor Proa Svs 102-500731 $ $ 190.832.00 s 190.832.00
2022 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ s 190.832.00 s 190.832.00

Subtotal I  423.954.00 s 387.914.00 s 811,868.00

The StoDolna Stone Drotvln Center Association

Vendorllf 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget -
Amount Increasef

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ S S
2018 Conlracls for Proa Svs 102^500731 s s $ .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 %  168.555.00 $ . $ 168.555.00
2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  . 171,573.00 s 6.250.00 s 177.823.00
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ 171.573.00 s 171.573.00
2022 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 5 171.573.00 $ 171.573.00

Subtotal S  .340.128.00 $ 349.396.00 $ 689,524.00

Lakes Realon Consumer Advlsorv Board

Vendor F 157060 '

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increasef

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Conlracls for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ i $
2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  151.196.00 s . S 151.196.00
2020 Coniracts for Prog Svs ' 102-500731 S  150.319.00 $ 6.2S0.X S 156.569.00
2021 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s i 150.319.00 $ 150.319.00
2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ 150.319.00 s 150.319.00

Subtotal %  301,515.00 S 306,888.00 $ 608,403.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Aaencv

VendorF157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increasef

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s S S
20.18 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 5 s .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  117.665.00 $ s 117.665.00
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  122.561.00 % 6.250.00 $ 128,811.00
2021 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S S 122.561.00 % 122,561.00
2022 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 3 122,561.00 $ 122,561.00

Subtotal S - 240.226.00 S 251,372.00 s 491,596.00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Realon VI
VendorF2092e7

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S S S
2018 Coniracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i . S S .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 170,218.00 s . $ 170,218.00
2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S 194.727.00 s 6.250.00 i 200.977.00
2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  ■ - $ 194,727.00 $ 194.727.00
2022 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 s s 194.727.00 s 194.727.00
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Subtoul - s 364,945.00 % 395.704,00 s 760.649.00 1

On the Roed to Recovorv. Inc. 1

Vendor 0 158639

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Cisss Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budge!
Amount

2017 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 $ s $

2018 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ S -

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  197,296.00 s $ 197,296.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  182,903.00 $  6.250.00 s 189.153.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ i  182.903.00 s 182.903.00

2022 Conifocis for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $  182.903.00 s 182.903.00

Subtotal S  380.199.00 S  372,056.00 $ 752,255.00

Connections Peer SuoDort Center

Vet»dorS 157070

State Fiscal Year Class Titia Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase/'

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ S

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 5- S S -

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S . 109.071.00 s - s 109.071.00

• 2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  108.294.00 s 6.250:00 s 114.544.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 106.294.00 s 108.294.00

2022 Contracts for Prog.Svs 102-500731 s 106.294.00 s 108.294.00

Subtotal S  217,365.00 $ 222.836.00 s 440,203.00

Trl-Cltv Consumers' Action CoKiperstive

Vendor« 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S $ i

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s . S %

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 82.245.00 s s -  82.245.00

2020 Contracts lor Prog Svs -102-500731 s 58.159.00 i <  6.250.00 s 64.409.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs . 102-500731 $ ' i 58.159.00 $ 58.159.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s - % 58,159.00 s 56.159.00

Subtotal ' s 140.404.00 $ 122.568.00 s 262,972.00

SUBTOTAL 1 { 1$ 2,408.736.00-1$ 2.408.736.00 1$ 4.817.472.00

05-95-92-922010-4120 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV,
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BKXK GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Acti>^ty Code: 92204120

The Altemailvo Life Center '

Vendor//068801

Stote Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 s S $

2018 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 s S S

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  290.154.00 $ $  290.154.00

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  237,516.00 s $. 237.516.00

2021 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S  237,516.00 $  237,516.00

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S  237.518.00 $  237,516.00

Subtotal $  527,670.00 $  475.032.00 $  1,002,702.00

The StoDDlng Stone Drop-In Center Assoclallon

Vendor # 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
.  Amount

2017 Contracis lor Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ S

2018 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ $ s

2019 Contracts for F*rog Svs 102-500731 $  209,790.00 $ S  209,790.00

2020 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  213,546.00 $ S  213.546.00

2021 Contracis lor Prog Svs 102-500731 S  213.546.00 S  213,546.00

2022 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S  213.546.00 S  213,546.00

Subtotal $  423,336.00 $  427.092.00 $  850,428.00
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Lekos Rogion Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor tt \ 57060

Stato Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increose/

fOocroaso)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Coniracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ S S

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs ' 102-500731 • S S S .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  188,183.00 $ $ 168.183.x

2020 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 S  187.092.00 $ . s 187.092.x

2021 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s ie7.X2.X $ 187.X2.X

2022 Contrscis for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ s ie7.X2.X s 187.092.x

Subtotal S . 375,275.00 6 374,164.x $ 749.459.00

Monadnock Area Peer Suoport Agency

Vendor# 157973

State FIscai Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increaee/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 ConiractS'for Prog Svs 102-500731 % S $

2016 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 % s t .

2019 CorUracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  146,449.00 s • ̂ i 146.449.x

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  152.544.00 s s 152,544.x,

2021 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 s s 152.544.x i 152.544.x

2022 - Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s $ 1S2.544.X i 152.544.x

Subtotal S  298,993.00 $ -  305,066.x $ . 604,081.00
•

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Creator Nashua Region VI

Vendor ft 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase!

(Decreese)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S $ i

2016 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  • .$ i -

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  211.660.00 S s 211.860X

2020 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i  192.364.00 S . s 192.364.x

2021 . Contracts for Prog Svs - 102-500731 s % 192.364.x $ 192.364.x

2022 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 s i 192.364.x $ 192.364.x

Subtotal S  404.224.00 s 384.728.x % 788.952.00

On the Road to Recovery. Inc.

Vendor# 158639

State Fiscal Year .Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  • I S

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s i S .

2019 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 I  245.562.00 s s 245:S62.X

2020 Contracts for FYog Svs 102-500731 S  227.646.x s . s 227.646.x

2021 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 % % 227.646.x s 227.64e.X

2022 Contracis lor Prog Svs 102-500731 s s 227.646.x s 227.648.x

Subtotal t  473.208.00 s •455.292.x $ 926,500.00

Connections Poor Support Center

Vendor# 157070

State Fiscal Year Class Tide Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 i $ $

2018 Contracis for Prog Svs - 102-500731 i S S .

2019 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 i  13S.7S1.X 6 i 135.751.x

2020 Contracis for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  134.784.x S . $ 134.784.x

2021 ■ Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 134,764.x s 134.784.x

2022 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 6 134,784.x s 134,784.x
Subtotal $  270.535,00 i 269.566.x $ 540,103.00

\

Trt-Citv Consumers' Action Co>operatlvo

Vendor # 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 i S S

2018 Contracis for Prog Svs 102-500731 % . $ s .

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 % 102.362.x S s 102.362.x
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2020 Conlracls for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ 134.619.00 S - S 134,619.00

2021 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S 5 134,619.00 $ 1X619,00.

2022 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s S 134,619.00 $ 134,619.00

Subtotal i 236,981.00 $ 269,236.00 $ 506,219.00

I t 3,010.222.00 1 t 2.960.222.00 | % 5,970,M4.00 \isua total'

05-95-91-910010-5710 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: GLENCLIFF HOME FOR ELDER,
GLENCLIFF HOME, PROFESSIONAL CARE

80*A Other Funds/ 205^ General Funds

Activity Code: 91000000

The Altonatlve Life Center

Vendor»O66e01

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease) '

Revised Budget
Amount

2018 Consultants 046-500464 S  1,200.00 $ 5  1,200.00

2019 Consultants 046-500464 S  1,200:00 S S  1,200.00

2020 Consultants 046-500464 S $ S

Subtotal S  2.400.00 i S  2,400.00

SUB TOTAL

TOTAL

2.400.00 I S' 2,400.00

S  10,940,316.00 I S 5.308.958.00 I i 16,300.274.00 |
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New Hampshire Department ol Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment »4 to the Peer Support Services Contract

This 4" Amendment to the Peer Support Services rontrBCt (hereinafter referred to as "Arwrtdi^nt is
py end bctwoon the State of New Hampshire. Department of HeaUh f
referrod to as the *81816" or "Oepartrnem") and The Alternative Life Center, (herernatter referred to as the
Contractor), a nonprof'rt corporation with a place of businoss at 6 Main Slreel. Conwey. NH 03818.
WHEREAS, pursuant to an aflfoement (the Xontrocf) approved by the
on June 29 2016. (Item »23). as amended on Juno 21; 2017. (iiem P38). June 20. 2016. (Item P330). and
on June 19. 2019. (Hem P26). tlieConliecto( uyieoJ lopeifoiin ceHein services IwsoO upon the loimsarKJ
conditions spedfled in the ConUed as amended and in consideration of certain sums spacmad; and
.WHEREAS, the Slate and the Conlredor have agreed to make changes to the scope of w«rk. payment
schedules or terms and condiiions of the contract: and

WHEREAS pursuant to Form P-37. Gerwral Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
General Provisions. Paragraph 3. the Conlfad may be amended end extended upon wntten agreemenl
of the parties and approval from the Govemor end Executive Council; end
WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the egfeemorrt, end increase the price (irhltaiion to
support continued delivery of these services: and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants arid condiltons conlainod
in the Contract and set forth herein, the partidi hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Dale to read:

June 30. 2022.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.6. Price Limitalion. to read:

$2,863,522.

3. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment «3. Scope of Services. Section 1.. Subsedion 1.5.. to read;

I.5. RESERVED.

4. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment «3. Scope of Services. Section 3.. Subsection 3.1. Peer Support
Services. Paregraph S.t.V. Subparagraph 3.1.1.2. to read:

3.1.1.2. Maintaining a safe physical location that:

3.1.1.2.1 Is open a minimum total of forty-four (44) hours per week, eight (8) hours
per day. five days per week and four (4) hours on one (1) additional day per
week al each tocalion; and

3.1.1.2.2. Provides face-to-faoe or telephone peer support services to peer support
agency members or others who contact the peer support agency at a
minimum of forty (40) hours per week al each location.

5. Modify Exhibli A - Amendment #3, Scope of Services. Section 11. Reporting. Subsection 11.3.. to
read:

II.3. The Contractor shall provide lo the Department by the fifteenth (15"') of the month following
the end of each quarter, ihe prior quarter's Board of Director meeling irxnules. with all
attachments. Including, but not limited to. the Executive Director's report and Board of
Direciors' Roster.

b. Add Exhibit A - Amendmeni Scope of Services. Section 11. Reporting. Subsection 11.5.. to

ILThoAlismaiv© Lire Center AmcndmoniM ConUadorlniOtf*
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New Hampshire Department ot Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

.-1

read:

115 The Contractor shall subrrtii a querteiiy written report to the Department, on a form supplied
by the Department, no later than the flHeenth (tS'^J ot the month following the quarter
r^ardlng;

7. Modify Exhibit A - Amendment (*3. Scope of Services. Se^cn 12. DelivoraWes. Subsection 12.1..
to read'

12.1. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of fifteen (15) hours ol in-house services at ead>
Center each week including up to five (5) hours conducted in the center's community or
region, es approved by the Depertmenl. ensuring lin-house services indude. but are not
linked to;

12.1.1. New topics iiitiuduceU al least niOMlhly.

12.1.2. A minimum of five (5) sepereta discussion groups per week that address emotional
weitbeing lopics. which may Indude, but are not lim'ited to:

12.1.2.1. IPS

12.1.2.2. WRAP.

12.1.2.3. WHAM.

12.1:2.4. Setting boundaries.

12.1.2.5. PosHive thinking.

12.1.2.6. Wellness.

12.1.2.7. Stress manegement. ^

12.1.2.8. Addressing trauma

12.1.2.9. Reduction of negative or Intmsive t^ughts.

12.1.2.10. Management of emolionel steles irKluding. but nollimited to;

12.1.2.10.1. Anger.

12.1.2.10.2. Oepression.

12.12.10.3 Anxiety.

12,1.2.10.4. Mania.

12.1.3. A minimum off five (5) discussion or practice groups par week that address physical
wellbeing topic, which may include, but are not limited to:

-  12.1.3.1. Smoking cessation.

12.1.3.2. Weightiosfi.

12.1.3.3. Nutrition and cooking.

12.1.3.4. Physical exercise.

12.1.3.5. Mlndfulness activities, induding but r>ot limited to:

12.1.3.5.1. Yoga

12.1.3.5.2.. .Moditotlon. '

12.1.3.5.3. Journaling.

12.1.4. A minimum of four (4) activity groups per week lhat provide posKive sklll-bullldng activlUes.

Tr».Mic«n«woLKo Center . ."mendffleniW ComfSCtorirtHBlt Fa*
RFP.2O17.B0H-O2.PEERS-O0.AO4 PageZoie



New Hampshire Department ol Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

which may Include but are not limited to;

12.1.4.1. Arts and crafts.

12.1.4.2. Music expression.

12.1.4.3. Creative wming.

12 1 4 4 Cooklr^g.

12.1.4.5. Sewing.

12.1.4.6. Gardening.

12.1.4.7. Movies.

12.1.5. A minim at one (1) group per week baaed on topics relevant to fostering independence
which may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.5.1. Online t^ogs or articles that relate to mental health.

12.1.5.2. Obtaining employment

12.1.5.3. Budgeting.

12.1.5.4. Decision*maKin9.

12.1.5.5. Setf-advocacy.

8. Add Exhibit A - Amendment «3. Scope of Services. Section 13. Quality Improvement. Subsection
13.5,. to read:

13.5. The Coniractor shall provide ail requested audits within ten (10) days of the request by the
Department.

9. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment «2. Methods end Conditions Precedent to Peymerrt. Section 5.. to
read:

5. Subaoqueiil to tiio action In Saclion 4., llw Depaitrnent shall make monlhly paynwiila to tiio
Contractor based upon cost reimbursemenl. as submitted by the Contreciof to maintain
services end as approved by the Oepartmant, of the Department approved budget amounts In
Exhibit B-1 Budget Form through Exhibit B-6 Amendmeril <t3 SPY 2022 Budget.
5.1. In no event shall the total of the inHial payment In Section 4. end monthly payments In

Section 5. exceed the budget arhounls set forth In Section 5.

5.2. The Oapartrheni will adjust monthly payments for expenditures set forth In Section 9.;
below and amounts paid to initiate services in Section 4., above.

5.2. Expenditures shell be in accordance with the budgets identified in Section 5.. as
approved by the Department. .

5.3. Allowable costs end expenses shall be detemraned by the Deparlmen!. in eccordsnoe
with applicable state and federal laws end reguletions.

10. Modify Exhibit B'. Amendment U2. Methods and Condillons Precedent to Payment. Section 6.. lo
reed:

6. NotwIlhstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes limited to
adjusting amounts within the price limiietion and adjusting encumbrances between Slate
Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the [Budget OfHce may be made by written
agreement of both parlies, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
' if needed end justified.

RFP-20l7.BBH.02:PeER5-06-AW Pftfl# 3 ol6 Daia



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

11. fWtodify Exhibit 0-4 by deleting Hs content iri its entirety and replacing a with Exhibit 8-4 Amendment
• 04. SPY 2020 Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit B-4 - Amendment 04. SPY 2021 Budget, which ie attached hereto end incorporated
by reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit B-6 - Amendment 04. SPY 2022 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

M.Tho Anomstivo UTe Conto> Anion<^0(M94 Conifocior irvilfils.

RFP.2017BBM02PEERS-06-AW P«oo<ol6 Palo



New Hampstiire Oepartment of Health and Hufnan Services
Peer Support Services

Al) lerms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inoonsisleni with this Amendment 04
remain in full force end effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Ex^tive

Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set liieir hands as of the date written belcM.

State of New Hampshire
Depadment of Health and Human Services

Date rnp: Ketja A. Fox
d: Director

The Alternative Life Center

an

Title: J fl-eO'CO-TCf

Tb» Ahernatlve uio Center

RFP.2017-BBH 02 PEERS-0e-AO4

Amendment 04
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is eppfoved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/3/20

Date Name:
Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify thet the foregoing Amendment wres approved by the Governor end Exeeutive'Coundl of
the State of Now Hempshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Nanrte:
Title:

Tho Allvnotiv* Ul« C«ntflr Am«ndnieniM

RFP20l7e8HQ2PEERS-Oe-A04 Pageeoie



Exhibit B-4 • Amndimnt 04

8FY 2020 Budo«t
New Hampehiro Depertmont of KMtlh end Human 8er>^eot

Contractor N«me: TTw Anarrullvt Ltia Contor

tudfot Requbst for Peoi Buppert Bervieai

Budofli period: SPYTO (7nn» ihrouart (kOfi/ZDi

lliMllsniUudoqt- |
IfMerenBdNunbisr ILine Itsn'SuKl^ DekrIpUon. Tdtol'AniouRl-

odd P^ONNEL COSTS • • r ■; • -1, «

601 C«loiv & Wmm 390.010

002- Empiovoo.Soneftt 22.61S
.603 Po^tnxM 22406

6uatolBl 336,030
620 PROFESSIONAL PEES .....; .

624 Aooountlna 0,000
629 Audit F««a
026 Ljiqal Few 1  90
R7- Other Proleulonal Pees end Cermthonta

Buiitaiel 0,030
030 bTAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TTUUNtNO
631 PubOcsdora end Joumab
632 Irt'ServIco Tralnlno 3.000
633 ConfatenaeflendCenvonOent
634' OihorSton Dovotapmerd

Subtotal 9,000
040 OCCUPANCY COSTS "I. • >. •

641 Rofll 46040
642 Mortooflo Povments
643 Heatlna Coeia
644 Other LmiUea . 4.400
64S MalntonarKeandRonlia 630
.646 Toxos
647 Other Occupancy Costs

Sutatdtel 62,100
cU CONSUMABLE 8UPPUE8 •  ' 1. - '
6SI ONce 3.090
652 ButkUno/Househokt eoo

653 .RehebUtnttorVTreli4no
655 Food
657' Other Conoumnbie BuppOco

Buttot&l 3.880
Other Expenses

660 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
685. DEPREClA'nON
hit ^6Ui^ENT RENTAL 2.400
eeO EOUtPMEKTMAiNTENANCE 1
>w. AOVERTISINO i

PRIMTINO
720 TELEPHONETCOMMUNICATIONS ! t.WfJ
730 POSTAGE/SHIPPINO 200

SubtOlDl s.eoo
740 TRANSPORTATION /'V \ '• '
•741 Bocrd Membero
>42 Btefl tO.810.
743- Members end Portldpsnis 1.000

Oubteie) 11.010
760 Assistance to Indlvldustt < •• w

751 CfeniBervioee
.752

Subtotal
760 INSURANCE .i.' 1
701 Melpmctlce S Bortdina 9.000
762 VeMclee XOOO
763 Cornprehon^e Property & UeblSly 1.500
600 OTHER EXPENOrrURES 1.447
601 INTEREST EXPENSE-

Bubtotnl 8.047

1
YdYALFR66HAM I434.&0B

ftPP.30t7^e8>iO2-^ERSf0&^
ExNtf) a-SAnwttiunli

Psgeleri
■Connctai Iniiitti

Oxt« ' 1̂^96



Evhlblt B-6 - AmindmanI 04

SPY 2021 Budgoi

Now Kam'pshira Oepbitmont of Heallh'ahd Humon Servleoo
Cont/sclor Nome: Ibe AhomsiJva Lite Center

iudaet Roduesl for Poor Ouppon Services

Budoet Period: 8PY21 antn ttirouoh V30/21)
•

iiw itsm uudoet

RaferenaRumtier Uhsltsm'S^Bol Osaarlpttefl . Tbtil'Asieuitl

600 PER80NNEL-C09TB .1 » ■»» .•- ■

eOt Cebiy&WenM 909,0»
602 Enoiovec Bencfll 22,615
603 PovroOtaxoe 22.468.

Bukotal 332.030
eift ^Rd^^s^ioMALI^^ES
824 Aocountha e.000
829 Audit Foes
620 Leeel Fees 30
627 Otner PiotoBlaruil Fees end Consutlana

BubutBl 0A3O
tii StAlif^bEVELOPMENTANOTRAlNINO ,  . . . . , ̂ ~

691 PiMcotiom and Joumats )

632 tt><8onrice Tmlnino 3.000
699 Conleiencei end Conventhmt.
634 Ottun Stan;Deve)opment

RifMnlnl - 3,000
646 oddUpANcvcosTB
041 Rent 46.0*1
043 Monooao Povmenis
643 HoeUnoCosts
044 Other dmitioe 4.400
64S MiSntenanee end Repairs UO

04S Tnos
047 Otiter Occupencv Costs

Subtotal 63.191

esi otftco 000

652 BUJdino/Household
653 RahfltuiaUon/TnilnlnQ
eSS..PDed
657 Other ConsumobieSuDOiIca

Subtotol 800
Other Expenses •  •—

660 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
66S DEPR^ClAYldKI
670 EQUIPMENT RENTAL- 2.400
6S0 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE •
700 A0UERT181NG
710 PRJNTlNG
720 TELEPHON£AX)MMUNICATiONS 3.0UI
730 POTTACE/SHtPPlNG 300

SubtoteJ 6.666
740 TRANSPORTATION -r*
Wl booid Members
742 Smti V 6750
,743 Members end Portlcipanta 1.000

Subtotol 9.750
7N Assistsnce to Individual)
751 Clent Scrvlooe
752 Clothtno

Subtotal
760 INSURANCE
701 Mehxactieo 6 Bendinn 6.000
762 Vohlclas' 1.000
763 Comprahenstva PrepertY 4 Uablltv 1,500
600 OTHER EXPENOtTURES t.X47
001 INTEREST EXPENSE

Subtotn) 9.947

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES i4i8.i46

RFP:2017'eaH4Q-PE
EiNtt frS A/undmtni M
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Eihibil • Amsndmont 94

Now Ha

Contractor Nama:

Raquoat for

Budgot Ported:

SPY 2022 BudBOt
mpihiro Deparimant of Health end Human Servtces

The ARemeilve Life Cemer

Peer Support Services '

8FY23 W\m threuoh 0/30/221

Upoltcm SuOget'
Roforenoo'Number; ,Uiw 1tm Budgei Oescrlpdori 1 Tetsl Ameuni

(00 PERSONNEL C09T8 ,f .1 !.. • • •

601. Balsiy 4 Wooes 297630

■002 Employee Bcneni nois
603 PevroQ texot 27466

SURSIBI 33s;030
020 PRORESSIGNAL FEES
094 AocounUna 0.000
620 AudtiFeeo
620 LoasI Fees 30

637 Ot^ Protosslonsi Foes end Cor»uuna
CuHoteJ 0.030

631 PubStcsUont end Joumsb
632 IrvSoMco TreWno 7000
633 Conferences ervt Cenventtera
634 Oiner Stan Oeveiopmenl

SutRels) 9.000
040 OCCUPANCY COSTS
041 Rent 40.041
042 Morlsaoe Porments
043 HeetinaCosb
044 Other UUflUes 4.40)
64S Malnlenonco ond Rooalra &S0
040 Tores
047 Othor.Occupenq; Cods

Subtotal 671S1
050 CONSUMABL£ 6UPPUEB
651 Oflce BOO
652 Biiidtnn/liousekoU
653 RehebijU&tlon/Trainlna
eos Food
657 Other Comumeble SupoVte

Sublots] BOO
Other Expenses •:..t. • f».- •-•p.

bed
005 DEPR£CIAtk>rJ
670 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2.400
600 EQUlPMErlT'MA)NrEKU)feE
700 AOVERTIStNC
710 PRINTING
720 telephoneicommunicatioMs 3.UW

•730 PO9TA0E/6HIPPIN0 200
Subtotal 6A00

740 TRANSPORTATION ~ r, • • -•
74V Board MofTtMis
742 san- 0.760
743 Membete and Pnrtlelpnnts 1.000

Subtotal 0.750
700 Assistance to I ndlvfdusis «i. •:

751 Clent Services
752

Sutdolnl
7(0 INSURANCE .
701 Malproctlce 0' Bortdlnn 6.000
762 Vofildn I.OOD
763 Comorohonslvo Prooortv & UnbtSiv 1.500
BOO OTHER EXPENI3tTlJRF.8 1.447
BOt INTEREST EXPENSE

Subtotal B.047
1
1  TOTAL PR06ttAJi)
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JelTr«y A. Meyers
Commissioner

Kilja S. Fox
Director

.Jur405'7.9

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 23. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, Ne\N Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
exercise renewal options and amend existing agreements with the vendors listed below to continue
providing peer support services to adults with mental illness by increasing the total price limitation
by $2,659,479 from $8,280,837 to $10,940,316 and by extending the completion date from June
30. 2019 to June 30, 2020, effective July 1, 2019 or upon Governor and Executive Council approval
whichever is later. 55.45% Federal Funds, 44.55% General Funds.

Vendor Name
Vendor

Number
Location

Contract

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Contract

Amount

G&C Approval

Connections Peer

Support Center
#157070-

8001
Portsmouth $734,466 $243,078 $977,544

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

H.E.A.R.T.S Peer

Support Center
#209287-

8001
Nashua $1,146,234 $387,091 $1,533,325

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

Lakes Region
Consumer Advisory

Board

#157060-

8001
Laconia $1,018,137 $337,411 $1,355,548

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

Monadnock Area

Peer Support Agency
#157973-

8001
Keene $792,342 $275,105 $1,067,447

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

On the Road to

Recovery, Inc.
#158839-

8001
Manchester $1,328,574 $410,549 $1,739,123

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

The Stepping Stone
Drop-In Center
Association

#157697-

B001
Claremont $1,135,035 $385,119 $1,520,154

0:06/29/16 #23

A1: 6/20/18#33B

The Altemative Life
Center

#168081-

8001
Conway $1,572,228 $428,348 $2,000,576

,0:06/29/16 #23

A1:06/21/17#38

A2: 6/20/18#338

Tri-City Consumers'
Action Co-operative

#157797-

8001
Rochester $553,821 $192,778 $746,599

0:06/29/16 #23

A1:6/20/18#33B

Total $8,280,837 $2,659,479 $10,940,316



Financial Detail

Lakes Reflion Consumer Advisory Board

Vertdor # 157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  151.196.00 $ $  151.196.00

2018 Contrads for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  151.196.00 $ S  151.196.00

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 % $ s

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 % S s .

Subtotal $  302,392.00 $ $  302,392.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Aoency

Vendors 157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(l>ecrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S  117.665.00 $ $  117.665.00

2018 Contracts lor Proa Svs 102-500731 $  117.665.00 $ 5  117.665.00

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ $ 5

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5 $ S

Subtotal %  235.330.00 $ $  235,330.00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Repion VI

Vendor« 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  170,218.00 $ S  170.218.00

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  170.218.00 S S  170.218.00

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ s s

2020 Contracts lor FYoa Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

Sut>totai ' %  340.436.00 5 5  340,436.00

On the Road to Recovery, Inc.

Vendors 158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S 197.296.00 $ $  197.296.00

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 % 197.296.00 $ $  197.296.00

2019 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 % . $ 5

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S . $ S

Subtotal I 394,592.00 $ 5  394,592.00

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor« 157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  109.071.00 $ S  109.071.00

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  109.071.00 5 $  109.071.00

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 % $ s

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 % S s

Subtotal i  218,142.00 S 5  218.142.00

TrI-City Consumers' Action Co-operatlvo

Vendor# 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  82.245.00 $ S  82.245.00

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  82.245.00 $ S  82.245.00

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5 S S

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S $ s

Subtotal 5  164,490.00 s $  164,490.00

1  SUB TOTAL % 2,458,736.00 S  2,458,736.00

05-95-92-922010-4118 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV.

BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES
100% General Funds

AclMtyCode: 92204116

The Alternative Life Center

Page 3 of 6



FInsnda'Detail

VerKjor i 068801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts lor Proo Svs 102-500731 s S $

2018 Contracls lor Proa Svs 102-500731 $ i S .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  233.122.00 i . 233.122.00

2020 Contracls for Proa Svs 102-500731 s $ 190.832,00 190.632,00

Subtotal %  233.122.00 s 190.832.00 5 423.954.00

The Stepping Stone Orop-ln Certter Association

Vendor# 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 % $ $

2016 Contracts lor Proa Svs 102-500731 % $ $ -

2019 Contracls for FToa Svs 102-500731 $  168.555.00 $ . $ 168,555.00

2020 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 s S 171.573.00 5 171.573,00

Subtotal t  166.555.00 5 171.573.00 $ 340,126.00

Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor# 157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

' Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s 5 S

2016 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ $ $ -

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  151.196.00 - s 151.196.00

2020 Contracls for Proa Svs 102-500731 S i 150.319,00 % 150.319.00

Subtotal $  151.196.00 S 150.319.00 s 301,515.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency

Vendor# 157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount IrKrease/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ S $

2018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s S S -

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $  117.665.00 s - i 117.665.00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 % $ 122.561,00 % 122.561.00

Subtotal $  117,665.00 s 122.561,00 5 240.226.00

H.£JLR.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI

vendor #209267

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount,

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2016 Contracls for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ - S S -

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5 170,218.00 S - S 170,218.00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ 5 194.727.00 % 194.727.00

Subtotal 5 170,218.00 $ 194.727.00 5 364,945.00

On the Road to Rocovery. inc.

Vendor# 158839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ $ 5

2016 Contracls for Proa Svs 102-500731 S . $ $ -

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s 197.296.00 S . $ 197.296.00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s . s 162,903.00 S 182,903.00

Subtotal $ 197.296.00 $ 162.903,00 5 360.199.00

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor#157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ 5 S

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S - S % -

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ 109,071.00 s - $ 109,071.00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5 . s 108,294.00 S 108_,294,00

Subtotal $ 109,071.00 s 106,294.00 $ 217,365.00

Page 4 of 6



Financial Detail

Tri-Cltv Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor# 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $ $

2018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s $ S

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S  82.245.00 $ $  62.245.00

2020 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $ $  58,159.00 $  58.159.00

Subtotal $  82.245.00 $  58.159.00 $  140,404.00

SUBTOTAL 1 1 tS 1,229,368.00 I $ 1,179,368.00 1$ 2,408,736.00

05-95-92-922010-4120 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV.
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

100% Federal Funds

Activity Code; 92204120

The Alternative Lite Center

Vendor # 068801

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s $ %

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S $ S

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  290.154.00 $ S  290.154,00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ S  237.516.00 $  • 237,516.00

Subtotal $  290,164.00 $  237,516.00 $  627,670.00

The Stepping Stone Drop-In Center Association

Vendor# 157967

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s $ $

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ S $ -

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S  209.790.00 $ - $ 209.790.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S 213.546.00 $ ^ 213.546.00

Subtotal $  209,790.00 $ 213,546.00 $ 423,336.00

Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor# 157060

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ . S $ .

2019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 s 188.183,00 $ - S 188.183.00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $ 187.092.00 S 187.092.00

Subtotal s 188,163.00 S 187.092.00 $ 376,276.00

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency

vendor #157973

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5 $ $

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 6 . S $ -

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 * 148.449.00 . S 146,449.00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S . % 152.544.00 ? 152,544,00

Subtotal $ 146,449.00 i 152.544.00 $ 298,993.00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Reg on VI

Vendor« 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget'
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Conlracis for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ $ %

2018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S . $ i .

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ 211.860.00 S • s 211.860,00

2020 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 6 . $ 192,364,00 s 192.364.00

Subtotal $ 211.860.00 6 192,364.00 $ 404,224.00

Page 5 of 6



Financial Detail

On tti« Road to Rocovory, Inc.

Vendor f 156839

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ S S

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ . S s .

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ 245.562.00 $ - $ 245.562.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ - s 227.646.00 5 227.646.00

Sutnotai $ 245,562.00 $ 227.646.00 $ 473,206.00

Connections Peer Support Center

Vendor# 157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S $ $

2018 • Contracts lor Proo Svs 102-500731 S .  - $ $ .

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S 135,751.00 S - $ 135.751.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ . % 134.784.00 S 134.784.00

Subtotal / $ 135,751.00 5 134.784.00 $ 270,535.00

Tri-City Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor# 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ S $

2018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ $ 5

2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S  102.362.00 s $  102.362.00

2020 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $ $  134.619.00 $  134.619.00

Subtotal %  102,362.00 S  134.619.00 $  236,981.00

1$ 1.530.111.00 t < 1,480,111.00 1$ 3.010.222.o61ISU8 TOTAL

05-95-91-910010-5710 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEFT OF. HHS: GLENCLIFF HOME FOR ELDER,
GLENCLIFF HOME, PROFESSIONAL CARE

80% Other Funds/ 20% General Funds

Activity Code: 91000000

The Attenatlve Life Center

Vendor #068801

State Fiscal Year Class TiUe Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2016 Consultants 046-500464 S  1.200.00 S $  1.200.00

2019 Consultants 046-500464 S  1.200.00 S 5  1.200.00

2020 Consultants 046-500464 S s $

Subtotal S  2,400.00 5 $  2,400.00

SUB TOTAL 2.400.00 % IT 2,400.00

$  8,280.837.00 1$ 2,659.479.00 | $ 10,940,316.001TOTAL

Page 6 of 6



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
pfiflf Support Services

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Service
Amendment #3 to the Peer Support Services Contract

This 3"" Amendment to the Peer Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendmerft «")
is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter
referred to as the "State" orT)epartmenr) and The Alternative Life Center (hereinafter refened to as
Ihe Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 6 Main Street. Conway, NH.
03818.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Execi^ve
Council on June 29. 2016 (Item #23) as amended on June 21. 2017 (ltem#38) and June 2^2018
(ltem#33B), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18. the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
WHEREAS. aH terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain In full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 17. Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2020.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1,8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,000,576.

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for Slate Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White. Director.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read;

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A - Amendment #2, Scope of Sen/ices in its entirety and replace with ̂ ibit A -
Amendment #3, Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment in Its entirety and replace with
Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment - Amendment #3.

7. Add Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #3. SFY 2020 Budget.

8. Delete Exhibit C, Special Provisions. Section 9, Audit, In its entirety.

9. Delete Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements V4 In its entirety and replace with
Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements V5.

The Altemative Life Center Amendment #3
RFP-2017-BBH-02-PeERS-06 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
PBQf Support Sarvlces

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parhes have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

I  « Name; Katja S. Fox
Title; Director

The Alternative Life Center

Name; ,

Titte;
Date

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature;

State of . County of_^25L^ S —. t)efore the
undersigned officer, personalty appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity Indicated above.

ignature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires; .
^  Myfe^wiiiilcii &pfc^Ootob<ra> 2023

The Akemativc Life Center Amendment #3
RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Pase 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
pftprSuo^rt Services
The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to fomn, substance, and
exertion.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

I hereby certify that the forogping Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

The Alternative Life Center Amendment #3
RFP-2017.BBH-02-PEERS-08 Page 3 of 3



Nftw Hampshire Doparimsnt of Hsalth and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A' Amendment #3

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to Alt Services
j 1 The Contractor will submit a detailed description of tt>e language assistance sen/ices

they .will provide to persons with Umlted English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to ttie ortent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify ̂ rvlce priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule He-M 402, Peer Support, that will;

1.3.1. Increase quality of life for persons living with mental illness in NH.

1.3.2. Increase hope for and beUef In the possibility of recovery for persons living
with mental illness in NH.

1.3.3. Increase choice regarding the services and supports available to persons
living with mental illness In NH.

1.3.4. Provide attematlves to and reduce the use of more restrictive and expensive
services such as hospitalization.

1.3.5. Increase social connectedness for persons living with mental Illness in NH.

1.3.6. Increase satisfaction with peer support services.

1.4. The Contractor agrees to provide mental health peer support senrices to persons 18
years of age or older who self-identify as a recipient, as a former recipient, or at a
significant risk of becoming a recipient of mental health services, and may indude
persons who are homeless.

1.5. The Contractor agrees to give priority of peer support services to consumers who are
age sixty (60) and over, who are most social isolated, and/or risk of placement in the
public mental health service delivery system.

1.6. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage, or disposition of Part 2 substance use disorder (SUD)
Information or records aeated by a Part 2 provider the information or records shall be
subject to all safeguards of 42 CFR Part 2.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide m-house arxl community based services for Region I as
outlined in NH Administrative Rule He-M 425.03. Designation of Community Mental
Health Regions. Table 425-1, Towns and Cities by Region, and in accordance with
this Agreement.

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contracior Initials;

RFP-2017-BBH.02-P6ERS^ Page 1 of 19 Date;



Nftw Himp«hire Department of Health and Human Servlcee
Peer Support Servicee

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

2. Definitions

2.1. Board of Directors means the governing body of a nongovernmental Peer Support
Agency.

2.2. Consumers are any individual. 18 years of age or older, who self identifi^ as a
recipient, as a former recipient, or as a significant risk of becoming a reapiwt of
publically funded mental health services.

2.3. ̂ Culturally Competent means having attained the knowledge, skills, arvj attitudes
necessary to provide effective supports, services, educaton and technical assistar>ce
to the populations in the 1 senred by the Contractor.

2.4. Business Days are defined as Monday through Friday, excluding Saturday and
Sunday.

2.5. Guests are any persons who are invited to visit the Peer Support Agency by a
member, participant, or ttie Peer Support Agency.

2.6. Homeless Is (1) an Individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate
nighttime residence) or (2) an individual or family who has a primary nighttime
residence that is a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to
provide temporary living accommodations (including welfare hotels and congregate
shelters), an Institution other than a penal facHity that provides temporary residence
for individuals intended to be institutionalized, or a public or private place not
designed for, or ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping accommodation for human
beings.

2.7. Management staff means staff that is responsible for supervising other staff and
volunteers affiliated with the program.

2.8. Members are any consumers, virho have made an informed decision to join, and
agree to, abide by, and support the goals and objectives of peer support services.

2.9. Mental Illness Is defined in RSA 135-0:2 X, namely, "a substantial impairment of
emotional processes, or of the ability to exercise conscious control of ones actions, or
of the ability to perceive reality or to reason, when the impairment is manifested by
instances of extremely abnormal behavior or extremely faulty perceptions. It does not
include impairment primarily caused by: (a) epilepsy; (b) intellectual disability; (c)
continuous or noncontinuous periods of intoxication caused by suljstances such as
alcohol or drugs; or (d) dependence upon or addiction to any substance such as
alcohol or drugs."

2.10. Participant means a consumer, wirtio is not member, who participates in any aspect of
peer support services.

2.11. Peer Support Agency (PSA) means an organization whose primary purpose is to
provide culturally appropriate peer support to persons 18 year of age and older who
self- identify as havmg a mental Illness.

2.12. Recovery means for a person with a mental Illness, development of personal and
social skills, beliefs and characters that support choice, Increase quality of life,
minimize or eliminate impairment, and decrease dependence on professional
services.

2.13. Region is the geographic area of cities and towns in New l-lampshlre. as d^tned by
the Department. ^

The Alternative Life Center Exhil)it A Amendment Contractor Initials;

RFP-2017.BBH-02-PEERS^ Pa0e2of19 Date:j2l2?V^



N«w Hamp«h4re Dopartmant of Heatth and Human Sorvleaa
Pear Support Services

Exhibit A • Amendment #3

2.14. Serious Mental Illness (SMI) refers to individuals whom the state defmes as having
either Serious Mental llir^ess (SMI) or Serious and Persistent Merrtal Illness (SPMI)
pursuant to N.H. Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C:2. XV.

2.15. Quarter or Quarteriy is defined as the periods of July 1 through Septemt>er 30,
October 1 through December 31. January 1 through March 31. and April 1 through
June 30.

2.16. Week is defined as Monday through Sunday.

3. Scope of Services
3.1. Peer Support Services

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support services that are provided for
consunrers and by cortsumers , indudirrg, but not Ihnlted to:

3.1.1.1. Peer support services that include supportive interactions
shared experiences, acceptance, tmst, respect, lived
experience, and mutual support among members, participants,
staff and volunteers.

3.1.1.2. No less than forty-four hours of peer support services each
week, by face-to-face or by teleplwne to members of a peer
support agericy or others who contact the agency.

3.1.1.3. Peer support services at a minimum based on the Intentional
Peer Support model that:

3.1.1.3.1. Foster recovery from mental illness by helping
Individuais identify and achieve personal goals
while building an evolving vision of their recovery.

3.1.1.3.2. Foster self-advocacy skills, autonomy, and
independerKe.

3.1.1.3.3. Emphasize mutuality and reciprocity as
demonstrated by shared dedsion-making. strong
conflict resolution, r>on-medlcal approaches to
help, and non-static roles, such as, staff who are
memt>ers arxl memt)ers who are educators.

3.1.1.3.4. Offer altemative views on mental heatth, mental
illness and the effects of trauma and abuse.

3.1.1.3.5. Encourage informed decision-making about all
aspects of people's lives.

3.1.1.3.6. Support people with mental illness In challenging
perceived self-limitations, while encouraging the
development of t>eliefs that enhance personal and
relational growth.

3.1.1.3.7. Emphasize a holistic approach to health that
includes a vision.of the "Nvhole' person.

The Allemativ© Life Center Exhibrt A AmerKtment #3 Contrador Initials.

RFP-2017-BBH-O2-PEERS-O6 Page3ol 19 Date: 5'03'!^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

3.1.1.4.

3.1.1.5.

3.1.1.6.

3.1.1.7.

3.1.1.8.

3.1.1.9.

3.1.1.10.

3.1.1.11.

Provide opportunrties to team wellness strategtes. by using at a
minimum Wellness Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) and
Whole Health Action Management (WHAM), to strengthen a ,
member's and participant's ability to attain and maintain their
health and recovery from mental illness.

Provide In-house and community-based sennces according to
the Deliverables in Subsection 12.1 through 12.2.5.

Provide outreach by faoe-to-face or by telephone contact with
consumers by providing support to those who are unable to
attend agency activities, visiting people who are hospitalized
with a psychiatric condition, and reaching out to people who
meet membership criteria and are homeless.

Provide monthly rwwsletters published by the peer support
agency that descril)es agency services and activrties. other
community services, social and recreational opportunities,
member articles and contributions and other relevant topics that
might be of interest to members and participants.

Distribute the Newsletters to the members and other interested
parties, such as community mental health centers and other
appropriate community organizations, at least five (5) business
days prior to the upcoming month.

Provide Monthly Education Events and Presentations of
information germane to issues and concerns of consumers of
mental health services which shall include, education topics to
be covered over the course of the year, but not limited to:

3.1.1.9.1.

3.1.1.9.2.

Rights Protection.

Peer Advocacy,

3.1.1.9.3. Recovery,

3.1.1.9.4. Employment,

3.1.1.9.5. Wellness Management, and

3.1.1.9.6. Community Resources.

Provide at least 5 days prior to the beginrang of the month, to
the Office of Consumer and Family Affairs within the
Departments Bureau of Behavioral Health, and the Mental
Health Block Grant State Planner and Mental Health Block
Grant Advisory Council, both electronic and a paper copy of the
monthly newsletters and education events in Section 3.2.1.16
and Section 3.2.1.18.

Provide Individual Peer Assistance by assisting adults to:

3.1.1.11.1. Locate, obtain, and maintain mental health
services and supports through referral, consumer
education, and self-empowerment.

The Alternative Life Center
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3.1.1.11.2. Support Individuals who are Identifying problems
by assisting them in addressing the Issue and/or in
resolving grievanoes.

3.1.1.11.3. Promote self-advocacy.

3.1.1.12. Provide Employment Education by assisting members with:
3.1.1.12.1. Information on obtaining and maintaining

competitive employment (any employment open to
the general public and achieved during the
quarter, even if employment is time llmhed).

3.1.1.12.2. Referrals to community mental health centers
employment programs.

3.1.1.12.3. Employment related activities such as. but not
limited to, resume writing, Interviewing, or
assistance with employment applications.

3.1.1.13. Inform the members and general public about the peer
supports and wellness services available arKl provide monthly
Community Education Presentations to potential referral
sources, funders. or families of individuals affected by mental
illness, about mental illness and the peer support community.

3.1.1.14. Inform local human service providers and the general public
about the stigma of mental illness, wellness and recovery and
collaborate with other local human service providers that senre
consumers in order to faclRtate referrals and share infomnatlon
about services and other local resources.

3.1.1.15. Provide training and technical assistance to help consumers on
their own behalf regarding healthcare such as but not limited to.
sharing techniques for being ready for a doctor's appointment
how to take hates, how to use the physician's desk reference
book for medications and a review of patient rights.

3.1.1.16. Invite guests to participate in peer support activities.

3.1.1.17. Provide residential support services as needed by members
and participants by providing support and assistance such as
but not limited to help with staying in their home or apartment,
or finding a place to live.

3.1.1.18. Maintain at least a monthfy schedule of peer support and
weUness services arwJ activities, staff development and training,
and other related events including community-based services
and community outreach events.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide transportation services to members, participants and
guests as follows:

3.2 1. Through use of a Contractor-owned or leased vehicle, the Contractor will:

The AJterrative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
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3 211 Transport members, participants, guests to and from their
homes and/or the Contractor's peer support agency to
participate in activities such as but not limited to:

3.2.1.1.1. Peer Support Services.

3.2.1.1.2. Wellnessand Recovery Activities.

3.2.1.1.3. Annual Conferences.

3.2.1.1.4. Regional Meetings.

3.2.1.1.5. Council Meetings.

3 2 2 Comply with all applicable Federal and State Department of Transportation
and Department of Safety regulations such as but not limited to:
3.2.2.1. Vehicles must be registered pursuant to NH Administrative

Rule Saf-C 500.

3.2.2.2. Vehicles must be inspected in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule Saf-C 3200.

3.2.2.3. Drivers must t>e licensed in accordance with NH Administrative
Rule Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing.

3.2.3. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehicles sign a State of New Hampshire Release of Indh^ual Motor
Vehicle Driver Records form that shows the driver has a safe driving record.

3 2 4 Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehicles complete a National Safety Council Defensive Dnvmg
course offered through a State of New Hampshire approved agency.

3.3. The Contractor shall acknowledge that fundir>g from the Department to support
transportation costs may not be used for other than peer support related activities
defined In this Agreement., and on an as needed basis to pay for bus rides that are
necessary to provide peer support services.

3.4. Peer Support Services to Glenclifr Home Residents

3.4.1. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support services as in Exhibit
A, Section 3.1.1.3 once a month to Glencliff Home residents who have
approval from the Director of Nursing for said services as follows:
3.4.1.1. Provide in a group setting at Glendiff Home by a trained Peer

Support Team Leader, for up to a one (1) hour session.

3.4.1.2. Schedule peer support group sessions at least two weeks in
advance on the meeting date with approval of the Glencliff
Home's Social Service Staff Member and Activities Director.

3.4.1.3. Maintain a list of Glencliff Home residents that attended each
peer support group session and provide a copy of the list to the
Social Service Staff member or Activities Director following
each group session.

The Atternative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contradorlnitiats

RFP-2017.BBH-02-PEERS-06 Page 6 of 19 Date:



New Hampshire Departmenl of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

3.5. Warmllne Services

3.5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide warmline services that^rs
telephone peer support services to members, partiapants. and others that.
3.5.1.1. Are primarily provided to any individual who lives or works in

Region 1. or anyone who lives or works elsewhere in the State
of New Hampshire or out-of-state.

3.5.1.2. Are provided during the hours the peer support agency Is
closed.

3 5 1.3. Are mainly provided to irwJIviduals in the Cor\tractor's region
with the ability to receive calls from and make calls to
individuals statewide.

3.5.1.4. Assist individuals in addressing a current crisis related to their
mental health.

3.5.1.5. Refer clients to appropriate treatment and other resources in
the consumer's service area.

3.5.1.6. Are provided by staff that is trained in providing crisis services.
3.5.1.7. May include outreach calls described in Section 3.2.1.5

4. Geographic Area and Physical Location of Services
4.1. The Contractor wriU provide services in this Agreement to Individuals who live or work

in Region 1. and services for consumers statewide.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide peer support sen/ices separately from the confines of a
local mental health center, unless pre-approved by the Department.

4.3. The Contractor agrees to provide a physical location/building to provide peer sup^
services that are in accordance with Exhibit C Section 15 and with the Life Safety
requirements that include but not limited to:

4.3.1 A building in compliance with local health, building and fire safety codes.
4.3.2. A building that is maintained in good repair and be free of hazard.
4.3.3. A building that includes:

4.3.3.1. At least one indoor bathroom which includes a sink and toilet.

4.3.3.2. At least one telephone for incoming and outgoing calls.

4.3.3.3. A functioning septic or other sewage disposal system.

4.3.3.4. A source of potable water for drinking and food preparation as
follows:

4.3,3.4.1. If drinking water Is supplied by a non-puWic water
system, the water shall be tested and found to be
In accordance with New Hampshire Administrative
Rules Env-yVs 315 and Env-Ws 316 Initially and
every five (5) years thereafter.
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4.3.3.4.2. If the water is not approved for drinking, an
alternative method for providing safe drinking
water shall be Implemented.

5. Enrplling Consumers for Services and/or as Members with a Peer
Support Agency
5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services to individuals defined In

Section 1.4 and 1.5 who have a desire to work on wellness issues, and who have a
willing desire to participate in services.

5.2. The Contractor will request consumers complete a membership application to join and
support the activities and mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5 3 The Contractor agrees that the membership application shall stale the minimum
engagement poficy. suspension of membership policy, rules of membership, and that
the consumer supports the mission of the Peer Support Ager*^.

5 4. The Contractor agrees to provide services in this Contract to any consumers who are
non-members or members partidpatlr^g in services.

6. Staffing Requirements for a Peer Support Agency
6.1. The Contractors shall employ an executive director who:

6.1.1, Is appointed by the board of directors.

6 1.2. Is employed by the Contractor and is supervised by the board of directors m
accordance with the published job description and competitive application
process.

6.1.3. Has at a minimum the following qualification:

6.1.3.1. One year of supervisory or managen>ent experience, and
6.1.3.1.1. An associate's degree or higher administration,

business management; education, health, or
human sen/ices; or

6.1.3.1.2. Each year of experience In the peer support field
may be substituted for one year of academic
experience: or

6.1.3.1.3. Each year of experience in the peer support field
may be substituted for one year of academic
experience.

6.1.4. Is evaluated annually by the board of directors to ensure that peer support
and wellness services and activities are provided in accordance with.

6.1.4.1. The performance expectations approved by the board.

6.1.4.2. The Department's poHdes and rules.

6.1.4.3. The Contract terms and conditions.

8.1.4.4. The Quality Improvement reviews.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks specified in this
Agreement.

The Alternative Life Center ExWbit A Amendment fl3 Contrador Initials: .Sl-
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6.3. The Contractor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform arnl carry ̂  all
of the functions, requirements, roles, and duties in a timely fashion for the number of
clients as identified in Section 11.

6 4 The Contractor shall select and employ staff utilizing practices and procedures as
approved by the Department, that Include at a minimum, assurance that offers of
employment are made in writing and include salary, start date, hours to be worked,
and job responsibilities, and that prior employment references shall be obtained and
verified.

6.5. The Contractor shall screen each staff member for tuberculosis prior to employment.
6 6 The Contractor shall complete a Criminal Record Check, and submit the names of a

prospective employee who may have client contact, for review by the Department to
assure that any pierson who is in regular conta^ with members and who becornes
employed by the Contractor or Its Subcontractor after the Effective Date of this
Agreement is screerved for criminal convictions in accordance with RSA 106-6:14
which allows any pul)lic or private agency to request arxl receive a copy of the
criminal conviction record of anottier who has provided authorization In wnting, duly
notarized, explicitly allowing the requester to receive such information.

6.7. The Contractor shall not add, delete, defund, or transfer among programs staff
positions without prior written permission from the Department.

6 8 The Contractor shall develop a Staffing Contingency Plan and shall submit their
written Staffing Contingency Plan to the Department within thirty days of the effective
date of the contract that Includes but not be limited to:

6.8.1. The process for replacement of personnel In the event of loss of key
personnel or other personnel during the period of this Agreement

6.8.2. The description of'how additional staff resources wiil be allocated to support
this Agreement In the event of inability to meet any perfonnance standard.

6.8.3. The description of time frames necessa^ for obtaining staff replacements.
6.8.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, In a timely

manner, staff replacements/additions with comparable experience.

6.9. The Contractor shall submit a staffing emergency plan within thirty days of the
effective date if the contract that includes, but not limited to:

6.9.1. Inclement weather notifications for programming and transportation services.

6.9.2. Emergency evacuation plans for the Agency.

7. Staff Training and Development
7.1. The Contractor shall verify and document that all staff and volunteers have

appropriate training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the responsibilities
of their respective positions, by keeping up-to-date personnel and training records
and documentation of all individuals. Staff training shall be in accordance with NH
State Rule He-M 402.05.

7.2. The Contractor shall provide orientation for all new staff providing p^ support that
includes, but not limited to:

7.2.1. The statewide peer support system.

The Attemalive Life Center ExhiW A Amendment #3 Contractor Initials:
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7.2.2. Alt Department policies and rules applicable to the peer support.

7.2.3. Protection of member and participant rights.

7.2.4. Contractor policies and procedures.

7.2.5. PSA grievance procedures.

7.2.6. Harassment, discrimination, and diversity.

7.2.7. Documentation such as ir»cident reports, attendance records, and telephor^
logs.

7.2.8. ConfidentiaMy according to applicable state rule. Department policy and
state and federal laws.

7.3. The Contractor shall develop and implement written staff development policies
applicable to alt staff that specifically address the followir>g:
7.3.1. Job Descriptions.

7.3.2. Staffing pattem.

7.3.3. Conditions of employment.

7.3.4. Grievance procedures.

7.3.5. Perfomiance reviews.

7.3.6. Indtvidual staff development plans.

7.3.7. Prior employment or volunteer work, each staff member or votunteer shall
demonstrate evidence of or willingness to verify;

7.3.7.1. Citizenship or authorization to work.

7.3.7.2. Motor Vehicle Records check to ensure that potential employee
has a valid driver's license and a safe driving record if such
employee will be transporting members or participants.
Records must also indicate partidpation in a National Safety
Coundl Defensive Driving course offered through a State of
New Hampshire approved agency.

7.3.7.3. Criminal Records Check.

7.3.7.4. Previous employment.

7.3.7.5. References.

7.4. The Contractor shall screen each staff member, prior to employment, for tuberculosis
(TB) as follows:

7.4.1. All newly employed employees. Including those with a history of bacille
calmette guerin (BCG) vacdnation, who will have direct contact with
members and partldpants and the potential for occupationat exposure to
Mantoux TB through shared air space with persons with Infectious TB shall
have a TB symptom screen, consisting of a Mantoux tuberculin skin test or
QuantlFERON-TB test, performed upon employment.

Th» Alternative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor initials:
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7 4 2. Baseline two-stc^ testing, If perfofmed in association with. Mantoux testing,
shall be conducted in accordance with the Guidelines for Environmental
Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities (2003) published by the Centers
lor Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

7 4 3 Employees with a documented history of TB, documented Nstory of a
positive Mantoux test, or documented completion of treatment for TB
disease or latent TB infection may substitute that documentation for the
baseline two^ep test. i

7.4.4. All positive TB test results shall be reported to the department's bureau of
disease control, 271-4469, in accordance with RSA 141-C:7. He-P 301.02
and He-P 301.03.

7 4.5. All employees with a diagnosis of suspect active pulmonary or laryngeal TB
shall be excluded from the PSA until a diagnosis of TB is excluded or until
the employee is on TB treatment and a deterniination has been made that
the employee is rwninfectious.

7.4.6. All employees with a newly positive tutjercuUn skin test shall be excluded
from the PSA until a diagnosis of TB disease is ruled out.

7.4.7. Repeat TB testing shall be conducted in accordance with the CDC's
Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities
(2003).

7.4.8. Those employees with a Nstory of previous positive results shall have a
symptom sCToen and. If symptomatic for TB disease, be referred for a
medical evaluation.

7.5. The Contractor shall complete an annual performance review based on the staffs job
description and conducted by his or her supennsor.

7.6. The Contractor shall complete a staff development plan annually with each staff
person by Ns or her supervisor that is based upon the staffs annual performance
review, and that Includes objectives and methods for improving the staff person's
work-related skills and knowledge.

7.7. The Contractor shall conduct or refer staff to training activities that address objectives
for improving staff competencies and according to the staffs development plan, along
with ongoing training in protection of member and participant rights.

7.8. The Contractor agrees to maintain documentation in files of the staffs completed
trainings and certifications.

7.9. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval 30 days prior to the training date, for
all trainings provided by the Contractor or to attend trainings other than offered by the
Contractor for staff at least on an annual basis such as but not limited to;

7.9.1. Peer Support.

7.9.2. Warmline.

7.9.3. Facilitating Peer Support Groups.

7.9.4. Sexual Harassment.

7.9.5. Member Rights.
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7 10 The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support training and its requiredconsuttations to meet certification a minimum of every other year.

7.11. The Contractor agrees tt^at if Intentional Peer Support Is not being offer^ in a given
year the Contractor shall provide Wellness. Recovery, and Planning trying to staff.

7.12. The Contractor agrees that Administrative staff, including the Executive Director, shall
participate in trainings on:

7.12.1. Staff Development.

7.12.2. Supervision.

7.12.3. Performance Appraisals.

7.12.4. Employment Practices.

7.12.5. Harassment.

7.12.6. Program Development.

7.12.7. Complaints and the Complaint Process.

7.12.8. Financial Management.

7 13 The Contractor shall ensure that annual Wellness Training Is available to staff and
members, and may be provided to other mental health consumers who do not identify
themselves as members of a peer support agency in the region.

7 14 The Contractor shall obtain prior approval by the Department at least five (5) days
prior to the training, to provide or refer staff to specific training proposed by either, the
Department or the Contractor.

7.15. The Contractor shall provide documentation to the Department, within 30 days from
the training In Section 7.14. which demonstrates the staff person(s) participation and
completion of said training.

7.16. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Support Agents to offer combined
trainings to facilitate more efficient use of training furxls and to irxxease the scope of
trainings offered.

7.17. The Contractor shall purge all data in accordance with the Instructions from the
Department pertaining to members, participants, and guests who have not received
peer support services within the prior two-year period.

8. Composition and Responsibiiities of a Peer Support Agency
8.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain a status as a Peer Support Agency by:

8.1.1. Being incorporated with the Secretary of State's Office as a non-for-profit
agency.

8.1.2. Having a plan for governance that requires a Board of Directors who:
8.1.2.1. Have the responsibility for the entire management and control

of the property arrd affairs of the corporation.

8.1.2.2. Have the powers usually vested in the t)oard of directors of a
non-for-pr^ corporation.
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8 1 2.3. Are comprised of no fewer than 9 individuals with at least 51%
of the individuate who setf-identify as consumers.

8.1.2.4. Less 20% of the board members are related by blood.
marriaQe. or cohabitation to other board members.

8.1.2.5. Establish and maintain the bylaws that include, but are not
limited to:

8.1.2.5.1. Responsibilities and powers of the Board of
Directors.

8.1.2.5.2. Term limits for the board of director officers that
shall not allow more than 20% of the t>oard
members to serve for more than 6 consecutive
years.

8.1.2.5.3. Nominating process that actively recruits diverse
individuals whose skills and life experiences will
serve the needs of the agency.

8.1.2.5.4. A procedure by which inactive peer support
agency members are removed from the peer
support agency l>oard.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit to the Department within 5 days, a corrective action [^an
with time frames when the Board of Directors membership falls below the required
minimum of nine (9).

8.3 The Contractor shall submit to the Department and NH Department of Justice.
Division of Charitable Trusts and the Department, and updated list of current board
members and a corrective action plan virith timeframes when the Board of Directors
membership falls below the State of New Hampshire minimum required number of
five (5).

8.4. The Contractor shall have vmtten descriptions outlining the duties of the members
and officers of the board of directors.

8.5. The Contractor shall have a documented Orientation Process and Manual for the
memt}ers and officers of the board of directors.

8.6. The Contractor shall have annual tramings related to the members and officers of the
Board of Directors roles and responsibilities, including fiduciary responsibilities.

8.7. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall have fiduciary responsibility for the agency
including approval of agency financial policies artd procedures that indudes, but not
be limited to, the following:

8.7.1. Cash Management including cash receipts, cash disbursements, and petty
cash.

8.7.2. Accounts Payable/Receivable Procedures, payroll, and fixed assets.

6.7.3. Internal Control Procedures.

8.7.4. Expense Reimbursement and Advance Policy.

8.8. The Contractor shall have open attendance to peer support agency members during a
portion of a board meeting.
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8.9. The Contractor shall publish the times and locations of Board of Director meetings in
an effort to encourage peer support agency member attendance.

8.10. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall:

8.10.1. Maintain written records (Iward minutes) of their meetings including but not
limited to topics discussed, votes and actions taken, and a monthly review
of the agency's financial status and make the minutes available to the
Department, as requested.

8 10 2 Maintain a current Board of Director list, including but not Hmited to. member
name, board office held, address, phone number, e-mail address, date
joined, and term expiration date.

8.10.3. Maintain documentation of the process and results of annual board
elections.

8.10.4. Notify the Department immediately in writing of any change in board
membership.

8.11. The Contractor sfiall maintain and make available to the Department upon request a
policy manual that at a minimum includes policies for:
8.11.1. Human Resources.

8.11.2. Staff Development.

8.11.3. Financial Responsibilities.

8.11.4. Protection for member and participant rights.

8.12. The Contractor shall pursue other sources of revenue to support additional peer
support services and/or supplement other related activities that the Department may
not pay for under this Agreement.

9. Participation In Statewide/Regional Meetings
9 1 The Contractor shall support the recruitment and training of indivkluals for serving on

local, regional and state mental health policy, planning and advisory initiatives.
Partk^alion of individuals shad be from other than the Contractor's employees who
provide leadership development meetings, workshops, and training events.

9.2. The Contractor's Executive Director, or deslgnee. shall attend the Department's
monthly Peer Support Directors' meetir>g that is held for the purpose of Information
exchange, support, and strengthening of the statewide Peer Support system.

9.3. The Contractor shall meet at least two (2) times per year, with other regional
community support organizations that serve the same populations, e.g., mental health
centers, area homeless shelters, community action programs, housing agencies, etc.,

9 4 The Contractor sfiall submit to the Department written documentation demonstrating
attendance at the meetings, but not limited to, the meetings in Section 9.2 and 9.3.

10. Grievance and Appeals

10.1. The Contractor shall submit, for Department approval, a grievance and appeals
process that includes, but is riot limited to:

10.1.1. Receiving complaints orally, or in writing that include but are not limited to.
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10.1.1.1. Consumer name,

10.1.1.2. Date of written grievance.

10.1.1.3. Nature/subject of the grievance.

10.1.1.4. A method to submit an anonymous complaint.

10.1.2. Assisting consumers with the grievance and appeal process mciuding but
not limited to filing a complaint.

10.1.3. Tracldng complaints.

10.1.4. Investigating aDegations that a menber's or participants rights have been
violated by agency staff, volunteers or consultants.

10.1.5. An Immediate review of the complaint and investigation by the Contractor's
-director or his or her designee.

10.1.6. A process to attempt to resolve every grievance for which a formal
investigation Is requested.

10.1.7. Following completion of a formal investigation, the board of directors of the
PSA shall l^ue a written decision to the member or participant within 20
business days setting forth the disposition of the grievance.

10.1.B. Submitting a copy of the written decision in Section 10.1.7 of the complaint
to the Department within 10 days from the written decision.

10.1.9. An appeal process for members or participants to appeal the written
decision made in Section 10.1.7.

11. Reporting

11.1. The Contractor shall report on forms provided by the Department a list of the trained
individuals as in Section 7. ^

11.2. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the 30lh of the month, the prior
month's interim Balance Sheet, and Profit and Loss Statements;

11.2.1. Current Ratio that measures the Contractor's total current assets available
to cover the cost of current liabilities by using the following formula; Total
current assets divided by total current liabilities. The Contractor shall
maintain a minimum current ratio of 1.1;1.0 with no variance allowed.

11.2.2. Accounts Payable that measures the Contractor's timeliness in paying
Invoices. The Contractor shall not have outstanding invoices greater than
sixty (60) days.

11.2.3. Budget Management that compares budget to actual revenues and
expenses to determine on a year -to-date basis the percentage of the
Contractors budget executed year-to-date.

11.2.3.1. Performance Standard; Revenues shall be equal to or greater
than the year-to-date calculation. Expenses shall t>e equal to or
less than the year-to-date calculation.
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11.3. The Contractor shall make prior months Board of Director meeting minutes available
to the Department, as requested, Including all attachments such as. but not Itmlted to
the Executive Director's report.

11.4. The Contractor vnil prepare an Anniial Report presentation for the benefit of the
Mental Health Block Grant Advisory Council.

11.5. The Contractor shall submit a quarterty written report to the Department, on a form
supplied by the Department, no later than the 30th of the month following the quarter
regarding:

11.5.1. Community outreach activities as outlined in Section 12. Deliverables.
Subsection 12.3.

11.6.2. Compilation of program evaluation and surveys submitted In the past
quarter.

11.5.3. Quarterly peer support service deliverables as Identified on templates
provided by the department.

11.5.4. Quarterty statistical data including, but not limited to:

11.5.5. The total number of unduplicated participants served on a daily basis.

11.5.6. The total number of current members, defined as only those members who
have been served within the past year.

11.5.7. Program utilization totals by percentage.

11.5.8. Number of telephone peer support contacts.

11.5.9. Number and description of outreach activities.

11.5.10. Number and description of educational events provided:

11.5.10.1. On-site: and/or

11.5.10.2. In the community,

11.6. The Contractor shall provide a report for Department approval by July 31 of each
State Fiscal Year whk^ outlines:

11.6.1. Specific steps the Contractor has taken to increase membership in the
previous State Fiscal Year.

11.6.2. A plan for how the Contraclor shall increase the unduplicated numbers
served in the above activities by ten (10) percent of the total served in the
previous year, for each subsequerrt State Rscal Year.

/

11.6.3. Monthly In-house schedules/calendars and newsletters.

11.6.4. Quarterly revenue and expenses by cost, category and locations.

11.8.5. Quarterty Capital Expenditure Report.

11.6.6. Quarterly Auditor's Report: The priorj three (3) months of monthly interim
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Statements including separate
statements for related parties that are | certified by an officer of the reporting
entity to measure the agency's fiscal iritegrity.

I
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

12. Deliverables

12.1. The Contractor shall provide a minimum of fifteen (15) hours of in-house services at
each Center each week which include, but are not limrted to: .

12.1.1. Newtopics introduced at least monthly.

12.1.2. A minimum of five (5) separate discussion groups per week that address
emotional weltbeing topics which may inciude, but are not limited to:

12.1.2.1. IPS.

12.1.2.2. WRAP.

12.1.2.3. WHAM.

12.1.2.4. Setting boundaries.

12.1.2.5. Positive thinking.

12.1.2.6. Wellness

12.1.2.7. Stress management.

12.1.2.8. Addressing trauma.

12.1.2.9. Reduction of negative or intrusive thoughts.

12.1.2.10. Management of emotional states including, but not limited to:

12.1.2.10.1. Anger.

12.1.2.10.2. Depression.

12.1.2.10.3. Anxiety.

12.1.2.10.4. Mania

12.1.3. A minimum of five (5) discussion or practice groups per week that address
physical wellbeing topics which may Include, but are not limited to:

12.1.3.1. Smoking cessation.

12.1.3.2. Weight loss.

12.1.3.3. Nutrition/Cooking.

12.1.3.4. Physical exerdse.

12.1.3.5. Mmdfirinessactivitiesincluding, butnotlimitedto:

12.1.3.5.1. Yoga.

12.1.3.5.2. Meditation.

12.1.3.5.3. Joumaling.

12.1.4. A minimum of four (4) activity groups per week that that provide positive
skill-building activities which may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.4.1. Arts and crafts.

12.1.4.2. Music expression.

12.1.4.3. Creative writing.

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment #3 Contractor ,„.a,s:±£.
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servtcee
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A - Amendment #3

12.1.4.4. Cooking.

12.1.4.5. Sewing.

12.1.4.6. Gardening.

12.1.4.7. Movies.

12.1.5. A minimum of one (1) gro^ per week based on topics relevant to fostering
independence wtiich may include, but are not limited to:

12.1.5.1. Online blogs or articles that relate to mental health.

12.1.5.2. Obtaining employment.

12.1.5.3. Budgeting.

12.1.5.4. DecfSion-maklr»g.

12.1.5.5. Self-advocacy.

12.2. The Contractor shall provide community-based services including, but not limited to a
minimum of one (1) trip into the community per month for an activity which may
include, but rtot be limited to:

12.2.1. Visit to a natural setting.

12.2.2. Volunteer opportunity.

12.2.3. Visit to a museum.

12.2.4. Visit to a local historical site.

12.2.5. Visit to local farms or gardens.

12.3. The Contractor shall provide community outreach including, but not limited to:

12.3.1. Providing monthly community education presentations to potential referral
sources, funders, or families of individuate affected by mental illness, about
mental Illness and the peer support community including, but not limited to:

12.3.1.1. Local psychiatric hospitals.

12.3.1.2. Local mental health clinics.

12.3.1.3. Local community events.

12.3.2. Providing monthly educational events and presentations of information to
members, participants, or other individuals seeking support and information
relating to the issues and concerns of consumers of mental health services
which shall include, but not be limited to educational topics to be covered
over the course of the year such as:

12.3.2.1. Rights protection.

12.3.2.2. Peer Advocacy.

12.3.2.3. Recovery.

12.3.2.4. Employment.

12.3.2.5. Wellness Management.

12.3.2.6. Community Resources.

The Alternative Ute Center Exhit)it A AmerxJment »3 Contractor Initials;
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13. Quality Improvement
13.1. The Contractor shall participate in quality program reviews and site visits on a

scheduled provided by the Department. All contract deliverables, programs, and
activities shall be subj^ to review during this time. These reviews shall result in a
report and potential corrective action.

13.2. The,Contractor shall participate in quality assurance reviews as follows:
13.2.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract

compliance requirements as identified In 0MB Circular A-133.

13.2.2. Ensure the Department is provided with access that includes but Is not
limited to:

13.2.2.1. Data.

13.2.2.2. Financial records.

13.2.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor worlc srtes/locations/work
spaces and associated facilrties.

13.2.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor work siles/locations/work
spaces and associated facilities.

13.2.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals and staff.

13.3. The Contractor shall perfonn monitoring and comprehensive quality and assurance
activities Indudir^ but not limited to:

13.3.1. Participate in bi-annual quality improvement review as In Section 13.1.

13.3.2. Participate In ongoing monitoring and reportir»g based on the bi-annual
review and corrective action plan submitted in conjunction with the
Department and Contractor

13.3.3. Conduct member satisfaction surveys provided by and as instructed the
Department.

13.3.4. Review of personnel files for completeness.

13.3.5. Review of complaint process.

13.4. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty
(30) days from the date the Department notifies the Contractor is not in compliance
with the contract.

The Alternative Life Center Exhibit A Amendment Contiwlor Irelials:
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New Hempshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit B - Amendment M

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Stale shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block V8.
of the General Provisions of tWs Agreement, Form P-37, for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by;

2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;

2.2. Federal funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Services, the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. Community Mental
Health Services Block Grant (CFDA #93.958/ FAIN# B09SM010035-19).

2.3. Federal funds from the Designated State Health Program (DSHP) (CFDA #93.778).

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services In compliance
with funding requirements in Section 2 above.

4. The Department may make an initial payment to the Contractor each July of an amount
determined by the Department as necessary for the Contractor to initiate services each
State Fiscal Year.

5. Subsequent to the action in Section 4, the Department shall make monthly payments to the
Contractor based upon cash reimbursement as submitted by the Contractor to maintain
services arxl approved by the Department, of the Department approved budg^ amounts in
Exhibit B-4 - Amendment #3.

5.1. In no event shall the total of the initial paymerrt in Section 4 and monthly payments in
Section 5 exceed the budget amounts set forth in Section 5.

5.2. Expenditures shall be in accordance with the budget identified in Section 5 as approved
by the Department.

5.3. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the Department in accordance
with applicable state and federal laws and regulatiorvs.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an
amendment ItmKed to the budget amounts identified In Section 5. to adjust amounts within
the budgets, within the price limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties
and may be made without obtaining approval of Governor and Executive Council.

7. Payment for services provided in Exhibit A Scope of Services shall t)e made as follows:

7.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice on Department supplied forms, by the tenth
(10^) working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses Incurred in the prior month.

7.2. The State shall make payment to the Contractor on actual expenditures, within thirty
(30) days of receipt of each Department-approved invoice for Contractor sen/ices
provided pursuant to this Agreement.

7.3. The invoice must be submitted to:
Financial Manager
Bureau of Mental Health

Department of Health and Human Services'
105 Pleasant Street. Main Building
Concord, NH 03301

The Attcmative Life Center ExNbilB-Amendniert#3 Contractor Initials
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New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Servlcee
Peer Support Servlcee

Exhibit B - Amendment #3

8. The Contractor shall provide Its Revenue and Expense Budget on Budget Form A supplied
by the Department, within twenty (20) calendar days of the contract effective date and then
twenty (20) days from the; beginning of each fiscal year thereafter.

9. The Contractor shall provide quarterly Revenue artd Expense Reports on Budget Form A,
within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of each fiscal quarter, defined as July 1 to
September 30. October 1 to December 31, January 1 to March 31. and April 1 to June 30.

10. The Contractor shall provide supporting documentation, when required by the Department,
to support evidence of actual expenditures. In accordance with the Department approved
budgets in Section 5.

11. Any experujiture that exceeds the approved budgets in Section 5 shall be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor.

12. When the contract price limitation is reached the program shall continue to operate at full
capacity at no charge to the Department for the duration of the contract period.

13. Funding may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from another
source.

14. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation appKcabte to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms arid conditions of this
Agreement

15. The Department reserves the right to recover any program funds not used, in whole or in
part, for the purposes stated in this Agreement from the Contractor within one hundred and
twenty (120) days of the Completion Date.

16. Contractor will have forty-five (45) days from the end of each State Fiscal Year to submit to
the Department final invoices for payment Any adjustments made to a prior Invoice will
need to be accompanied by supporting documentation.

The AHemaUve Ute Center EjtfbM B - Amendfiient #3 Contrador Iniiials.
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Exhibh B<4 • Aimndment #3

SPY 2020 Budget
New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Servlcee

Contiectof Name: Alternative Life Center.

hidoelfteouest for: Peer Supocrt Services - Reoion 1

Budoet Period: SFY20 (7/1/19 throuah 6/30/20)

600 PERSONNEL COSTS
280.652601 Satarv & Wages

602 Emolovee Beocft 41.817

603 Payroll taxes 21.485

Subtotal 342,954

620 PROFESSIONAL PEES
7.725624 Accountina

625 AudKFees

626 Legal Fees 30

627 Other professloruti Fees and Consuttanis

Subtotal 7,765

630 STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

631 Publications and Journals

632 in-Service Trair^ 3.000

633 Conferences and Conventions

634 Other Stafl Development

Subtotal 3,000

640 OCCUPANCY COSTS

641 Rent 46.941

642 Modoaoe Payments

643 Heating Costs

644 Other littiities 4.600

645 Maintenance and ReoairB 936

646 Taxes

647 Other Ocofltancv Costs

Subtotal 54,479

650 CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

1.310651 Office

652 Riiildinomotisetwid 800

653 RchabllilatiotVTrainino

655 Food 0

657 Other Consumable SuooUes

Subtotal 2,110

Other Eapeneea WftgaflmaBiBlftai

660 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

RR5 OFPRFCIATION

670 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2.400

680 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE

700 ADVERTISING 0

710 PRINTING

720 TELEPHONE/COMMUNICATIONS 3,000

730 POSTAGE/SHIPPING 650

Subtotal 6,050

740 TRANSPORTATX>N

741 Board Members

742 Staff 6.000

743 Members and Particioants 4.000

Sirt>tolal 12,000

750 Assistance to IndMduala

751 Client Services i

752 Ciothrno

Subtotal • 0

760 INSURANCE 1

761 Matorectice & DorxfinQ 0

762 Vettides 0

763 Comorehertsive Prooertv & Liability 0

600 OTHER EXPENDITURES

801 INTEREST EXPENSE

Sublotai 0

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES $426,346

RFP-2017^BH-02-PEERS

ExhiM B-4 Amendment «3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach' means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations wtiere persons cttier than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whettier physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the temi "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have ttie same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National lr>slltute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data" means all confidential ^formation
disclos^ by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance t>enefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Irrformatlon and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is govemed by
state or federal law or regulation. This i^ormation Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Irrformation (FTI), Social Security Numt>ers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without ttie owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHHS Information Security Requirements

maD. all of wtvch may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modrftcation or destruction.

7. "Open vyireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected rtetwork (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) wiii be considered an open
network arvl not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Persor^al Information' (or "PI") n^eans informatbn which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, soda! security rtumber, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with ott^r personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific ir>dlvidual, such as date and place of birth, nfK)ther's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by ttie United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of 'Protected Health Information' in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, arrd amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is acaedrted by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Conftdential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably r^ecessary as outlined urber this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to ail its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy arb Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confrdentia! Information In response to a

V5. Last update 1CV09/18 ExNM K Contractor biMab F"^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained urxler this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated 'n this Contract.

6. The CocTtractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
.  of DHHS for the pur^se of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this

Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
t>een evaluated by an expert knowtedgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email, End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employir>g the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. EtkI User may not use file
hosting services, such as' Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidentidl Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network, (VPN) must be
Installed on tt\e End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
stnjcture the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is trar^mitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of Information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor wilt have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabtlrties, and tndudes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential infomiation.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ail electronic aixl hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRANIP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
cumentty-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

8. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with irxtustry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanltization, or othenvise physically destroying the media (for example,
degausslr)g) as described in MIST Sp^al Publication 600-68, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanltization, National Institute of Standards ar»d Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as foDows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the Information llfecyde, wtiere applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage artd secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. Lasl update 1(V09/18 E>dtol1K CofxtractoflniMate
DHHS Infoimation

Security Requirements _ ^ _
PageSolS Date n



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Securfty Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication arxj access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor wiH provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the CofUractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, iixiuding breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-corvtractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for mairrtatning compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the D^artment at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabllrties that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey t)e completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership memt}er within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate ttre causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the tveach.
The State shall recover from the Conh^or all costs of response and recovery from

P/tVS.LasI update ExWjitK Conlractof Irutiata
DHHS information

Security Requirements
Page 6 of 9 Date
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website arxJ telephone call center services r>ecessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with ail applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, tr>cluding,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individualty ktentihabie health
Information and as applicable urvler State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must providie a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://wvw.rU\.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.

vs. Last update 10/09/10 Exhibit K Contractor Initials.
DHHS Infonnation

Security RequirenierMs
Papa 7 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. tim'rt disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received urxjer this Contract and individuaBy
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as norMluty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidentiai Data, Including any
derivative files containing persortally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such, data must be encry^ed at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
discbsed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applbabb obl^ations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identrfiable Information is Involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5. Lastupdalo 10/09/18 ExhiiitK Contreetor f'^
DHHS Infotmation

Security Requrements
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Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, arrd contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInforTnatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last update 1(V09^18 ExhibH K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Socurlty Requirements
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
Comaiiaaioiier

Katja S. Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIYISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

1» PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NK OJMl
603.271-9422 |.M0.«SO34S Ext. 9422

Fax: <03-271:«43I TDD Ac«m: 1-W0-73S-2964 www.dlihsJiLBOV

•336

May 16. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Behavioral Health.
Bureau of Mental Health Services, to exercise renewal options to agreements with the
vendors fisted below to continue providing peer support services to adults with mental
Illness, by increasing the price limitation by $2,760,679 from $5,520,158 to $8,280,837.
and by extending the contract completion dates from June 30, 2018 to June 30. 2019,
effective upon approval by the Governor and Executive Council. Funding Is
55.45%Federa!. 44.55% General Funds

2) Upon approval of Request #1. authorize the Department to process advance payments of
up to a maximum of one-twelfth (1/12th) of each contract price limitation for State Fiscal
Year 2019.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 29,
2016 (Item #23). and amended on June 21, 2017 (Item #38).

Vendor Location
Current

Amount

Increase

Amount

Revised
Amount

Connection Peer Support Center Portsmouth. NH $489,644 $244,822 $734,466

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support
Center of Greater Nashua Region

VI

Nashua, NH $764,156 $382,078 $1,146,234

Lakes Region Consumer
Advisory Board

Laconia, NH $678,758 $339,379 $1,018,137

Monadnock Area Peer Support
Agency

Keene, NH $528,228 $264,114 $792,342

On the Road to Recovery, Inc. Manchester, NH $885,716 $442,858 $1,328,574

The Stepping Stone Drop-In
Center Association

Claremont, NH $756,690 $378,345 $1,135,035

The Alternative Life Center Conway, NH $1,047,752 $524,476 $1,572,228

Trl-Clty Consumers' Action Co
operative

' Rochester. NH $369,214 $184,607 $553,821

Totals $5,520,168 $2,760,679 $8,280,837



His Excellency, Christopher T. Sununu
and His Honorable Council
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Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2019 with authority to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further approval from the
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

Please see attached financial detail.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is for continuation of peer support services to adults with
long-term and/or severe mental illness at Peer Support Agencies. The Contractors provide
services that enhance personal wellness, Independence, and recovery by reducing crises due
to symptoms of mental illness. Peer support services Include supportive interactions and
shared experiences using an Intentiona] Peer Support model that fosters recovery from mental
illness and self-advocacy skills.

Peer support services teach wellness self-management, and provide outreach through
face-to-face meetings, or telephone calls, to provide continued support to individuals who may
not be able to attend face-to-face peer support service meetings. Telephone peer support
senrices are available statewide to assist individuals who may experience mental health crises
during hours when the contractors' agencies are closed for business. These eight (8) Peer
Support Agency contractors expect to serve a total of 3,990 individuals through these contract
amendments.

Contractors produce a monthly newsletter to Inform members, participants, community
mental health centers, community organizations, and the public about services and ongoing
activities at the agency. Activities include skills trainings and educational events for members
to learn about topics such as symptom management and how to navigate services, local
education and community outreach efforts around stigma, wellness, and recovery, and
meetings with other human service providers to facilitate appropriate referrals. The
newsletters and documentation of monthly trainings, educational meetings, and community
outreach events are submitted on a monthly basis to the Department.

The DHHS conducts a review of all contracted Peer Support Agency policies and
procedures to ensure they are at! up to date, on file, and meet expectations of the contract.
Ongoing tracking and oversight is maintained by the Department. Contractors produce
quarterly statistical data reports that are submitted to the Department based on contract
deliverables. Monthly reports are submitted that include a list of trained staff and trainings they
have completed, service utilization data, program activity data, revenue and expense by cost
and program category, a Capital Expenditure Report an Interim Balance Sheet, a Profit and
Loss statement, and all Board Meeting Minutes. If items are not being met a corrective action
plan Is required. The Contractor also prepares an annual report for presentation to the
Department and Mental Health Planning and Advisory Council. Each contractor undergoes a
bi-annual quality improvement review and participates In ongoing monitoring and reporting
based on these reviews. Each contractor conducts member satisfaction sun/eys as requested
by the department and at any time the contractor Is found out of compliance, the agency has
30 days to submit a corrective action plan to ensure compliance is regained.

Approval of the advance payment for each of the eight (8) contractors will allow them to
continue to cover operating expenses. If approved, the total advance payment amount will not
exceed $331,281. The funds will be used to cover day to day costs that include payroll and
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occupancy. The Department considers advance payment to these vendors as a necessary
method to ensure ongoing services for the clients that they serve. The Department is in dose
communication with these agencies and monitors their finandal status on an ongoing basis.

Language in the eight (8) contracts reserves the Department's right to renew each
contract for up to four (4) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds,
satisfactory performance of the contractors, and Governor and Executive Coundl approval.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, 3,990 individuals
may not have access the valuable support that they rely on to manage their symptoms of
mental illness. Some individuals may require a higher level of service, including hospitalization,
should these peer support services become unavailable.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 44.55% General Funds and 55.45% Federal Funds from United
States Department of Health and Human Services, Block Grants for Community Mental Health
Services. Catalog of Federal Domestic Award (CFDA) 93.958, and Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) SM010035-18

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Katja S. Fox"
Director

Approved by:
Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

. The Dopafl/7H>/H of Hoofth and Human Suvfcas' Mission cs tojoin ccnvntmlliea and fa/n^s
Jn providing opportunHias forcitizons to achieve health and Independanco.



Rnanclal Details for Peer Support Services

05-95-S2-920010-7^43 HEALTH AMD SOCIAL SERVJCES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OP. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF DIV
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

tOO> FMcral Funds

Activity Code: 92207143

The AtterneClve LMe Center

Vendor «06Sa01

Sute Fiscal y«v dees Title ClesB Account Current Budget
Arsount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Controcts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 $290,154 SO $290154
2018 Contntcts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 $290,154 SO $290,154

2.019- Ccnl/Bcts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO so SO

Subtotal $580,308 so $580,308

The Stepplna Stone Drop^it Cenler Astoclaiion

Vendord 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Currer^t Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount
2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $209 700 $0 $209,790
2.018 Confractt tor Proa Sv« 102-500731 $209,790 SO $209,790
2.019 Contraas for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

Subtotal $419,880 $0 $419,580

Lakes Rsaion Censumef Advliory Board

Vendor# 157060

SUle Fiscal Year Class Titia Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 $188 183 SO 5188183
2.018 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 $166183 $0 S188.1B3
2.019 Contrects for Ptoo Svs 102-S00731 SO so SO

Subtotal $376^86 so $376,366

Monad nock Area Peer Buooort Agency

vendor# 157973

State Ficcal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Oe crease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Contracts tor Proo Svs 102-500731 $146449 SO $148,443
2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-S00731 $148,449 SO $146,449
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO $0 SO

Subtotal- - $292,898 $0 $292,898

H.E>Jt.T.S. Peer SopDOrt Center of Greater Nashua Req on VI

Vendor #209287

State Fiscal Year Class TUie Class Account Currant Budget
Amount increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2017 Corrtrads tor Proo Svs 102-500731 S21185Q SO $211,860
2018 Corrtractfl tor Proo Svs 102-500731 -  $211,680 SO $211,880
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO

Subtotal $423,720 SO $423,720



Financial Details for Peer Support Services

On tho Ro«d to Rocovofv, Inc.

Vendor« 158B39

Stfte FItciI Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amourn Increase/

{Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S245.S67 SO S245.562

2.01 B Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S245.562 $0 S24S.562
2010 Contmcts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO

Subtotal 1491.124 $0 S491,124

Connections Peer Suooert Center

Vervlar #157070

State Fiscal Year Class TMe Class Account Current Budget
Amount Irtcreese/

(Decreese)

Rfvistd Budget
Amount

Z017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 S135.751 SO S135.75t

2.018 Contmda lor Proa Svs 102-500731 5135.751 SO S13S.7S1
2.019 Contracts br Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

SubtoUl 5271^02 SO (271.602

Tri«Cltv Consumers' Action Co-operative

Vendor #157797

State Fiscal Year Class Tltla Ctess Account Cunent Budget
Amount Increese/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 ContracCi tor Proa Svs ,  102-500731 5102.362 SO $102,352
2.018 Contracts tor Proa Svs 102-500731 S103.362 SO S10Z352

^019 Contracts lor Proa Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO

Subtotal 5204,724 $0 5254,724

SUB TOTAl. S3.0U,223 50 5S.oeo.222l

05-95-92-920010-7011 HEALTH AMD SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUI4AN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIVOF. DIV
OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100% Oeneral Funds

Actrvitv Code: 92207011

The Alternative Life Center

Vender #065801

State Fiscal Year CUse Title Class Account Current Budget
Aoiount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contfocts for Proo Svs 102-500731 5233.122 SO S233.122
2.018 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5233.122 SO S233.122

2.019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

Subtotal S455J44 SO S486,244

The SteoslftQ Stone Droo-ln Center Assoclatfcn

Vendor # 157887

State Rscel Year ClessTltle Class Accounl Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Oecreaae)

Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 5168.555 50 S168.555

2.018 Cnntmcta for Proa Svs 102-500731 5168.555 50 $168,555
2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

Subtotal $337,110 SO S337.110

P3i«2orfi



Financial Details for Peer Support Services

LskM Reolon Consum«r Advisory Board

Vendor# 157060

State PtaealVear Class TWe Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Oocroase)
Ravlscd Budget

Amount
1017 Contracts (or Proa Svs 102-500731 S151 196 $0 S151 196
2 018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S151.198 SO S151.1d6
2.010 Contrects for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

Subtotal 1303.392 $0 $301392

Monadnock Area Peer Sueitort Aoency
Vendora 1S7973

Stato Fiscal Veer Class Title Class Account CurrantBudgel
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Sva 102-500731 S  117.665 S S  117.665
2.018 Contracts (or Proo Sva 102-500731 S  117665 S i  117.B6.5
2.019 ContraciB (or Proo Svs 102-500731 i s s

Subtotal t  235.330 $ S  236.330

H.E.A.R.T.8. Peer Support Center ol Qreater Nashua Reo on VI
Vendor# 209287

Stata Fiacal Year Claaa Titia Class Account CurrentBudget
Amount increase/

(Dacraasa)
Revlaed Budget

Amount
2,017 Contrects for Prea Svs 102-500731 $170,218 SO 8(70 218
2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S170.218 so S170 716
2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO so

Subtotal $340,436 SO $340,436

On the Road to Raoovsry. Inc.

Vendor# 158839

Stau Fiscal Year Ctase Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Da crease)

Rovlsad Budget
Amount

2.017 Contrects for Proo Svs 102-500731 S197 296 SO $197,296
2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $197296 SO $197,296
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO so SG

Subtotal $394,592 so $384,592

Connectlone Peer Support Center

Vendor# 157070

Slate Fieeal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decraaso)

Revised Budget
Amount

1017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $109,071 SO S109.071
2.018 Ccrttracts (or Pma Svs 102-500731 S109.071 SO S100 071
1019 Cor;tr*cts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

Subtotal $218,142 SO $218,143

Trt-Cltv Cooeumora' Action Co-opentive

Vertdor# 157797

State Flacel Year Class TKlo Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Oecreaea)

Revised Budget
Amount

1017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $81245 SO S62.24S
1018 Cont/Bcts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $82,245 so $82245
1019 Contrects (Of Proo Svs 102-600731 SO so SO

Subtotal $164,490 so $184,480

SUB TOTAL S2^SS.7M| M tZ4S>.73S

03 S5-92-922010-4118 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. KEALTM AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. MHS' BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV
BUREAU Of MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

100% GcnorsI Funds

The Atternattve Lite Center

Vendor# 0S8601

State Fiscal Year aassTltie Clais Account Current Budget
Amount Increoae/

(Decreiee)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contrttcls for Prog Sva 102-500731 SO SO SO
2015 Contracts lor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO $233 122 $233122



Financial Details for Peer Support Services

Subtotal S233.122I S233.122I

Tb« Sttooino Ston* DrotMn C«nttr Afioclatlon

Vendors t57S67

State FIsctI Year Class Ttdo CtasB Account Current Budsel
Amount Increase!

(Decrease)

Revised Bedget
Amount

2.017 Contracts tor Proo Sva 102-500731 SO SO SO

2.0t8 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-900731 SO SO so
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S 166.556 Sl6e.5S5

Subtctal to S188.&56 tttt.sts

LaJiea Region Consuinef Adviaory Board

Vendor# 1S7060

Stale Fiecel Year Clasa Title Class Account Currerrl Budget
Amount Increase/

(OecreastI

Revised Budget
Amoimt

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO

2.01 a Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO so SO
2.019 Conlracta tor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO St61.196 S161.19d

.  Subtotal SO 1151.196 S161.196

Monednoch Area Peer Support Agency

Vendor# 157673

State Fiscal Year CIssa Title Class Account Current Budget
Amour# Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 S S t

2.018 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 t 8 »

2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 s S  117.685 S  117.685

Subtotal s S  117.685 $  117,665

H.E.AJt.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nasbua RegIon VI

Vendor #209267

Stole Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amour# Incroaae/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Contfocts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO $C

2.016 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SC

2.016 Conlracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO S170.218 S170.218

Subtotal SO $170,216 $170,216

On the Road to Recovery, Inc.

Vendor# 156639

State Fia cat Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budgtl
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.018 Conlracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 so to SO
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO t197.206 1197 206

Subtotal so $197,296 1197,296

Connectlona Peer Support Center

Vendor# 157070

State Rscai Year Clasa TKit CIsst Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

IDecraise)

Revised Budget
Amount

2,017 Contradi lor Proo Svs 102-500ni SO SO SO
2.01B Contracts far Proo Svs 102-500731 SO to SO
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 so $109,071 S109.071

Subtotal so $109,071 $109,071

T ri-Cltv Comumen' AcUon Coy)perttlve

Vendor # 157797

State Flecit Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO to $0
2.018 Conpacts for Proa Svs 102-500731 so SO SO

2.019 Conirocis for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S822i5 $62,245
Subtotal SO $62,245 162,246

SUB TOTAL 1  1 $01 $1,229.3661 $1,229,388

4 oi 6



Financial Details for Peer Support Services

OS.9^92.922010-4120 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: B6HAVKDRAL HEALTH DIV
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES. MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

100^ Ftderal Funos

Activity Code: 92204120
Tfi« Alttmativft Lift Center

Vendor *06Sfl01

snte Fi<e«l Year Claas THte Class Account Current Budget
Amount Increaee/

(Oecrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contra rta fnr Proa Sv9 102-500731 SO SO SO
201S Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO
2 Old Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S290.154 S290 1M

Subtotal so $230,154 S230,154

Thfl Sttpomci Stone DroinJn Center Aesociation

VendorflSTSSr

State Flecal Year CiassTitle Ctass Account Current Budgat
Amount Increase/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

.2.017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 , SO SO SO
2.016 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO so SO
2.01B Centraets for Proo Svs 102-500731 SO S209.7fi0 S200.700

Subtotal SO S209.790 S209J90

Lakes Rogton Consumer Advisory Board

Vendor# 157060

Suto Fiscal Year Class Tide Class Account Current Budget
Amount Irrcrease/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO
2.018 CorHracta for Prog Svs 102-500731 .  SO SO SO
2.019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 so siaa 183 $186,183

Subtotal so S186.183 $188,183

Monadnock Area Paor Support Aqoncy

vendor# 157973

Sute Fiscal Yeer crass Tide Ctass Account Current Budget
Amount Increase/

(Oecrease)

Reviesd Budget
Amount

2.017 Contracts tor Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.01B Contracts tor Proa Svs 102-500731 $0 SO £0
2 019 Contracts for Pma Svs 102-500731 so S148 449 S146.449

Subtotal so $146,449 $146,449

KkAR.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Neshua Reoion VI

Verxjor # 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount increase/

(Decreaae)

Revised Budget
Amount

2,017 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2.016 Coniraeis tor Proo Svs 102-500731 SO SO SO
2019 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 so S211.660 S211 860

Subtotal so $211,660 £211,660

On tht Road to Racoverv. htc.

Vendor # 158639

State FIscel Year Class THit Class Account Current Budget
Amount increaso/

(Dectease)
Revised Budget

Amount
2017 Comrscts for Proo Svs 102-50073) SO 10 SO
2.018 Corxracis tor Proa Svs 102-500731 SO so SO
2.019 Contracts for Proa Svs 102-900731 SO S24S583 S245.S62

Sutitotal SO $245,562 S245.562

Connections Peer SupDort Center

Vendor 0157070

Stale Fiscal Year Class ritJe Class Account Current Budget
Amount (ncreese/

(Decrease)

Revised Budget
Amount

2.017 CorHracts tor Proo Svs 102-900731 SO SO SO
2.018 Conlrsris tor Pmo Svs 102-500731 SO so SO
2.019 Contracts tor Pmo Svs 102-500731 SO S135.751 S13S 751

Subtotal SO S135.791 S135.r$1
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Financial Delays (or Peer Support Services

Trinity ConsufiMfs' Action Co-cotrstJvi

Vendor# 157787

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget
Amount iRcroase/

(Dacrsase)

Revised Budget

Amount

2.017 Contracts tor ProQ Svs 102-500731 SO to SO

Z018 Cont/acta tor Proa Svs 102-500731 $0 SO SO

i019 Contracts tor Proa Svs 102-500731 $0 t102362 S102.382

Subtotal to t102.362 $102,302

sue TOTAL to t1.&30.111| t1.530jii1

05-9S-91-910010.5710 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AHD HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: OLENCLIFF HOME FOR ELDER
GLENCUFF HOME. PROFESSIONAL CAAE

60% Othar Funds/ 20% Ganaral Funds

Activity Code: 9IOOOOOC

Tha AUsmatlva Llfa Canter

Vendor #068801

Stale Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account CurrenI Budget
Amount Increase/

(Dacraasa)
Raviaad Budgat

Amount

2.018 Consultants 046-500464 S1.200 SO S 1.200
2.019 Consuitsms 04^S00404 SO S1.200 S1.200

Subtotal $1,200 S1.200 $2,400

TOTAL t5.520.1Ml tZ,7B0,679| $e.20O.837|



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
P««r Supp^ $orvice9

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Peer Support Services

This 2nd Amendment to the Peer Support Services contract (hereinafter referred te as "Amendment #2")
dated this 27thday of April, 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and The Alternative Life
Center (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 6
Main Street Conway. NH. 03818.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "ContracT') approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29. 2016 (Item #23) and as amended on June 21, 2017 (Item #38) the Contractor agreed to
perform certain seniices bas^ upon the terms and conditions spedfied In the Contract as amended and
in consideration ofcertacn sums spedfied; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules arid terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, Genera! Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3. the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.6, to read:
05-95-92-920010-7148-102-500731; 05-95-92-920010-7011-102-500731: 05-95.910010-5710.
046-0464; 05-095-910010-5710-046-0462; 05-95-92-92201 (Mil 8-102-500731; 05-95-92-
9220104120-102-500731. .

2. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read'
June 30. 2019.

3. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation to read:
$1,572,228.

4. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for Slate Agency, to read:
E. Maria Relnemann. Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

5. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read-
603-271-9330.

6. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A, Amendment #2,
Scope of Services.

7. Delete Exhbit B. Paragraph 9. and replace with:

9. Of the Budgeted amounts Identified in Exhibits B-1 and 8-2, fa each Slate Fiscal Year
the following activities will be reimbursed only on a cost reimbursement basis (except for
9,2 Capital Reserve Fund, See Section 11 below ), only upon prior approval of the
Department, and up to the amounts listed below as follows:

9.1. Training and Devetepment: $1,000.

9.2. Capital Reserve Fund: $0.

Tfta ABBftiBl'ive Life Certer. Amendment #2
SS-2017.BBH-02^EERS-OS Pago1of4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

9.3. Capital Expenditure: $0.

9.4. Crisis Respite: $87,561. j
9.5. Retirement: $. S4,049. j

8. Add Exhibit B-3 Amendment #1. SPY 2019 Budget. !
9. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements. |

The Attemitlve Life C«nlw. Amendment K
8S-2017*BBH-02<PE&RS-06 Pag«2of4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

This ameridment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council at^xoval
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

3~^/Sr-
Date

Name: s
Title: . ^ ^

The Alternative Life Center

Jame:

Title: /^/z e>s # cfc/iT'

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Slate of .^jsd^^iqS^rttCounty of OfHz. e ̂  / t on . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person Identified directly above, or satis^ctorlly proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

A .

IJ^ANIE A cuflorro. Notmy PubUcMyCofnmlssbn Expfroa gs. 20ig - ;
of Notary Pljtiljc or Justice of the Peace "

m

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

The AltemaWe Die Cenlcr.
SS-2017-BBH02.PEEHS-06

Anendmert 92

Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

The preceding Amer^dment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved es to form, substance„and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

(fiKl
Name: Chr\s\ohhtr 6-
Title: ftsaW Ctiotfn\

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

7TieABBfn«lveUr«Centw. Amendment #2
SS-2017-eBH-02-PEER&^ Pag« 4 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servicea
Peer Support Services

^  Exhibit A Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services

they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services that will:

1.3.1. Increase quality of life for persons IMng vwth mental illness in NH,

1.3.2. Increase hope for and belief in the possibility of recovery for persons living
with mental Illness in NH.

1.3.3. Increase choice regarding the services and supports available to persons
living with mental Illness in NH.

1.3.4. Provide alternatives to and reduce the use of more restrictive and expensive
services such as hospitalization.

1.3.5. increase social connectedness for persons livlng^with mental illness in NH.

1.3.8. Increase satisfaction with peer support services.

1.4. The Contractor agrees to provide mental health peer support services to persons 18
years of age or older who self-identify as a recipient, as a former recipient, or at a
significant risk of becoming a recipient of mental health services, and may include
persons who are homeless.

1.5. The Contractor agrees to give priority of peer support services to consumers who are
age sixty (6D) and over, who are most socidi Isolated, and/or risk of placement in the
public mental health service delivery system.

1.6. The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage, or disposition of Part 2 substance use disorder (SLID)
Information or records created by a Part 2 provider the Information or records shall be
subject to all safeguards of 42 CFR Part 2.

2. Definitions

2.1. Board of Directors means the governing body of a nongovernmental Peer Support
Agency.

2.2. Consumers are any individual, 18 years of age or older, vi/ho self identifies as a
recipient, as a former redpient, or as a significant risk of becoming a recipient of
publically furxied mental health services.

2.3. Culturally Competent means having attained the knowledge, skills, and attitudes
necessary to provide effective supports, services, education and technical assistance
to the populations In the I served by the Contractor.

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contraclof Initiala: A ̂
The Aftomative Life Center / /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

2.4. Business Days are defined as IVtonday through Friday, excluding Saturday and
Sunday.

2.5. Guests are any persons who are invited to visit the Peer Support Agency by a
member,' participant, or the Peer Support Agency.

2.6. Homeless Is (1) an individual or family who lacks a fixed, r^ular, and adequate
nighttime residence; or (2) an individual or family who has a primary nighttime
residence that is a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to
provide temporaiy living eccommcdations (including welfare hotels and congregate
shelters), an institution other than a penal facility that provides temporary residence
for individuals intended to be institutionalized, or a public or private place r^t
desigr^ed for, or ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping accommodation for human
beings.

2.7. Management staff means staff that is responsible for supervising other staff and
volunteers affiliated with the program.

2.8. Members are any consumers, who have made an informed decision to join, and
agree to. abide by, and support the goals and objectives of peer support services.

2.9. Mental illness is defined In RSA 135-C:2 X. namely, "a substantial impairment of
emotional processes, or of the ability to exercise conscious control of one's actions, or
of the ability to perceive reality or to reason, when the impairment is manifested by
instances of extremely abnormal behavior or extremely faulty perceptions, it does not
include Impairment primarily caused by: (a) epDepsy; (b) intellectual disability; (c)
continuous or noncontinuous periods of intoxication caused by substances such as

^  alcohol or drugs; or (d) dependence upon or addiction to any substance such as
alcohol or drugs."

2.10. Participant means a consumer, who Is not member, who participates In any aspect of
peer support services.

2.11. Peer Support Agency (PSA) means an organization whose primary purpose Is to
provide culturally appropriate peer support to persons 18 year of age and older who
self- Identify as having a mental illness.

2.12. Recovery means for a person with a mental illness, development of personal and
social skills, beliefs and characters that support choice. Increase quality of life,
minimize or eliminate Impairment, and decrease dependence on professional
services.

2.13. Region Is the geographic area of cities and towns in New Hampshire, as defined by
the Department.

2.14. SMI is Serious Mental Illness that refers to Individuals whom the state defines as
having either Serious Mental Illness (SMI) or Serious and Persistent Mental Illness
(SPMI) pursuant to N.H. Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-0:2. XV.

2.15. Quarter or Quarterty Is daffned as the periods of Juiy 1 through September 30.
October 1 through December 31, January 1 through March 31, and April 1 through
June 30.

2.16. Week is defined as Monday through Sunday.

RFP-2017-88H-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Amendment 02 Contractor Inlllala;
The AJlemative Life Center . , ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2
3. Scope of Services

3.1. Peer Support Services

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support services that are provided for
consumers and by consumers. including, but not limited to:

3.1.1-1. Peer support services that include supportive interactions
shared experiences, acceptance, trust, . respect, lived
experience, and mutual support among members, participants,
staff and volunteers.

3.1.1.2. No less than forty-four hours of peer support services each
week, by face-to-face or by telephone to members of a peer
support agency or others who contact the agency.

3.1.1.3. Peer support services at a minimum based on the Intentional
Peer Support mode! that:

3.1.1.3.1. Foster recovery from mental illness by helping
individuals Identify and achieve personal goals
while building an evolving vision of their recovery.

3.1.1.3.2. Foster self-advocacy skills, autonomy, and
independence.

3.1.1.3.3. Emphasize mutuality and reciprocity as
demonstrated by shared decision-making, strong
conflict resolution, non-medical approaches to
help, and non-static roles, such as. staff who are
members and members who are educators.

3.1.1.3.4. Offer alternative views on mental health, menta)
Illness and the effects of trauma and abuse.

3.1.1.3.5. Encourage Informed decision-making about all
aspects of people's lives.

3.1.1.3.6. Support people with mental illness in Challenging
perceived self-iimllatlons, while encouraging the
development of beliefs that enhance personal and
relational growth.

3.1.1.3.7. Emphasize a holistic approach to health that
includes a vision of the 'Wvhole" person.

3.1.1.4. Provide opportunities to learn wellness strategies, by using at a
minimum Wellness Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) and
Whole Health Action Management (WHAM), to strengthen a
member's and partidpant's ability to attain and maintain their
health and recovery from mental illness.

3.1.1.5. Provide outreach by face-to-face or by telephone contact with
consumers by providing support to those who are unable to
attend agency activities, visiting people who are hospitalized
with a psychiatric condition, and reaching out to people who
meet membership criteria and are homeless.

RFP-2017-BBH.02-PEeRS-06 Exhibit A Amendment tt2 Contractor Initials- /€M
The Aftemative LIfie Center . y '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

3.1.1.6.

3.1.1.7.

3.1.1.8.

3.1.1.9.

3.1.1.10.

3.1.1.11.

Provide monthly newsletters published by the peer support
agency that describes agency services and, activities, other
community services, social and recreational opportunities,
member articles and contributions and other relevant topics that
might be of interest to members and participants.

Distribute the Newsletters to the members and other Interested
parties, such as community mental health centers and other
appropriate community organizations, at least five (5) business
days prior to the upcoming month.

Provide Monthly Education Events and Presentations of
information germane to Issues and concerns of consumers of
mental health services which shall Include, education topics to
be covered over the course of the year, but not limited to:

3.1.1.8.1. Rights Protection,

3.1.1.8.2. Peer Advocacy,

3.1.1.8.3. Recovery,

3.1.1.8.4.

3.1.1.8.5.

Employment,

Wellness Management, and

3.1.1.8.6. Community Resources.

Provide at least 5 days prior to the beginning of the month, to
the Office of Consumer and Family Affairs within the
Department's Bureau of Behavioral Health, and the Mental
Health Block Grant State Planner and Mental Health Block
Grant Advisory Council, both electronic and a paper copy of the
monthly newsletters and education events in Section 3.2.1.16
and Section 3.2.1.18.

Provide Individual Peer Assistance by assisting adults to:

3.1.1.10.1. Locate, obtain, artd maintain mental health
services and supports through referral, consumer
education, and self-empowerment.

3.1.1.10.2. Support Individuals who are identifying problems
by assisting them in addressing the Issue and/or In
resolving grievances.

3.1.1.10.3. Promote self-advocacy.

Provide Employment Education by assisting members with:

3.1.1.11.1. Information on obtaining and maintaining
competitive employment (any employment open to
the general public and achieved during the
quarter, even if employment is time limited).

3.1.1.11.2. Referrals to community mental health centers
employment programs.

RFP-2017.BBH-02.PEERS-06
The AUemBtive Life Center

Exhibit A Amendment #2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

3.1.1.11.3. Empfoyment related activities such as, but not
limited to. resume writing, interviewing, or
assistance with employment applications.

3.1.1.12. Inform the members and general public about the peer
supports and wellness services available and provide monthly
Community Education Presentations to p^ential referral
sources, funders, or families of Individuals affected by mental
illness, about mental illness and the peer support community.

3.1.1.13. Inform local human service providers and the general public
about the stigma of mental illness, wellness and recovery and
collaborate with other local human service providers that serve
consumers in order to facilitate referrals and share information
about services and other local resources.

3.1.1.14." Provide training and technical assistance to help consumers on
their own behalf regarding healthcare such as but not limited to.
sharing techniques for being ready for a doctor's appointment,
how to take notes, how to use the physician's desk reference
book for medications and a review of patient rights.

3.1.1.15. Invite guests to partidpate in peer support activities.

3.1.1.16. Provide residential support services as needed by members
and participants by providing support and assistance such as
but not limited to help with staying in their home or apartment,
or finding a place to iive.

3.1.1.17. Maintain at least a monthly schedule of peer support and
wellness services and activities, staff development and training,
and other related events.

3.2. The Corttractor shall provide transportation services to members, participants and
guests as follows:

3.2.1. Through use of a Contractor-owned or leased vehicle, the Contractor will:

3.2.1.1. Transport members, partldpanls, guests to and from their
homes and/or the Contractor's peer support agency to
participate in activities such as but not limited to;

3.2.1.1.1. Peer Support Services.

3.2.1.1.2- Wellness and Recovery Activities.

3.2.1.1.3. Annual Conferences.

3.2.1.1.4. Regional Meetings.

3.2.1.1.5. Council Meetings.

3.2.2. Comply with all applicable Federal and State Department of Transportation
and Department of Safety regulations such as but not limited to:

3.2.2.1. Vehides must be registered pursuant to NH Administrative
Rule Saf-C 500.

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Eithlblt A Amendmenl#2 Contractor loilials:
The Alternative Life Center
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

3.2.2.2. Vehicles must be inspected in accordance with NH
Administrative Rule Saf-C 3200.

3.2.2.3. Drivers must be licensed in accordance with NH Administrative
Rule Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing.

3.2.3. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehicles sign a State of New Hampshire Release of Indlvkiua! Motor
Vehicle Driver Records form that shows the driver has a safe driving record.

3.2.4. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehicles complete a National Safety Council Defensive Driving
course offered through a State of New Hampshire approved agency.

3.3. The Contractor shall acknowledge that funding from the Department to support
transportation costs may not be used for other than peer support related activities
defined In this Agreement., and on an as needed basis to pay for bus rides that are
necessary to provide peer support services.

3.4. Crisis Respite

3.4.1. The Contractor agrees to operate a peer operated. Crisis Respite that
provides early intervention for individuals (18) years of age and older who
have a mental Illness and who are experiencing a crisis in the community as
follows:

3.4.1.1. Provide to any consumer from any of the Regions In New
Hampshire regardless of where they five or work.

3.4.1.2. Provide a short-term crisis respite in a safe environment,
staffed by peers, intended to maintain community placement
and avoid hospitaiizatlon.

3.4.1.3. Provide interventions using a model of Intentional Peer Support
(IPS), that focus on Individual's strengths and assists in
persona] recovery and wellness.

3.4.1.4. Provide a place for the person to stay temporarily in order to
facilitate recovery and shall be staffed with a trained personnel
twenty-four (24) hours per day when participants are in the
program.

3.4.1.5. Develop a referral process and making referrals to the local
community mental health center for those who require a higher
level of care or evaluation for hospitallzation.

3.4.1.6. Offer other peer support agency services and supports during
the course of stay at the crisis respite program.

3.4.1.7. Provide transportation to and from the crisis respite program to
other community-based appointments.

3.4.1.8. Administer a functional assessment that is approved by the
Department, at the time of entry and exit from the program.

3.4.1.9. Provide individualized supports wKh a focus on wellness and
recovery that may include Wellness Recovery Action Plan
(WRAP), If applicable.

RFP-2017-B8H-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Injliala; An
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Exhibit A Amendment #2

3.4.1.10. Support the Individual In returning to participation in community
activities, services and supports.

3.4.1.11. Ensure the Individual's health needs if they become 111 or injured
are addressed during the course of their stay In the crisis
respite program.

3.4.1.12. Ensure communication with other service providers Involved in
the frxJlvldual's care, with their written consent.

3.5. Peer Support Services to Glencllff Home Residents

3.5.1. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support services as In Exhibit
A, Section 3.1.1.3 once a month to Glendiff Home residents who have
approval from the Director of Nursing for said services as foilows:

3.5.1.1. Provide in a group setting at Glencllff Home by a trained Peer
Support Team Leader, for up to a one (1) hour seission.

3.5.1.2. Schedule peer support group sessions at least two weeks in
advance on the meeting date with approval of the Glencllff
Home's Social Service Staff Member and Activities Director.

3.5.1.3. Maintain a list of Glencllff'Home residents that attended each
peer support group session and provide a copy of the list to the
Social Service Staff member or Activities Director following
each group session.

3.6. Warmline Services

3.6.1. The Contractor agrees to provide warmline services that offers on-call
telephone peer support services to members, participants, and others that:

3.6.1.1. Are primarily provided to any individual who lives or works in
Region 1, or anyone who lives or works elsewhere In the State
of New Hampshire or out-of-state.

3.6.1.2. Are provided during the hours the peer support agency is
closed.

3.6.1.3. Are mairdy provided to Individuals In the Contractor's region
with the ability to receive calls from and make calls to
indrviduals statewide.

3.6.1.4. Assist individuals in addressing a current crisis related to their
'  mental health.

3.6.1.5. Refer clients 10 appropriate treatment and other resources in
the consumer's service area.

3.6,1.8. Are provided by staff that is trained In providing crisis services.

3,6.1.7. May include outreach calls described In Section 3.2.1.5

4. Geographic Area and Physical Location of Services
4.1. The Contractor will provide services in this Agreement to Individuals who live or work

in Region 1, and services for consumers statewide.

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-O6 Exhibit A Amendment #2 Contractor Initials;
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4.2. The Contractor shall provide peer support services separately from the confines of a
local mental health center, unless pre-approved by the Department.

4.3. The Contractor agrees to provide a physical location/building to provide peer support
eervices that are in accordance with Exhibit C Section 15 and with the Life Safety
requirements that include but not limited to:

4.3.1. A building in compliance with local health, building and fire safety codes.

4.3.2. A building that is maintained in good repair and be free of hazard.

4.3.3. A building that includes:

4.3.3.1. At least one indoor bathroom which includes a sink and toilet.

4.3.3.2. At least one telephone for incoming and outgoing calls.

4.3.3.3. A functioning septic or other sewage disposal system.

4.3.3.4. A source of potable water for dn'nking and food preparation as
follows:

4.3.3.4.1. . If drinking water Is supplied by a non-public water
system, the water shall be tested and found to be
in accordance with New Hampshire Administrative
Rules Env-Ws 315 and Env-Ws 316 initially and
every five (5) years thereafter.

4.3.3.4.2. If the water Is not approved for drinking, an
alternative method for providing safe drinking
water shall be implemented.

5. Enrolling Consumers for Services and/or as Members with a Peer
Support Agency
5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services to IndMduais-defined in

Section 1.4 and 1.5 who have a desire to work on wellness issues, and who have a
willing desire to participate in sen/ices.

5.2. The Contractor will request consumers complete a membership application to join and
support the activities and mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5.3. The Contractor agrees that the membership application shall state the minimum
engagement policy, suspension of membership policy, rules of membership, and that
the consumer supports the mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5.4. The Contractor agrees to provide services in this Contract to any consumers who are
non-members or members participating in services.

6. Staffing Requirements for a Peer Support Agency
6.1. The Contractors shall employ an executive director who:

6.1.1. Is appointed by the board of directors.

6.1.2. Is employed by the Contractor and is supervised by the board of directors In
accordance with the published job description and competitive application
process.

RFP-2017-BBK-02-PEERS-06 Exhibll A Amendments Contfactor Iniliata: AH
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6.1.3. Has at a minimum the following qualification:

6.1.3.1. One year of supervisory or management experience, and

6.1.3.1.1. An associate's degree or higher administration,
business management education, health, or
human services; or

6.1.3.1.2. Each year of experience in the peer support field
may be substituted for one year of academic
experience: or

6.1.3.1.3. Each year of experience in the peer support field
may be substituted for one year of academic
experience.

6.1.4. Is evaluated annually by the board of directors to ensure that peer support
and weliness services and activities are provided In accordance with:

6.1.4.1. The performance expectations approved by the board.

6.1.4.2. The Department's policies and rules.

6.1.4.3. The Contract terms and conditions.

6.1.4.4. The Quality improvement reviews.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks specified in this
Agreement.

6.3. The Contractor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all
of the functions, requirements, roles, and duties In a timely fashion for the number of
clients as Identified In Section 11.

6.4. The Contractor shall select and employ staff utilizing practices and procedures as
approved by the Department, that include at a minimum, assurance that offers of
employment are ma^ in writing and include salary, start date, hours to be worked,
and job responsibilities, and that prior employment references shall be obtained and
verified.

6.5. The Contracta shall screen each staff member for tuberculosis prior to employment.

6.6. ' The Contractor shall complete a Criminal Record Check, and submit the names of a
prospective employee who may have client contact, for review by the Department, to
assure that any person who is in regular contact with members and who becomes
employed by the Contractor or its Subcontractor after the Effective Date of this
Agreement te screened for criminal convictions In accordance with RSA 106-6:14
which allows any public or private agency to request and receive a copy of the
cn'minal conviction record of another who has provided authorization In writing, duly
notarized, explicitly allowing the requester to receive such information.

6.7. The Contractor shall not add, delete, defund, or transfer among programs staff
positions without prior written permission from the Department.

6.8. The Contractor shall develop a Staffing Contingency Plan and shall submit their
written Staffing Contingency Plan to the Department within thirty days of the effective
date of the contract that IrKludes but not be limited to:

6.8.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key
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personnel or other personnel during the penod of this Agreement.

6.8.2. The description of how additional staff resources will be ̂ located to support
this Agreement in the event of inability to meet any performance standard.

8.8.3. The description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff replacements.

6.6.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, in a timely
manner, staff replacements/additions with comparable experience.

6.9. The Contractor shall submit a staffing emergency plan within thirty days of the
effective date if the contract that includes, but not limited to:

6.9.1. Inclement weather notifications for programming and transportation services.

6.9.2. Emergency evacuation plans for the Agency.

7. Staff Training and Development
7.1. The Contractor shall verify and document that all staff and volunteers have

appropriate training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the responsibilities
of their respective positions, by keeping up-to-date personnel and training records
and documentation of all Individuals. Staff training shall be in accordance with NH
State Rule He-M 402.05.

7.2. The Contractor shall provide orientation for all new staff providing peer support that
Includes, but not limited to:

7.2.1. The statewide peer support system.

7.2.2. AH Department policies and rules applicable to the peer support.

7.2.3. Protection of member and participant rights.
\

7.2.4. Contractor policies and procedures.

7.2.5. PSA grievance procedures.

7.2.6. Harassment, discrimination, and diversity.

7.2.7. Documentation such as incident reports, attendance records, and telephone
logs.

7.2.6. Confidentiality according to applicable state rule, Department policy and
state and federal laws.

7.3. The Contractor shall develop and implement written staff development policies
applicable to all staff that specifically address the following:

7.3.1. Job Descriptions.

7.3.2. Staffing pattern.

7.3.3. Conditions of employment.

7.3.4. Grievance procedures.

7.3.5. Performance reviews.

7.3.6. Individual staff development plans.

7.3.7. Prior employment or volunteer work, each staff member or volunteer shall
demonstrate evidence of or willingness to verify:

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEeRS-06 ExhiWt A Amendment #2 Contractor Intttela: A /f
The Allematlve Life Center /

Page 10 of 18 Date: 'jV^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A Amendment #2

W1B.*

7.3.7.1. Citizenship or authorization to work.

7.3.7.2. Motor Vehicle Records check to erasure that potential employee
has a valid driver's license and a safe driving record if such
employee wfll be transporting members or participants.
Records must also indicate participation in a National Safety
Council Defensive Driving course offered through a State of

Hampshire approved agency.

7.3.7.3. Criminal Records Check.

7.3.7.4. Previous employment.

7.3.7.5. References.

7.4. The Contractor shall screen each staff member, prior to employn>ent, for tuberculosis
(IB) asfoliows;

7.4.1. All newly employed employees, including those with a history of bacKle
calmette guerin (BCG) vaccination, who will have direct contact with
members and participants and the potential for occupational exposure to
Mantoux IB through shared air space with persons v^'th infectious T6 shall
have a TB symptom screen, consisting of a Mantoux tuberculin skin test or
QuantlFERON-TB test, performed upon employment.

7.4.2. Baseline two-step testing, If performed in association with Mantoux testing,
shall be conducted in accordance with the Guidelines for Environmental
Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities (2003) published by the Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

7.4.3. Employees with a documented history of TB, documented history of a
positive Mantoux test, or documented completion of treatment for Tb
disease or latent TB infection may substitute that documentation for the
baseline two-step lest.

7.4.4. All positive TB test results shall be reported to the department's bureau of
disease control, 271-4469, in accordance with RSA 141-C:7, He-P 301.02
and He-P 301.03.

7.4.5. All employees with a diagnosis of suspect active pulmonary or taryngeal TB
shall be excluded from the PSA until a diagnosis of TB Is excluded or until ̂
the employee Is on TB treatment and a determination has been made that
the employee Is noninfectious.

7.4.6. All employees with a newly positive tuberculin skin test shall be excluded
from the PSA until a diagnosis of TB disease Is ruled out.

7.4.7. Repeat TB testing shall be conducted irt accordance with the CDC's
Guidelines for Environmental Infection Control in Health-Care Facilities
(2003).

7.4.8. Those employees with a history of previous positive results shall have a
symptom screen and, if symptomatic for TB disease, be referred for a
medical evaluation.

7.5. The Contractor shall complete an annual performance review based on the staffs job
description and conducted by his or her supervisor.
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7.6. The Contractor shall complete a staff development plan annually with each staff
person by his or her supervisor that Is based upon the staffs annual performance
review, and that includes objectives and methods for Improving the staff person's
worl<-related skills and knowledge.

7.7. The Contractor shall conduct or refer staff to training activities that address objectives
for improving staff competencies and according to the staffs development plan, along
with ongoing training in protection of member and participant rights.

7.6. The Contractor agrees to maintain documentation in files of the staffs completed
trainings and certifications.

7.9. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval 30 days prior to the training date, for
ail trainings provided by the Contractor or to attend trainings other than offered by the
Contractor for staff at least on an annual basis such as but not Dmited to:

7.9.1. Peer Support.

7.9.2. Warmline.

7.9.3. Facilitating Peer Support Groups.

7.9.4. Sexual Harassment.

7.9.5. Member Rights.

7.10. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support training and its required
consultations to meet certification a minimum of every other year.

7.11. The Contractor agrees that if Intentional Peer Support Is not being offered In a given
year the Contractor shall provide Wellness, Recovery, and Planning training to staff.

7.12. The Contractor agrees that Administrative staff, Inciuding the Executive Director, shall
participate in trainings on:

7.12.1. Staff Development.

7.12.2. Supervision.

7.12.3. Perfonmance Appraisals.

7.12.4. Employment Practices.

7.12.5. Harassment.

7.12.6. Program Development.

7.12.7. Complaints and the Complaint Process.

7.12.8. Financial Management.

7.13. The Contractor shall ensure that annual Wellness Training Is available to staff and
members, and may be provided to other mental health consumers who do not identify
themselves as members of a peer support agency in the region.

7.14. The Contractor shall obtain prior approval by the Department at least five (5) days
prior to tf>e training, to provide or refer staff to specific training proposed by either the
Department or the Contractor.

7.15. The Contractor shall provide documentation to the Department, within 30 days from
the training In Section 7.14, which demonstrates the staff person(s) participation ar^
completion of said training.
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7.16. The Contractor shall collaborate with other Peer Support Agencies to offer combined
trainings to facilitate more efficient use of training funds and to increase the scope of
trainings offered.

7.17. The Contractor shall purge all data in accordance with the instructions from the
Department pertaining to members, participants, and guests who have not received
peer support services within the prior two-year period.

8. Composition and Responsibilities of a Peer Support Agency
8.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain a status as a Peer Support Agency by:

8.1.1. Being incorporated with , the Secretary of State's Office as a non-for-profit
agency.

8.1.2. Having a plan for govemance that requires a Board of Directors who:

8.1.2.1. Have the responsibility for the entire management and control
of the property and affairs of the corporation.

8.1.2.2. Have the powers usually vested in the board of directors of a
non-for-profit corporation.

8.1.2.3. Are comprised of no fewer than 9 individuals with at least 51%
of the individuals who self-identify as consumers.

8.1.2.4. Less 20% of the board members are related by blood;
manage, or cohabitation to other board members.

0.1.2.5. Establish and maintain the bylaws that include, but are not
limited to:

8.1.2.5.1. Responsibilities and powers of the Board of
Directors.

8.1.2.5.2. Term limits for the board of director officers that
shall not allow more than 20% of the board
members to serve for more than 8 consecutive
years.

6.1.2.5.3. Nominating process that actively recruits diverse
individuals whose skills and life experiences vrill
serve the needs of the agency.

8.1.2.5.4. A procedure by which Inactive peer support
agency members are removed from the peer
support agency board.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit to the Department within 5 days, a corrective action plan
with time frames when the Board of Directors membership falls below the required
minimum of nine (9).

8.3. The Contractor shall submit to the Department and NH Department of Justice,
Division of Charitable Trusts and the Department, and updated list of current board'
members and a corrective action plan with timeframes when the Board of Directors
membership falls below the State of New Hampshire minimum required number of
five (5).
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6.4. The Contractor shall have written descriptions outlining the duties of the members
and officers of the board of directors.

8.5. The Contractor shall have a documented Orientation Process and Manual for the
members and officers of the board of directors.

8.6. The Contractor shall have annua! trainings related to the members and officers of the
Board of Directors roies and responsibilities, including fiduciary responsibilities.

8.7. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall have fiduciary responsibility for the agency
including approval of agency financial policies and procedures that includes, but not
be limited to, the following:

8.7.1. Cash Management including cash receipts, cash disbursements, and petty
cash. /

8.7.2. Accounts Payable/Receivable Procedures, payroll, and fixed assets.

8.7.3. Internal Control Procedures.

8.7.4. Expense Reimbursement and Advance Policy..

8.8. The Contractor shaD have open attendance to peer support agency members during a
portion of a board meeting.

8.9. The Contractor sftall publish the times and locations of Board of Director meetings In
an effort to encourage peer support agency member attendance.

6.10. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall:

6.10.1. Maintain written records (board minutes) of their meetings including but not
limited to. topics discussed, votes and actions taken, and a monthly review
of the ̂ ency's financial status and submit the minutes to the Department
within 60 days of the meeting.

8.10.2. . Maintain a current Board of Director list, Including but not limited to, member
name, board office held, address, phone number, e>mail address, date
joined; and term expiration date.

8.10.3. Maintain documentation of the process and results of annual board
elections.

8.10.4. Notify the Department immediately in writing of any change in board
membership.

8.11. The Contractor shall maintain and make available to the Department upon request a
policy manual that at a minimum includes policies for:

8.11.1. Human Resources.

8.11.2. Staff Development.

8.11.3. Financial Responsibilities.

8.11.4. Protection for member and participant rights.

8.12. The Contractor shall pursue other sources of revenue to support additional peer
support services and/or supplement other related activities that the Department may
not pay for under this Agreement.
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9. Participation In Statewide/Regional Meetings
9.1. The Contractor shall support the recruitment and training of Individuals for serving on

local, regional and state mental health policy, planning and advisory initiatives.
Participation of Individuals shall be from other than the Contractor's em^oyees who
provide leadership development meetings, workshops, and training events.

9.2. The Contractor's Executive Director, or designee, shall attend the Department's
monthly Peer Support Directors' meeting that is held fbr the purpose of Information
exchange, support, and strengthening of the statewide Peer Support system.

9.3. The Contractor shall meet at least two (2) times per year, with other regional
community support organizations that serve the same populations, e.g., mental health
centers, area homeless shelters, community action programs, housing agencies, etc.,

9.4. The Contractor shall submit to the Department written documentation demonstrating
attendance at the meetings, but not limited to, the meetings in Section 9.2 and 9.3.

10. Grievance and Appeals
10.1. The Contractor shall submit, for Department approval, a gnevance and appeals

process that includes, but Is not limited to:

10.1.1. Receiving complaints orally, or In writing that include but are not limited to.

10.1.1.1. Consumer name.

10.1.1.2. Date of written grievance.

10.1.1.3. Nature/subject of the grievance.

10.1.1.4. A method to submit an anonymous complaint.

10.1.2. Assisting consumers with the grievance and appeal process including but
not limited to filing a complaint.

10.1.3. Tracking complaints.

10.1.4. Investigating allegations that a member's or participant's rights have been
violated by agency staff, volunteers or consultants.

10.1.5.- An Immediate review of the complaint and Investigation by the Contractor's
director or his or her designee.

10.1.6. A process to attempt to resolve every grievance. for which a formal
investigation is requested.

10.1.7. Following completion of a formal investigation, the board of directors of the
PSA shall issue a written decision to the member or participant within 20
business days setting forth the disposition of the grievance.

10.1.8. Submitting a copy of the written decision in Section 10.1.7 of the complaint
to the Department within 10 days from the written decision.

10.1.9. An appeal process for members or participants to appeal the written
decision made in Section 10.1.7.
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11. Deliverables

11.1. The Contractor shall submit for Department approval by July 31 of each State Fiscal
Year, a Peer Support Agency Quarterly Statistical Data Form, provided by the
Department, that provides data for each State Fiscal Year, including, but not limited
to:

11.1.1. The number of members.

11.1.2. The total number of participants.

11.1.3. Program utiiizalicn totals and percentages.

11.1.4. Numtjer of telephone contacts.

11.1.5. Description of outreach activities.

11.1.6. Number and description of educational events.

11.1.7. The Contractor shall provide a plan for Department approval by July 31 of
each State Rscal Year describing hov/ the Contractor will increase the
deliverables described in Section 11.1.

12. Performance Measures

12.1. The Contractor shall Increase the undupllcated numbers being served In Section 11.1
by ten (10) percent of the total served in the previous year, for each subsequent State
Fiscal Year.

13. Reporting
13-1. The Contractor shall report on forms provided by the Department a list of the trained

individuals as In Section 7.

13.2. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, quarterly peer support service deliverables, as in Section 11 on forms
supplied by the Department.

13.3. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month fol!ov/ing the
quarter, quarterly Revenue and Expenses by cost and/or program category and
locations, on forms supplied by the Department

13.4. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, a quarterly Capital Expenditure Report, on a form supplied by the
Department.

13.5. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
end of each month, the prior months, interim Balance Sheet, and Profit and Loss
Statements for the Contractor Including separate statements for related parties that
are certified by an officer of the reporting entity to measure the agency's fiscal
Integrity as follows:

13.5.1. Current Ratio that measures the Contractor's total current assets available
to cover the cost of current liabilities by using the following formula: Total
current assets divided by total current liabilities. The Contractor shall
maintain a minimum current ratio of 1.1:1.0 with no variance aPowed.
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13.5.2. Accounts Payable that measures the Contractor's timeliness in paying
invoices. The Contractor shall not have outstanding invoices greater than
sixty (60) days.

13.5.3. Budget Management that compares budget to actual revenues and
expenses to determine on a year -to^late basis the percentage of the
Contractors budget executed year-to-date.

13.5.3.1. Formula: (Revenues) Actual year-to-date revenues compared
to budgeted revenues divided by twelve (12) months times the
number of months In the reporting period. (Expenses) Actual
year-to-date expenses compared to budgeted expenses
divided by tweive (12) months times the number of months In
the reporting period.

13.5.3.2. Performance Standard: Revenues shaii be equai to or greater
than the year-to-date calculation. Expenses shall be equal to
or less than the year-to-date calculation.

13.6. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
end of each month, the prior months Board of Director meeting minutes including ail
attachments such as but not limited to the Executive Directors report.

13.7. The Contractor will prepare an Annual Report presentation for the benefit of the
Mental Health Block Grant Advisory Council.

14. Quality Improvement
14.1. The Contractor shall participate in quality assurance reviews as follows;

14.1.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract
compliance requirements as identified In 0MB Circular A-133.

14.1.2. Ensure the Departrnent Is provided with access that includes but is not
limited to:

14.1.2.1. Data.

14.1.2.2. Financial records.

14.1.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor work srtes/locations/work

spaces and associated facilities.

14.1.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor work sftes/locatlons/work

spaces and associated faculties.

14.1.2.5. Scheduled phorte access to Contractor principals and staff.

14.2. The Contractor shall perform monitoring and comprehensive quality and assurance
activities Including but not limited to:

14.2.1. Participate In bi-annual quality Improvement review as In Section 13.1.

14.2.2. Participate In ongoing monitoring and reporting based on the bi-annual
review and corrective action plan submitted in conjunction with the
Department and Contractor.

14.2.3. Conduct member satisfaction surveys provided by and as Instructed the
Department.
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14.2.4. Review of personnel files for completenBss.

14.2.5. Review of complaint process.

14,3. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within thirty
(30) days from the date the Department notifies the Contractor is not In compliance
wHfi the contract.
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Nbw H*mpthln> Dopirtmont of Hoolth ond Human 8orvlcoa
COMPLETE CNS BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

atdtfarNamc: TftS AltSfinU-.X UfoCCKtc:

nitrftiM RmumI lor Petr SuDoon Sorvlcn

{HmttQiFfP}

Budoet Ptflod: 7/1MB throuofi BOCtflO

S5eSitiy.flSian»tCua5}i^^
eoo PERSONNEL COSTS

601 Salaiv&Wnss 304,426

607 Emolovee Beoeftt 41.792

803 PavfDiitaxM 23.289

Subtotal 309.807

624 Aasuntino 7.725

625 Audit Foes fl.300

626 LeaalFaes 30

637 Otn8rP(oteS4.-QnalFe«s and Consultants 1.300

Subtotsi 17.255

650 STAFF development AND TRAINING

631 Pubficatkvia OAd Joumsis 0

632 IrhStfviceTrainina 1.000

635 Centarenees and Conventions 0

634 Othef Stafl Dwoloonteni 0

Subtotal 1.000

641 Rent 54.134

642 Mortaaoa Pavmenis 0

643 HwoMCosto 1.200

644 Other UBIities 7.755

646 Maintenance and Repairs I.SM

646 Taxes 0

647 nihRr Occupancy Costs 0

Subtotal 64.837

661 Ofltce 3.660

662 fititdiraAtouMhojcl 2,400

653 RehdWItlstioiVTraintiK) 0

655 Food 4.020

657 Olhor Ceruumabla Sucolies 0

subtotal 10.100

660 CAPITAL EXPENDfTURES 0

695 OEPRECIATION 0

670 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 2.400

660 EOUJPMEMT MAINTENANCE 0

700 ADVERTISING 350

710 PRINTINO 0

720 TELEPHONHICOMMUNICATIONS 1Z030

730 POSTAGE«KJPPING 1.554

Subtotal 16,324

740 TRANSPORTATION

741 Ektard Memben 0

742 Staff 16.376

743 Members and Partidcants 14.172

Subtotal 30.848

751 Client ServteOH

752 Ctothina

SubttHaJ 0

Tfil oractioe & eondino 6.916

762 Vehides 2.100

783 Cemorehcnsivo Prooedv 6 Uablltv 2.S89

BOO OTHER EXPENDITURES 1.S00

601 INTEREST EXPENSE 0

Subtotal 15.108

TOTM. PROGRAM EXPEHSES 8524.476

RFp.3oir>e8K-o2-PS&aoe

Tl» AKanuttvt Lift Canler

EkhiSH Amcrriment f I

PaO« 1 c(1

Confevctor InUaltr
Ostt' m



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requlremertts

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National InstHute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential rnformation
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all Information ovmed or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health ar>d
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This infoimatiqn includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Rnancial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social S^urity Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data: and, changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical..or electronic
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,  mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disciosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data. •

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI') means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other persona! or identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
narne, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

■  10. "Protected Health Information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. § .
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is acaedited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. [f DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of ttils Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Inforrhation.

4. Encrypted Web Site, (f End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA, If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(8) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure Pile Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting ConfKlential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabillt'es are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard of Confidential Data
in a secure location arxl identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HfTECH compliant solution and, comply with all appllcdble statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and antl-maiware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

■  6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the

■ Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitizatlon, or othenwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described In NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document ar^ certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy a!) hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
.Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will .maintain poficies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

/

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Infoimatlon for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign.and comply with ail applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system{s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

0. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160,103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department arxi the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor vylll not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govem protections for individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide s level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Infomnation Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, arxi
procurement information relating to vendors.

14 Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
' response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and

additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach vwilhin two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This Includes a
confidential information breach, computer security Incident, or suspected breach
which affects or Includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties In connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users;

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. ex
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4. Usl update 04.04.201 e Exh4)It K Contractor Ittilisis
OHHS Information //^

Security Reouiremcnle . _ ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must bo stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authcnzed End Users may transmit the Confidential Data. Including any
derivative'files containing personally identifiable infoimatlon, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all c^her instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is resppnsfble for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onslte Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTINQ

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliafice with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and 'reported, as
apr^lcable, In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

V). PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSInfoimationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfflcer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurrtyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications;

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Offlcer@dhhs.nh.gov
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

mPlXASAyrSTREET.CONCORD.MI 9S30\

60J-r71-94l2 l-«00-85MMSCit9422

Fai:8QJ-27|-MJl TDD Access: l-800*73S'3964 ww>r.dl>lis.nh«Ov

May 19. 2017

His Exceltency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable CourKil

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health.
Glencliff Home to amend an Agreement with The Alternative Life Center. 6 Main Street. Conway, NH.
03818 (Vendor #068801), to continue to provide peer support services to Glencliff Home residents, by
increasing the price limitation by $1,200 from $1,046,552 to an amount not to exceed $1,047,752.
effective July 1, 2017 or upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval whichever comes
later. There is no change to the completion date of June 30, 2018. The source of funds for this
amendment is 19% General Funds and 81% Agency Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2018, upon the availatxiity and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-92-920010-7143 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK
GRANT

State Fiscal Year Class Title

Class

Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $290,154

2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $290,154

Subtotal $580,308



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and His Honorable Council
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05-95-92-920010-7011 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF
D'V OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, PEER SUPPORT

SERVICES

State Fiscal Year Class Title
Ctass

Account Current Budpet

2017 Contracts for Proo Svs 102-500731 $233,122

2018 Contracts for Proq Svs 102-500731 $233,122
• Subtotal $466,244

services, health and human SVCS DEPT OF
HEALTH DIV OF, DIV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, PEER SUPPORT

wCRViwcS

State Fiscal Year Class Title
Class

Account Current Budqet
2018 Consultants 046-500464 $1,200

Subtotal Subtotal $1,200

Grand Total $1,047,752

EXPLANATION

Approval of this Amendment will allow the Contractor to continue to provide peer support
ser^ces to Glencliff Home residents who have severe mental illness. This Amendment increases the
tuning in the Agreement to add the provision of monthly group peer support services to Glencllff Home
residents. Peer Support services enhance personal weilness. independence, and recovery by reducina
crises due to symptoms of mental illness.

The original agreement was competitively bid.

Not^ttelanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall continue
after Jme 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30. 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 biennium.

Should Governor and Council determine not to approvejhls request, residents at the Gtencliff
Home would lose a valuable support that is vital to managing their symptoms of mental Illness.

Area served: Northern New Hampshire and Glencliff Home
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Source of funds; 19% General Funds and b'i% Agency Funds.

Respectfully submitted

2^^
Kalja S. Fox
Director

Approved by:
Je^y A. Meyers
Commissioner

TM Depanmont oi malth and Human Sarvicas' Mission is /o/oAi eo^unit^ and famiOes
in providing ooportunitias tor citizans (o achieve health and indapondonce.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment t to the Pear Support Services Contract

This 1st Amendment to the Peer Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to as 'AmerxJment #1')
dated this March 20. 2017, is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the 'State* or "Department") and Tt%e Aitemative Life Center
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Contractor"), a for profit company with a place of business at 6 Main
Street. Conway, NH. 03B18.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29. 2016 (item <f23), the Contractor agreed to peilorrn certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement (section 18 of the General Provisions of the Form P-37), the
Agreement may t)e amended only by written instrument executed by the parbes thereto and approved by
the Governor and Executive Councif;

WHEREAS the Department ar>d Contractor agree to add scope of work and increase the price limitation.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as foDows:

1: Form P-37. General Provision, SkJcX 1.8 Price Limitation to read: $1,047,752.
2. Add account number to Form P-37 General Provision. Block 1.6 Accounl number as follows:

95-910010-5710-046-0464

3. Add to Exhibit A, Section 1.6 to read:
1.6 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall

continue after June 30. 2017, and the Department shall not be iiatite for any
payments for sen/ices provided after June 30. 2017. unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennium.

4. Add to Exhibit A, Section 3.5 Peer Support Services to Glendiff Home Residents to read:
3.5 Peer Support Senrices to Glendiff Home Residents.

3.5.1 The Contractor shall provide Intentior^al Peer Support services as In Exhibit A.
Section 3.1.1.3 once a month to Gler)c)}ff Home residents who have approval
by the Director of Nursing for said services as follows;
3.5.1.1 Provide in a group sotting at Giencliff Home by a trained Peer

Support Team Leader, for up to a one (1) hour session.
3.5.1.2 Schedule peer support group sessions at least two weeks in

advance on the meeting date with approval of the Glendiff Home's
Social Service Staff Member arvj Activities Director.

3.5.1.3 Maintain a list of Glendiff Home residents that attended each peer
support group session and provide a copy of the list to the Social
Service Staff memtjer or Activities Director following each group
session.

5. Add Section 21 to Exhibit B to read:

21. The Departmeni shall reimburse the Contractor at $100 per session.
21.1 The Vendor shall submit an Invoice within thirty days from the date of ser^flce.

The Vendor shall include in the invoice the date, begin and end time of the
completed session, and Ihe number of Glendiff Home residents in attondance.

21.2 Glendiff Home shall make payment to the Contractor wrthin thirty days of the
receipt of each approved invoiced for services provided pursuant to this
agreement. The Vendor stialJ mail invoices to: Glediff Home. Attn: Accounts
Payable. PO Box 76. Glendiff NH 03238.

The Attemative Life Center Amendment#!
RFP-2017.BBH.02.peERS-06
Page 1 of 3
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This amendment shall be effsctivG upon me date of Governor and Executive CouncU approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below,

Date

n

Slate of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

V
Katia 8. Fox

Director

L" jJUjX
Date

The Alternative Life Center

NA

TITLE;

on before,he

undersignedSfi^p^oMlly appeared the person identified above, or sahs^wily proven
person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed Ihts document In the capaoty
ir^licated above.

Sigr\ature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

or Justics erf the peaceTitle 01 N

HFFANIE A CUROTTO. Notary Publto
My ComniMlon Expiree March 26,2019

The AJternalive Life Center
RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amer^dment. having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATT0RNEYJ5ENERAL

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire al the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

The Alternative Life Center Amendment #1

RFP.2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06

Page 3 of 3
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STATE OE NEW HAKPSHlRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

IW PLEASANT SrtHttT.COSCORD.NH 63301
60J-371-9-423 14I]0-«S2-3:M5£xL9J22

Fat: 603-27I-6431 TDD Accui: 1-800.735-2964 tt-Mv.dhhi.iili.to»-

June 6, 2016

Her Excellency. Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honoiable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

GS,G

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Behavioral Health, Bureau
of Mental Health Services; to enter Into Agreements with the vendors listed below, to provide
peer supporl services in an amount not to exceed $5,518,958, effective July 1. 2016 through
June 30, 2018, upon approval by Governor and Executive Council. 55.45%Federal. 44.55%
General Funds

Summary of contract amounts by Vendor.

Vendor Location Budget Amount

Connection Peer Support Center Portsmouth, NH $489,644

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater
Nashua Region VI Nashua, NH $764,156

Lakes Region Consumer Advisory Board Laconia, NH $678,758

Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency Keene. NH $528,228

On the Road to Recovery. Inc. Manchester, NH .  $885,716

The Stepping Stone Drop-In Center Association Claremont, NH $756,690

The Altemative Life Center Conway. NH $1,046,552

Tri-Ciiy Consumers' Action Co-operative Rochester, NH $369,214

$5,518,958

2. Contingent upon approval of Requested Action #1., authorize an advance payment up to a
' maximum of one-twelfth of the contract price limitation per each Vendor for each State Rscal

Year, If exercised this amount would be $459,913.17.



Her Excellency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and Her Honorable Council
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Funds are available in Slate Fiscal Year 2017 and anticipated to be available in Stale Fiscal'
Ycsar 2018, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget,
v/ith authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office If needed and justified, without approval from Governor and
Executive Council.

Please see attached financial detail.

EXPLANATION

The attached agreements represent eight (8) agreements with a combined price limitation of
$5,518,958.

I

Approval of these eight (8) Agreements will aiiaw the Contractors to provide peer support
services to adults with long-term and/or severe mental illness. The Contractor will provide services that
will enhance personal wellness, independence, and recovery by reducing crises due to symptoms of
mental illness. Peer support services include supportive Interactions and shared experiences using an
Intentional Peer Support model that fosters recovery from mental illness and self-advocacy skills.
Additionally, peer support services teach wellness self-management, and provide outreach by face-to
face or telephone calls to provide continued support to consumers who may not be able to attend
services. Also warmline fine services will be available statewide by providing telephone peer support to
assist individuals in addressing a current crisis related to their mental health during hours when an
agency Is closed for services. These eight peer support agency contractors expect to serve a total of
3,300 consumers during Slate Fiscal Year 2017. The Agreements reguire the Contractors increase the
number of consumers served by 10% for each subsequent State Fiscal Year.

Approval of the advanced payment for each of the eight (8) Vendors, for each State Fiscal Year,
wili aDow the Contractors to continue to cover operating expenses. These funds cover day to day costs
including payroll and occupancy. These agencies face considerable challenges in their day to day
operations. The Department considers advance payment to these vendors as a necessary method to
ensure ongoing services for the clients that they serve. The Department is in close communications
with these agencies and monitors their financial status on an ongoing basis.

The-Department published a Request for Proposals for Substance Use Disorder Treatment and
Recovery Support Services (RFP2017-BBH-02-PEERS) on the Department of Health a^ Human
Services website March 24, 2016 through April 26, 2016. The Department received eight proposals.
These proposals were reviewed and scored by a learn of individuals with program specific knowledge!
The Department selected all the Vendors to provide these services (See attached Summary Score
Sheet). '

Some of the Vendors" proposals scored lower than anticipated: however, it was determined that
losing peer support services would be detrimental to the individuals, families, and communities of New
Hampshire. In order to ensure effective delivery of services, the Department has strengthened
language In the Vendors' contracts. Monthly Board minutes and attachments will be submitted for
review as well as a Board memt>er list whenever changes in membership occur. Quarterly review
letters based upon review of monthly and quarterly submissions will be sent to the agencies requiring
corrective action response v/hen necessary. In addition, the Department monitors the peer support
Contractors through quality assurance reviews, monthly meetings, monthly and quarterly financial
reporting and quarterly statistical reporting.



Her Excelfency, Margaret Wood Hassan
and Her Honorable Council
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The attached Contracts Include language that reserves the right to renew each contract for up to
four (4) additional years, subject to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of
contracted services and Governor and Executive Council approval.

Should Governor and Coundl determine not to approve this request, 3,300 persons could lose a
valuable support they have come to rely on to manage their symptoms of mental illness. Some
individuals likefy will need a higher level of service Including hospitalizatlon.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: General Funds and 55.45% Federal Funds from United States
Department of Health and Human Services. Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Award (CFDA) 93.958, and Federal Avrard Identification Number (FAiN)
SMO1OO35-10

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respeclfully submitted

Katja S. Fox
Director

rey

Approved by: j \ f H
teyers

Commissioner

Pie Department ofHeafth and Human San/Kfs' Mission Is toJoin communities and families
in pmvidlng oppodunitiBs fa/citizens to achieve health and independence.



Hndnctsl D«t3il

OM5-92-920010-7143 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES:T?EArTTrANCmiMAN-9V€S-e6Fq'-0*:r-HWS;3£UAi/inRAI. HEALTH EXV
OP. DiV OF BEHAVIORAL HSALTH. MEhTTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

lOOVi Ped«raJ Punde

Activity CMe: S22071i3
The AltemaUve Life Center

Vendor #059801

State Fiscal Yeor Class Title Class Account Current Budget

•  2017 Cohlracte for Proj Svs 103-500731 S  200.154.00

2018 Contracts for Prcg Svs 102-500731 %  200.1S4XDO

Subtotal S  580,308.00

'

The StepDinfl Stons Droo^n Center Aseoclatien •

Vendor# 157967

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Currertt Budget

2017 Contracts far Prog Svs 102-500731 5  209.79C.00

2018 Contracts far Prog Svs 102-500731 $  209,790.00

Subtotal . t  419,580.00

Lakes Reolon Consumer Advisory Board

Verxlcr? 157060

State Fiscol Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts far Prog Svs 102-500731 $  168.183.00

2019 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  188.183.00

Subtotal S  376,366.00

MonadnocK Area Peer Support Apency

Vendor# 157973

Stale Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Corttracis for Prcg Svs 102-500731 i  140,448.00

2018 Contracts tor Prog Svs 102-500731 5  1 46.449.00

Subtotal %  292,898.00

H.E.A.R.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Region VI
Ver.dor # 209287

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Conlracts for Prog S-rs 102-5C0731 S  211.660.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 5  211.850.00

Subtotel 8  423,720.00



Financial D«lan

On the Road to Recoverv. Inc.

Vendor# 158839

Slate Piocal Year ClatsHtle Class Account Current Sudgit

2017 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 i 245.582.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 245.562.00

Subtotal s 491.124.00
- C- •

Connections Peer Support Cenlar

Vendor #157070

Stats Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 135,751.00

2018 Contracts for Prog S-za 102-500731 S 135,751.00

Subtotal i 271,502.00

TrPCKy Consumers' Aclfon Co-operative

Vendor #157797

Slats Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $ 102.392.00

2018 Conltacts for prog S'/s 102-500731 $ 102.302.00

Subtotal 5 204,724,00

SUBTOTAL % 3,060.222.00

05-95-92-920010-7011 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV
OF. DtV OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. PEER SUPPORT SERVICES

.100% General Furxls

AclivityCode: 92207011

The Aitemativg Life Center

Vendor # 088801

State Fiscal Year Class Title. Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S .  233,122.00

2010 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 233,122.00

Sublolal- % 468,244.00

The Slepoinq Stone Droo-ln Center Association

vendor# 157887

Slate Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S 168,555.00

2018 Coriracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 s 168.555X)0

Subtotal i 337,110.00

Paj«2oF3



Flnaftdil Detail
'^3

L«k«s Roglon Consumer Advisory Board

Vftftrtcr ft 157060 '

Stats Rscil Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget'

?m7 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  151.196.00

2018 - Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-500731 S  151.196.00

Subtotal $  302,392.00

Monadnoek Area Pear Support Anency

V/ondor ft 157973

State Fiscal Year Class Tide Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 5  117,665.00

2018 Contracts (or Prog Svs 102-800731 5  117A8S.OO

Subtotal $  235.330.Q0

H.E AR.T.S. Peer Support Center of Greater Nashua Realon VI

Vendor ft 209287

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 %  -170^18.00

2018 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  170,218.00

Subtotal $  340,430.00

On the Roed to Recoverv, Irtc.

Vendor ft 1S8639

Stato Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts lor Prog Svs 102-500731 S  197.296.00

2018 Contracts ter Prog Svs 102-500731 $  197.296.00

Subtotal $  394,59100

Connections Peer Support Center

Vender# 157070

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Contracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 $  109,071.00

2018 Conlracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 S  109.071-00

Subtotal $  210.142.00

Trl-Citv Consumers' Action Co-oporatlve

Vendor ft 157797

State Fiscal Year Class Title Class Account Current Budget

2017 Conlracts tot Prog Svs 102-500731 5  82.245.00

2018 Conlracts for Prog Svs 102-500731 5  82,245.00

Subtotal S  164,490.00

SUB TOTAL $  2,458,739,00

TOTAL 5.S1B,958.00

Pa«e3o'3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit
Summary Scoring Sheet

Peer Support Services RFP-2017-BBH-024>EERS
RFP Neme RFP Number Reviewer Names

'■PeUrRnid
Gidder Name

MaxuTHim

Points
Actual

Points
5

Ann OriscoU,

Connection Peer Support Center 575 301 ' Stoeey Oubre

HEART Peer Support Center 575 271
4
' Tom Grinley

' Lakes Reolon Consumer Advisory Board 375 365 Jamie Kelly

4' Monadnock Area Peer Support Agency 575 42B Elizabeth Fenoer-LokalUs

On the Road to Recovery 575 461 7.

Stopping Stone Drop In Center 575 481 8.

The Atternetlva Life Center 575 453 9.

8.
Tri-Cily Consumers' Action Cooperative 575 454



Subject; Peer Svipppn Sei\-ice3 fSS-2Q17-DBH-OZ-PI;l:Rii-06)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (verswo 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreemcnl ond bU of Us altachmcnts shall btscome public upon submission to Oovemor and
Executive Council for approval. Any informaiion that is private, confidential or proprietBty must
be clearly tdcnliftcd to the ngency and osrccd to in uriting prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The Sm/c of New Hnmpshtrc and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

general pro visions

I. IDENTinCATlON.

M Stale Agency Name
Deporlmeniof Health and Human Scivicos

1.3 CoiilraciorKiune

'llic AltematiA-e Life Center

1.5 Cootrocior Phone

Number

603-4<17-1765

J.6 Account Number

05-95-92-920010-7I43-102-

500731; 05-95-92-920010-
7011-102-500731

1.9 Centtacdng Officer for Slate Agency
Eric B. Bonin, Director

1.11 Contractor Signature

1.2 State Agency Address
129 PlcssBDl Sued

Concord, Nil 03301-3857

1.4 Contractor Address

6 Main Street.

Cortwnv*, NH 03318

1.7 ComplclionDale

juiic.30,'2018.

1.8 Price Limitation

51,046.552

1.10 Stale Agcucy Telephone Number
603-271-9553

1.12 Name and Tilk of Contractor Signatory

/?, Sc(7ru,iAj

1.13 Acknouledgemenl; Stoicof fij, {-} ■ . County of

On , before the undcrsigocdofficer, personally appeared the person idenlificd in block 1,12, or-satisftictorily
proven to be the person whose name is sigued in Wock 1. II, and acknowledged that sdie executed tliis docunicni in Uic capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 . Signaauc of Notaiy Public or Jiislicc of the Pence

1.13.2 Name and Title ofNolaiy or JusUcc of the Pcaw

r..
Jii

BONNE L HAYES
Notary ̂  bUo ■ New Hfijnpshln

My CotTunlsston Ei^reo PcboKuy 6| 20)0

1.14 Slate Agency Signature

Dale: ^\^l\ 'sS)
1.16 Approval by Ihc N.H. Dcpartracnlof Adminisiralion. Division of P

Bv: IDirccior. On:

5 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory

f^>c
crsonnclT^applicable)

.j /"

1.17 Approval bv the Attorney General (Foi'm, Substance ar>6 Execution) fi/applicable)

Bt

1.18 Approval by the Govero/rjnnd Exeeutive^ouncil

By:

il[ (1/appUcabfej

On;
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2. employmentOFCONTRACTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New Hampshire, ocling
ihrough ibc agency identified io block 1.1 C State L engngcs
contractor klenlified in block 1.3 C'Controclor") to pcrrofm,
and the Contractor shoU pefform, the wckW or sale of or
both. iiieotifieJ undirarr ' ' ' " —'
EXHIHri' A which is incorporated herein by rL-fcjciice
CScr vices").

X EFTECrrVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrceraent to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Go\-cmov and
IiXeouli\-e Council of the Stale of New Hampshii-e. if
opplicahle, thb Agreement, and all obligations of (he parties
hercundcr. shall become ctTcclivc on Ibc date the Oovvmor
and Executive Council approve this Agieemcni m indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such apptONul is required, in which ca.sc
the Agreement shall become effeclivo nn the dale the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as slwwn in block
I.MCKffcctIt* Date").
3.2 IftheContmclor coinaiences the Scr\icc.s prior In the
EtTcctiveDoie. oil Services perfwncd by the Conimctpi prior
to the Effective Dale shall be pctfoimcd at the sole hsk of the
ConU-actor, nnd in the event that this Agrccnienl docs not
become effective, the Stale shall have no liability to the
Contractor, iocluding without Uniilaiion, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurrod or Sciaiccs portoimed.
Contractor mast complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.
Nol\vith$tanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obUgallons of the State hcrcuader. including,
without limiiaiion, the coniimianee of payment.^ hcrcur^er, are
contingent upon the availebilily and continued appropiiation
of funds, and in no event shall the Suic be linhle for on)
payments hcreuodw in e.xccs-s of such awiUble appropriated
funds. In the event ofc reduction Or terminolion of
appropriated funds, the Stale ihall haw iho right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to lermlmlc this Agreement immediately upon
giring the CooUaclor notke of such icrminaliort The .SMlc
;ba|) not be required to transfer Amds from any other account
10 Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or uruiwilable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The conimct price, method of payment, and leniis o|
payment are identified and more particularly doiuribcd in
EXHIDIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The pB)mcnl by lite State of the conltnct price shall l>c the
only and the coniplclc mimbursemcnt to the Contractor for .ill
expenses, ofwhatewr nature incurred by (bo Contraclur in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the conplcte
compensation to the Conlraolor for the Seniccs. 1 he State
shall have no liahiliiy to the Conbactor other than the conirnci
price.

Page

5.3 The Stale reserves the right to ofTscl from any amounts
oihcrvrisc payable to the Conlxoclor under this Agreement
tho.* liquidated nmounLs required or pciTiutled by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreerhcnl to the
cmttrarj.mid nuliiithstAuUuiguj>c.\peuteJ uiemrmtoiivwj, .i.
no ewnt shall the total of all payments nulhorized. or aelually
modc hercundcr. c.scccd the Price Lbnitation set forth to block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
opportunity.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Scn ices, the
Conlroclor shall comply with all stalutes, lawn, rcgulatio^.
and orders of federal, slate, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Coniraetot,
including, but not limited tu. civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize lUKiliary
aids and services to ensure that pcnion.s with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and ̂ cech, can
comniunicaie with, reccivi; itiTormation ffoni, and convc^'
infomvolion to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.,
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Conlioctor shall
not Jisctiminaic against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, crccd, age. s«:.
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will lake
affirrnouvc action to present such discrimination.
6..3 if this Agreement is hinded in any pert by- monies of the
United Slates, the Conuaclor shall comply tvilb all the
provisions of E.xcculi\v Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportuaity"). as supplemented by the
regulations of the UniledSialcs DcpaitrocntorLnbor(4l
C.y.R. Port 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
a.s the Sujlc of New Hampshire or the United Slates issue to
implement these regulation.s. The Conlniclor fuillicr agrees to
permit the State or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose ol
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covcnnnLv, terms and conditions of this Apccmeni.

7. PfcKSONNEL.

7.1 The Ccnlroctor shall al its own expense provide all
pcrKonacl necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel cugogcd in the Scmccs shall he
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and othcAvise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless oiN:nvi.<e aiilhoii/cd in writing, during the term of
this AgicerDeni, and for a period ot sLx (6) tnondis after tU:
Completion Dale in block 1.7, \ho Contractor shall not hire,
nod shall not permit any subeontraclor or other person, firm or
corporalion with whom it is engaged in a combined eflbcl to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Slate
employee or orficial, who is materially involved in the
pfocorcmenl, aJmini^lration or perfonnonec of this

2 of 4
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A^j«ctncaL This provision shall svirvivc tcrminalioo of this
A^ccment.
7.3 The Conlrncliag OfTica specified in Week 1.9. or hi.s or

■her suocessor, shall be the State's representative, tn tbv event
of any dispute concenungihc tDlerprclalion of this Agiuumcnt.
the ContTBCtiog OlTiccf's decision sliall be nnol for llic Slate.

8. event of default/remedies.
8.1 Anyone or score of the follo\«ing acts or omissloas of lite
Contractor shall ccnstituie an event of default heieuodcv
("Event of Default"):
6.1.1 failure to perfonn the Sen'iccs sailstactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 (ailure to submit any rcpoii required hcrcundcr; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perforrc ohy other covenant, teim or cocdilioo
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occuirencc of any Exxnt of Default, the State
may take any one, or mote, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Cootisclor a written aoliee specifying the Event
of Default arxl requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a groatcr or lesser spcciriualion of lime, thirty (30)
days from (he date of the aotice; and if the Event o f r>cfaull i.<)
not timely remedied, ternuoaLe this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after ^ving the Contractor notice of teviniDatioiv.
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the E\ cni
of Deftull and su^ending all payments to be made under thi.t
Agreement and ordering that the portion of (be contracl price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
peiiod from tbe date of such notice until such lime as State
detcmiines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

' .shall never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 set off against ooy other obligotious (he Slate may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State .sufTers by reason of ony
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of it.*
itmedies at low or In equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCfiSS/CONFroEiNTfALITY/
preservation.
9.! As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shell mean oil
infomialion and things dereloped or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agicemcnt. bcluding, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files. fonnuUe, surveys, mops, charts, sound recording.*, video
teconJings. pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyse."!,
graphic represcnUtliODS, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, mcmoianda, paper.*, and docuraenls,
all whether flrtished or unfinished.
9.1 All data and any property which has been received rn)m
the Sate or purchased with funds piovidiHl for that putposo
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, end
shall be returned to the Sate upon demand or upon
icrrainaiion of this Agrecmt.*nt for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of daU shall be governed by RH. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclasurc ofdatn
requires piior written approval of iJtc State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early lermiratioa of
this AgieemcDi for any reason other thati ll« completion of the
Sci\"iccs, the CoDl/actoi shall delives to the Contracting
Ofllccr. not Inter than fifteen (15) days ufier the date of
tcimination, a report C'Terminalion Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of icnronalioQ. The forro,subject
matter, ccnlcnt. and number of copies of the TenninatioQ
Report shall be identical to lliose of any Final R^oil
dcscfilicd in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects on independent eontrautor, and is neither an agent oor
on en^loycc of the Stale. Neither tbe Conli^ctor nor any of it.*
officers, employees, agents or membcra shall hove authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, o: othcrvrise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wiincn notice and
consent of ibu State. None of the Services shell be
subconlroclcd by the Contxncloi without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Cootroctor sholl defend,
indcninify and hold harmless the State, its ofTicers and
emplO)ees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its ofltcers and employees, and anv arul all claims,
liabilities or penaliies asserted ogaixKt the State, its ofTicect
and employee.*, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which maybe
cloimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor, Nohriihstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
eonuiincd shall be deemed to constitute a woivcr of (he
sovereign immunity of the State, which unmunity is hereby
reseivcd to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shaU
sunivc the icrtninolion of this Agreement

U. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Coiilractor shall, ot Us sole expcns:, obtain and
moinlain in force, and slutU require any subconlractoror
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:
14.1.1 comprohcnsivc general liability insurance against oil
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1 .OOO.OOOper occurrence and $2,000,000
oggrcgalc; oral

. 1-1.1.2 spcc'ral cnuse ol"los.s coverage foiin covering all
property subject to subporagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value ofthe property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy rorraa and endorsements approved for use in the
Stale ofNcw IlampshiTc by the N.H. Department of
Insiinmec, and issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New
Ilompshire.

lC
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14.3 The ConirtCtorjholl furoish lo ihc ConlnsciiuaOrTtccr
idealined in bkxk 1.9, or his or her successor, o ccrtincaie(s>
orimunincc for aJl insvtranoe rcqiured under Ihis Apvcnicm.
Conmetor shall also Furnish to the Conlructing OITiccr
idenlified b block 1.9. or his or her successor, ccrtifi«lc(s) of
[nsifliiiuitf fbi 111) leiieuiilCs'j nf lismncsiiuyiired undfrinh?
Agfeemcnt tro leter Ihan Ihirty (30) <la) $ prior to the e.xpiralion
date of each of the insurance policies. The cerlificalcfs) of
insuronce and any lenoxvals Ihcrttof shall be attached atrd nrc
incorporated lierein by reference. Each ccrtincatc(s) of
ihsurance shall contain a clause ivrjuirin; the insurer to
provide the Conliaeting Otliccr identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than ihhiy (30) days piior uTiitcn
nolicc ofcancellilionor modincatioo of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATlOiN.

15.1 By signing this ■greemeol.the Contnctor agrees,
certifies and vcanants thai the Contractor is in compliance with
Of exempt IVom. the requiremenlsofN.il. RSA chapter 2d I-A
("lyorkfrs' Coffipenjotioii
JS.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements oFH.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Conutrclor shall
maintain, and reqitire any subcontmctor or asciignce to secure
andmaintfib. poymcnt of Workers' Compciuciion in
connection with xtmlies which the pei-son proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor shall
fundsh the Coniracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
a' her successor, proof of Workers' Compensaiiun in (he
manner described in N.H RSA chapter 281 -A nnd ony
eppHceble rcneoTil(s) thereof, which shall be attached and nre
incorporilcd herein by refwencc. The State shall not be
responsibltf for payment of any Worifcrs' Compensation
premiums or for any oilier claim or benefit for Conirucior, ur
any subconlractor or employee of Conltodor, which mi^l
iiise under applicable Suite of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation lows in connection with the performance of the
Services under ibis Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREAOi. No failure by the Stiic to
enforce any piovisions bereofofler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver ofits rights wjih rcgord to thni tvcni of
Dcfsult, or any subsequent Event of Default. No cvprctii;
failure to cnfoiuc any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of ihe State tu enforce each and oil of the
proiisions hereof upon any Airther or other Event of Dcfoull
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party herem to the other party
shall be decmcil lo hait been dtOy delivered or given at the
limo of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in u Uniicd
Slates post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in btucks 1.2 and i .4. Ircrein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,'
waived or discharged only by on instrument in writing signed
by <hc parties hereto arrd only afler approval of such
nmcndmcni. waiver or di.tchjrgc by the Governor and
Hxeculive Council of the Stale of NcwHampshirc unlc.is no

such approval is rcqturcd uoder Iho circumstances pursuant to
,Sinlc law, rule or policy.

J 9. CONSTTRUCTION OF ACREEMJENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be coaslrued in accordance with the
•uwnAf Utc .vaie bfrfdw Hstfifwhifd, And is hindlng upw and
inuicj lo the benefit of Ihc parties and IhcLr respective
.xucccssurs and assigns. The wording used In this Agreement
ia the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule ufconsu-uetion shall be applied agoinsi or
in favor of any party.

21). THIRD PARTIES. The partic.s hcivio do not intend to
benefit ony third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agiccmcnl
are fur reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify-, amplify or
aid in llic rntci-prelation. construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the ottachcd HXHIDfT C ore incofporeted herein hy
rolcrerrcc.

23. SEVERABILITY, In ihcevcrtl any ofthe proxisionsof
ihi.s Agreement arc hold by a court of competent jurisdiction lo
be contrart' to anv state or federal law, Ihe remaining
pnn-isions of this Agreement will remain In full force and
cffecl.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agivcmcnt, which may
be c.xccutcd in a number ofcounterpaits. each of which shall
be deemed an oiiginal. con.stiiui6S Ihc entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersede.? all pnor
Agreements and understandings relating heixto.
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Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

'1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Harrpshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agerwy has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achteve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services that will:

1.3.1. Increase quality of life for persons living with mental illness in NH.

1.3.2. Increase hope for and belief in the possibility of recovery for persons living with
mental illness in NH.

1.3.3. Increase choice regarding the services and supports available to persons living
with mental illness In NH.

1.3.4. Provide alternatives to and reduce the use of more restrictive and expensive
services such as hospitalization.

1.3.5. Increase social connectedness for persons living with mental Illness In NH.

1.3.6. Increase satisfaction with peer support services.

1.4. The Contractor agrees to provide mental health peer support services to persons 16
years of age or older who self Identity as a recipient, as a former recipient, or as a
significant risk of becoming a recipient mental health services, and may include
persons who are homeless.

1.5. The Contractor agrees to give priority of peer support services to consumers wtio are
age sixty (60) and over, wtio are most social isolated, and/or risk of placement in the
public mental health service delivery system.

2. Definitions

2.1. Board of Directors means the governing body of a nongovernmental Peer Support
Agency.

2.2. Consumers are any individual, 18 years of age or older. v4io self identifies as a
recipient, as a former recipient, or as a significant risk of becoming a recipient of
publlcally funded mental health services.

2.3. Culturally Competent means having attained the knowledge, skills, and attitudes
necessary to provide effective supports, services, education and technical assistance
to the populations in the region served by the Contractor.

2.4. Business Days are defined as Monday through Friday, excluding Saturday and
Sunday.

RfP-20l7-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Contractor Initials;
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2.5. Guests are any persons who are Invited to visit the Peer Support Agency by a
member, participant, or the Peer Support Agency.

2.6. Homeless Is (1) an Individual or family who lacks a fixed, regular, and adequate
nighttime residence; or (2) an indivtduaf or family who has a primary nighttime
residence that Is a supervised publicly or privately operated shelter designed to
provide temporary living accommodations (including welfare hotels and congregate
sheilas), an Institution other than a penal facility that provides temporary residence for
individuals intended to be instilutionalized, or a public or private place not designed for,
or ordinarily used as. a regular sleeping accommodation for human beings.

2.7. Management staff mear^ staff that Is responsible for supervising other staff and
volunteers affiliated with the program.

2.0. Members are any consumers, wtw have made an informed decision (o join, and agree
to support the goals and ot^ectlves of peer support services.

2.9. Mental Illness is defined in RSA 136-C:2 X,.namely, "a substantial impairment of
emotional processes, or of the ability to exercise conscious control of one's actions, or
of the ability to perceive reality or to reason, when the impairment is manifested by
instances of extremely abnormal behavior or extremely faulty perceptions. It does not
include impairment primarily caused by: (a) epilepsy; (b) mental retardation; (c)
continuous or noncontinuous periods of intoxicatiort caused by substarces such as
alcohol or drugs; or (d) dependence upon or addiction to any substance such as
alcohol or drugs."

2.10. Partidpant means a consumer, who is not merrier, who partidpales in any aspect of
peer support services.

2.11. Peer Support Agency (PSA) means an organization whose primary purpose Is to
provide culturally appropriate peer support to persons 18 year of age and older who
have a mental illness.

2.12. Recovery means for a person with a mental illness, development of personal and
social skills, beliefs and characters that support choice, increase quality of life,
minimize or eliminate impairment, and decrease dependence on professional services.

2.13. Region Is the geographic area of cities and tovms In New Hampshire, as defined by
the Department.

2.14. SMI is Serious Mental Illness that refers to individuals whom the state defines as
having either Serious Mental Illness (SMI) or Serious and Persistent Mental Illness
(SPMI) pursuant to N.H. Revised Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C:2, XV.

2.15. Quarter or Quarterly is defined as the periods of July 1 through September 30, October
1 through December 31, January 1 through March 31. and April 1 through June 30.

2.16. Week is defined as Monday through Sunday.

RFP-20t7-B6H-02-P66RS 06 Exhibit A Contractor Initiats:
The Altomaliva Lir« C«nt«r _

Page 2 or 17 Date:



New Hampshbo Department of Health and Kuman Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A

3. Scope of Services

3.1. Peer Support Services

3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide peer support services that are provided for
consumers and by consumers as follows:

3.1.1.1. Provide peer support services that include supportive interactions
shared experiences, acceptance, trust, respect, lived experience, and
mutual support among members, participants, staff and volunteers.

3.1.1.2. Provide at least forty-four hours per week of peer support services, by
face-to-face or by telephone to members of a peer support agency or
Others who contact the agency.

3.1.1.3. Provide peer support services at a minimum based on the Intentional
Peer Support model that

a. Fosters recovery from mental illness by helping individuals identify

and achieve personal goals while building an evolving vision of
their recovery.

b. Fosters seif-advocacy skills, autonomy, and independence;

c. Emphasizes mutuality and reciprocity as demonstrated by shared
decision-making, strong connict resolution, non-medical
approaches to help, and non-static roles, such as, staff who are
members and members who are educators;

d. Offers alternative viev/s on mental health, mental illness and the

effects of trauma and abuse;

e. Encourages Informed decision-making about all aspects of
people's lives;

f. Supports people with mental illness in challenging perceived self-
fimltations. while encouraging the development of beliefs that
enhance personal and relational growth;

g. Emphasizes a holistic approach to health that includes a vision of
the "whole" person.

3.1.1.4. Provide opportunities to learn wellness strategies, by using at a
minimum Wellness Recovery Action Planning (WRAP) and Whole
Health Action Management (WHAM), to strengthen a member's and
participant's ability to attain and maintain their health and recovery
from mental illness

3.1.1.5. Provide outreach by face-to-face or by telephone contact with
consumers by providing support to members who are unable to attend
agency activities, visiting people who are psydiialrically hospitalized
and reaching out to people who meet membership criteria and are
homeless.

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Contractor Initials:
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3.1.1.6. Provide mordhfy newsletters published by the peer support agency
that desaibes agency services and activities, other community
services, social and recreational opportunities, member artides and
contributions and other relevant topics that might be of Interest to
members and participants.

3.1.-1.7. Distribute the Newsletters to the members and other interested
parties, such as community mental health centers and other
appropriate community organizations, at least five (5) business days
F^or to the upcoming month.

3.1.1.8. Provide Monthly Education Events and Presentations of information
germane to Issues and concerns of consumers of mental health
services which shall include, education topics \o t>e covered over the

•  course of the year, but no! limited to;

a. Rights Protection.

b. Peer Advocacy,

c. Recovery,

d. Emptoymen!

e. Wellness Management, and

f. Community Resources.

3.1.1.9. Provide at least 5 days prior to the beginning of the month, to the
Office of Consumer and Famity Affairs within the Department's
Bureau of Behavioral Health, both electronic and a paper copy of the
monthly riewsteUers arvd education events in Section 3.2.1.16 and
Section 3.2.1.18.

3.1.1.10. Provide Individual Peer Assistance by assisting adults to:
a. Locate, obtain, and maintain mental heaith services and supports

through referral, consumer education, and self-empowerment,

b. Support individuals who are identifying problems by assisting
them in addressing the issue andior in resolving grievances; and

c. Promote self-advocacy.

3.1.1.11. Provide Employment Education by assisting members with:
a. Information on obtaining and maintaining competitive employment

(any employment open to the general pubfic and achieved during
the quarter, even if employment is time limited),

b. Referrals to community mental health centers employment
programs,

c. Employment related activities such as, but not limited to, resume
writing, interviewing, or assistance with employment applications.

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 , Exhibit A Contractor initials;
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3.1.1.12. Inform the members and general public about the peer supports and
wellness services available at a minimum as fdlows;

a. Provide monthfy Community Education Presentations to
potential referral sources, funders, or families of individuals
affected by mental illness, about mental Illness and the peer
support community.

3.1.1.13. Inform local human service providers and the general public about the
stigma of mental Illness, wellness ar*! recovery at a rrdnimum as
follows:

a. Collaborate with other local human service providers that serve

consumers in order to fadlitate referrals and share information

about services and other local resources.

3.1.1.14. Provide training and technical assistance to help consumers on their
own behalf regarding healthcare such as but not limited to, sharing
techniques for being ready for a doctor's appointment, how to take
notes, how to use the physician's desk reference bock for
medications and a review of patient rights.

3.1.1.15. invite guests to participate in peer support activities.

3.1.1.16. Provide residential support services as needed by memters and
participants by providing support and assistance such as but not
limited to help vwth staying In their home or apartment, or finding a
place to live.

3.1.1-17. Maintain at least a monthly schedule of peer support and wellness
services and activities, staff development and training, and other
related events.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide transportation services to members, participants and
guests as follows:

3.2.1. Use a Contractor owned or leased vehicle.

3.2.2. Transport members, participants, guests to and from Iheir homes and/or the
-Contractor's peer support agency to participate In activities such as but not
limited to:

3.2.2.1. Peer Support Services

3.2.2.2. Wellness and Recovery Activities

3.2.2.3. Annual Conferences

3.2.2.4. Regional Meetings

3.2.2.5. Council Meetings

3.2.3. Comply with all applicable Federal and State Department of Transportation and
Department of Safety regulations such as but not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Vehicles must be registered pursuant to NH Administrative Rule Saf-C
500
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•ar.

3^.3.2. Vehicles must be Inspected in accordance wHh NH Admirtistrative
Rule Saf-C 3200. and

32.3.3. Drivers must be licensed in accordance with NH Administrative Rule
Saf-C 1000, drivers licensing

3.2.4. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehicles sign a Stale of New Hampshire Release of Individual Motor
Vehicle Driver Records form that shows the driver has a safe driving record.

3.2.5. Require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive Contractor
owned vehicles complete a National Safety Council Defensive Driving course
offered through a State of New Hampshire approved agency.

3.2.6. Agrees that funding from the Department to support transportation costs rrtay
not be used for other than peer support related activities defined In this
Agreement and may not be used to pay for taxi or bus rides.

3.3. Crisis Respite

3.3.1. The Contractor agrees to operate a peer operated Crisis Respite that provides
early Intervention for Individuals (18) years of age and older who have a mental
illness and who are experiencing a crisis in the community as foDows:

3.3.1.1. Provide to any consumer from any of the Regions in New Hampshire
regardless of where they live or work.

3.3.1.2. Provide a short-term crisis respite in a safe environment, staffed by
peers, Intended to maintain community placement and avoid
hospitalization.

3.3.1.3. Provide interventions using a model of Intentional Peer Support (IPS),
that focus on individual's strengths and assists in personal recovery
and wellness.

3.3.1.4. Provide a place for the person to stay temporarily in order to facilitate
recovery and shall be staffed with a trained personnel twenty-four (24)
hours per day when partidpanis are in the program..

3.3.1.5. Develop a referral process and making referrals to the local
community mental he^th center for those who require a higher level
of care or evaluation for hospitalization.

3.3.1.6. Offer other peer support, agency services and supports during the
course of stay at the crisis respite program.

3.3.1.7. Provide transportation to and from the crisis respite program to other
community-based appointments.

3.3.1.8. Administer a functional assessment that is approved by the
Department, at the lime of entry and exit from the program.

3.3.1.9. Provide individualized supports with a focus on wellness and recovery
that may include Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP), if
applicable.

3.3.1.10. Support the individual in reluming to participation In community
activities, services and supports.
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3.3.1.11. Ensure the individual's health needs if they become in or injured are
addressed during the course of their slay in the crisis respite program.

3.3.1.12. Ensure communication with other service providers Involved in the
indtviduafscare, wth their written consent.

3.4. WarmUne Services

3.4.1. The Contractor agrees to provide warmline services that offers on-call
telephone peer support services to members, participants, and others that:
3.4.1.1. Are primarily provided to any individual who lives or works in Region

1, or anyone who lives or works elsewhere In the State of New
Hampshire or oul-of-state.

3.4.1.2. Are provided during the hours the peer support agency is closed.
3.4.1.3. Are mainly provided to individuals in the Contractor's region with the

ability to receive calls from and make calls to individuals statewide.

3.4.1.4. Assist individuals in addressing a current crisis related to their mental
health.

3.4.1.5. Refer clients to appropriate treatment and other resources in the
consumer's service area.

3.4.1.6. Are provided by staff thai are trained in providing crisis services.

3.4.1.7. May include outreach calls described in Section 32.1.5

4. Geographic Area and Physical Location of Services
4.1. The Contractor will provide services in this Agreement to individuals who live or wori<

in Region 1, and other Regions specific to services identified in Section 3.3 and 3.4.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide peer support services separately from the confines of a
local mental health center, unless pre-approved by the Department.

4.3. The Contractor agrees to provide a physical location/building to provide peer support
services that are in accordance with Exhibit C Section 15 and with the Life Safety
requirements that include but not limilod to:

4.3.1. A Building In compliance with local heatlh, building and fire safety codes,

4.3.2. A Building that is maintained in good repair and be free of hazard,

4.3.3. A building that Includes:

4.3.3.1. At least one indoor bathroom which includes a sink and toUel.

4.3.3.2. At least one telephone for Incoming and outgoing calls,

4.3.3.3. A functioning septic or other sewage disposal system, and

4.3.3.4. A source of potable water for drinking and food preparation as follows:
a. If drinking water is supplied by a non-public wat©" system, the

v/ater shall be tested and found to be in accordance with New
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Hampshire Administrative Rules Env-Ws 315 and Env-Ws 316
initially and every five (51 years therAafter, anri '

b. If the water is not approved for drinking, an alternative method
for providing safe drinking water shall be implemented

5. Enrolling Consumers for Services and/or as Members with a
Peer Support Agency

5.1. The Contractor agrees to provide peer support services to Individuals defined In
Section 1.4 and 15 who have a desire to work on wel/ness Issues, end who have a
willing desire to participate In services.

5.2. The Contractor may encourage consumers to complete a membership application to
join and support the actiwties and mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5.3. The Contractor agrees that at a minimum the membership application shall stale that
the consumer supports the mission of the Peer Support Agency.

5.4. The Contractor agrees to provide services in this Contract to any consumers who are
non-members or members partidpating in services.

$. Staffing Requirements for a Peer Support Agency
6.1. The Contractors shall employ an executive directorNwho;

6.11. Is appointed by the board of directors (as in Section 8);

6.1.2. Is employed by the Contractor and is supervised by the board of directors in
accordance with the pubfished job description and competitive application
process;

6.1.3. Has at a minimum the following qualification:

5.13.1 One year of supervisory or management experience, and
a. An associate's degree or higher administration, business

management, education, health, or human services; or

b. Each year of experience in the peer support field may be
substituted for one year of academic experience: or

c. Each year of experience in the peer support field may be
substituted for one year of academic experience.

6.1.4. Is evaluated annually by the board of directors to ensure that peer support and
wellness services and activities are provided In accordance with:

6.14.1. The performance expectations approved by the board
6.1.4.2. The Department's policies and rules

6.1.4.3. The CorrtracI terms and conditions

6.1.4.4. The Quality improvement reviews

6.2. The Contractor shall provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks spedtied in this
Agreement.
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6.3. The Contractor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all
of the functions, requirements, roles, and duties in a timely fashion for the number of
clients as Identified in Section 11.

6.4. The Contractor shall select and employ staff utilizing practices and procedures as
approved by the Department, that include at a minimum, assurarv:e that offers of
employment are made in vwiting and include salary, start date, hours to be worked,
and job responsibilities, and that prior employment references shall be obtained and
verified,

6.5. The^Conlraclor shall screen each staff member for tuberculous priorto employment.
6.6. The Contractor shall complete a Criminal Record Check, and submit the names of a

prospective employee vMo may have client contact, for review against the Stale Adult
Protective Service Registry, and against the Division of Chadren. Youth and Families
Central Registry Check to assure that any person who is In regular contact with
members and v^o becomes employed by the Contractor or its Subcontractor after the
Effective Date of this Agreement is screened for criminal convictions in accordance
with RSA 106-8:14 which allows any public or private agency to request and receive a
copy of the criminal conviction record of another who has provided authorization In
writing, duly notarized, explicitly allowing the requester to receive such Information.

6.7. The Contractor shall not add. delete, defund, or transfer among programs staff
positions without prior written petmission from the Department.

6.8. The Contractor shad develop a Staffing Contingency Plan and shall submit their written
Staffing Contingency Plan to the Department within thirty days of the effective date of
the contract that Includes but not be limited to:

6.8.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of loss of key personnel
or other personnel during the period of this Agreenr>ent;

6.8.2. The description of how additional staff resources will be allocated to support
this Agreement In the event of inability to meet any performance standard;

6.8.3. The description of time frames necessary for obtaining staff replacements;

6.8.4. An explanation of the Contractor's capabilitias to provide, In a timely manner,
staff feplacements/addltions with comparable experience.

7. Staff Training and Development
7.1. The Contractor shall verify and document that all staff and volunteers have appropriate

training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the responslbllittes of their
respective positions, by keeping up-to-date personnel and training records and
documentation of all individuals.

7.2. The Contractor shall provide orientation for all new staff providing peer support that
includes, but not limited to:

7.2.1. The statewide peer support system,

7.2.2. All Department policies and rules applicable to the peer support,

7.2.3. Protection of member and partidpant rights.

7.2.4. Contractor policies and procedures

7.2.5. PSA grievance procedures.
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7.2.6. Harassment, discrimination, and diversity.

-7.2.7. Documentation •strch-as'ifTcident-fepoitsraUeiiUdrn^ leLCnUs, and tetuptrona'
,  logs, and

7.2.8. Confidentiality

7.3. The Contractor shall develop and implement written staff development policies
applicable to a!) staff that specincally address the following:

7.3.1. Job Descriptions ^

7.3.2. Staffing pattern

7.3.3. Conditions of employment

7.3.4. Grievance procedures

7.3.5. Performance reviews

7.3.6. Irrdividual staff development plans

7.3.7. Prior employment, each staff rriember shall demonstrate evidence of or
willingness to verify:

7.3.7.1. Citizenship or authorization to work

7.3.7.2. Motor Vehicle Records check to ensure that potential employee has a
valid driver's license, if such employee will be transporting members
or participants

7.3.7.3. Criminal Records Check

7.3.7.4. Previous employment

7.3.7.5. References

7.4. The Contractor shall screen each staff member, prior to employment, for tut>erculosis
{T8) as follcwvs:

7.4.1. AH newly employed employees, including those with a history of bacille
calmette guerin (BCG) vaccination, who will have direct contact with members
and participants and the potential for occupational exposure to Mantoux TB
through shared air space with persons with Infectious TB shall have a TB
symptom screen, consisting of a Mantoux tuberculin skin test or QuanliFERON-
TB test, performed upon employment;

7.4.2. Baseline two-step testing, if performed in association whh Mantoux testing,
shall be conducted in accordance with the Guidelines for Envirx^nmental
infection Control in Health-Care Facilities (2003) published by the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC);

7.4.3. Employees with a documented history of TB. documented history of a positive
Mantoux test, or documented completion of treatment for TB disease or latent
TB infection may substitute that documentation for the baseline two-step test;

7.4.4. All positive TB test results shall be reported to the department's twreau of
disease control, 271-4469, in accordance with RSA 141'C:7, He-P 301.02 and
He-P 301.03;
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7 4 5 All employees with a diagnosis of suspect active pulmonary or laryngeal TS
shall be excluded from the PSA until a diagnosis of TB is excluded or until the
employee is on TB treatment and a determination has been made that the
employee is noninfectious;

7.4.6. All employees with a newly positive tuberculin skin test shall be excluded from
the PSA until a diagnosis of TB disease is ruled out;

7 4 7 Repeat TB testing shall be conducted in accordance with the CDC's Guidelines
for Environmental Infection Control in Health-Care Fadlrties (2003); and

7,4.8. Those employees with a history of previous positive results shall have a
symptom screen and, if symptomatic for TB disease, be referred for a medical
evaluation.

7.5. The Contractor shall complete an annual performance review based on the staffs
.  job description and conducted by his or her supervisor.

7.6. The Contractor shall complete a staff developmenl plan annually with each staff
person by his or her supervisor that is based upon the staffs annual performance
review, and that includes objectives and methods for improving the staff person's
work-related skills and knowledge.

7.7. The Contractor shall conduct or refer staff to training activities that address
objectives for improving staff competencies and according to the staffs
development plan, along with ongoing training in protection of member and
parliclpanl rights.

7.8. The Contractor agrees to maintain documentation in files of the staffs completed
trainings and certifications.

7 9 The Contractor shall obtain Department approval 30 days prior to the training date, for
all trainings provided by the Contractor or to attend trainings other than offered by the
Contractor for staff at least on an annual basis such as but not limited to:

7.9.1. Peer Support;

.  7.9.2. Warmline;

7.9.3. Facilitating Peer Support Groups;

7.9.4. Sexual Harassment; and

7.9.5. Member Rights.

7.10. The Contractor shall provide Intentional Peer Support training and its required
consuKations to meet certification a minimum of every other year.

7 11 The Contractor agrees that if Intentional Peer Support is not being offered in a ̂ ven
year the Contractor shall provide Wellness. Recovery, and Planning training to staff.

7.12. The Contractor agrees that Administrative staff. Including the Executive Director,
shall participate in trainings on: ,

7.12.1. Staff Development;

7.12.2. Supervision;

RFP-ZOl7-SBH-02-PEeRS-06 Exhibit A Contraclof
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New Hampshire Department of Hearth and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A
7.12.3- Perfonnnance Appraisals;

—  CmpbymenhPfacttces ^

7.12.5. Harassment;

7.12.6. Program Development:

7.12.7. Compiainls and the Complaint Process; and

7.12.8. Financial Management.

7.13. The Vendor shall ensure that annual Weltness Training is available to staff and
members, and may be provided to other mental health consumers who do not identify
themselves as members of a peer support agency in the region.

714. The Contractor shad obtain prior approval by the Department at least five (5) days prior
to the training, to provide or refer staff to specific training proposed by either the
Department or the Contractor.

715 The Contractor agrees to provide documentation to the Department within 30 days
from the training In Section 7,14 that demonstrates the staff perscn(s) parlidpation and
complelion of said training.

7.16. The Contractor agrees to collaborate with other Peer Support Agendcs to offer
combined trainings to facilitate more efficient use of training funds and to increase the
scope of trainings offered.

7 17 The Contractor shall require that all employees, members, or volunteers who drive
Contractor owned vehicles sign a State of New Hampshire Release of Individual Motor
Vehicle Driver Records form. Those records must indicate a safe driving record, and
that the driver has participated in a National Safety Council Defensh/e Driving course-
offered through a Slate of New Hampshire approved agency.

7.18. The Contractor shall purge all data In accordance with the instructions from the
Department pertaining to members, participants, and guests who have not received
peer support services within the prior two-year period.

8. Composition and ftesponsibilitles of a Peer Support Agency
8.1. The Contractor shall establish and maintain a status as a Peer Support Agency by.

8.1.1. Being incorporated with the Secretary of State's Office as a non-for-profit
agency

8.1.2. Having a plan for governance that requires:

8.1.2.1. A Board of Directors who:

a. Have the responsibility for the entire management and control of
. the property and affairs of the corporation;

b. Have the powers usually , vested in the board of directors of a non-
for-proflt corporation

c. Is comprised of no fewer.than 9 individuals with at least 51% of
the individuals who self identify as consumers and no more than

RFP-2017-9BH-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Contractor Initials:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Support Services

Exhibit A

20% of the board members shall be related by blood, marriage, or
cohabitation to other board members.

d. Establish and maintain the bylaws

8,1.2.2. Bylaws that outline the:
a. Responsibilllres and powers of the Board of Directors.

b. Term limits for the board of director officers that shall rx)t allow

more than 20% of the board members to serve (or more than 6

consecutive years

c. Nominatir>g process that actively recruits diverse individuals
whose skills and (ffe experiences will serve the needs of the
agency

d. A procedure by which inactive peer support agency members
are removed from the peer support agency board. ,

8.2. The Contractor will submit to the Department within 5 days, a corrective action plan,
with time frames when the Board of Directors membership falls below the required
minimum of nine (9).

5.3. The Contractor will submit to the Department and NH Department of Justice, Division
of Charitable Trusts and the Department, and updated list of current board members
and a corrective action plan with timeframes wtien the Board of Directors membership
falls below the State of New Hampshire minimum required number of five (5).

8.4. The Contractor shall have written descriptions outlining the duties of the members and
officers of the board of directors.

8.5. The Contractor shall have a documented Orientation Process and Manual for the
members and officers of the board of directors. •

8.6. The Contractor shall have annual trainings related to themembers and officers of the
Board of Directors roles and responsibilities, including fiduciary responsibilities.

0.7. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall have fiduciary responsibility for the agency
including approval ot agency financial policies and procedures that includes, but not be
limited to, the following:

8.7.1. Cash Management including cash receipts, cash disbursements, and petty
cash;

0.7.2. Accounts Payable/Receivable Procedures, payroll, and fixed assets;

8.7.3. Internal Control Procedures; and

8.7.4. Expense Reimbursement and Advance Policy.

8.8. The Contractor shall have open attendance to peer support agency members during a
portion of a board meeting.

8.9. The Contractor shall publish the times and locations of Board of Director meetings in
an effort to encourage peer support agency member attendance.

8.10. The Contractor's Board of Directors shall;

: V>/J-

Page 13 of r/ Dale. -^"31 - lb

RFP-2017-BBH-02-P8ERS-06 ExhibitA conlraclorlnitials;
The Alternative Life Center



Nev/ Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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8.10.1. Maintain written records (board minutes) of their meetings including but not
iirTMied to. topics discussed.^tes_ao^agjlons and a monthly review of
the agency's fir^andaJ status and submit the minutes to the Department within
60 days of the meeting.

8.10.2. Maintain a current Board of Director list. Including but not limited to, member
name, board office held, address, phone number, e-mail address, date joined,
and term expiration date.

8.10.3. Maintain documentation of the process and results of annual board elections.

8.10.4. Notify the Department immediately in writing of any charge in board
membership.

8.11. The Contractor shall maintain and make available to the Department upon request a
policy manual that at a minimum Includes policies for:

8.11.1. Human Resources

8.11.2. Staff Development

8.11.3. Financial Responsibilities

8.11.4. Protection for mernber and participant rights.

8.12. The Contractor" agrees to pursue other sources of revenue to support additional peer
support services and/or supplement other related activities that the Department may
not pay for under this Agreement.

9. Participation In Statewide/Regional Meetings
91 The Contractor shall support the recruitment and training of individuals for se^ng on

local regional and stale mental health policy, planning end advisory initiatrves.
Participation of Individuals shall be from other than the Contractor's employees who
provide leadership development meetings, wort^shops. and training events.

9.2. The Contractor's Executive Director, or designee, shall attend the Departmer^t's
monthly Peer Support Directors' meeting that Is held for the purpose of information
exchange, support, and strengthenInQ of the statewide Peer Support system.

9.3. The Contractor shall meet at least two (2) times per year, with other regiorja!
community support organizations that serve the same populations, e.g.. merital health
centers, area homeless shelters, commurttty action programs, housing agendes, etc.,

9.4. The Contractor shall submit to the Department written documentation demonstrating
attendance at the meetings, but not limited to, the meetings in Section 9.2 and 9.3.

10. Grievance and Appeals

10.1. The Contractor shall submit for Department approval within 30 days ̂ m the contract
effective date a grievance and appeals process that includes, but not limited to;

I
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New Hampshire Depsrtment of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A

10.1.1. Receiving complaints orally or in writing and anonymously that includes at a
minimum;

10.1.1.1. consumer name,

10.1.1.2. date of written grievance.

10.1.1.3. nature/subject of the grievance.

10.1.2. Assisting consumers with the grievance and appeal process such as but not
limited to filing a complaint

10.1.3. Tracking complaints

10.1.4. Investigating allegations that a member's or participar\fs rights have been
violated by agency staff, volunteers or consultants;

10.1.5.An immediate review of the complaint and investigation by the Contractor's
director or his or her designee

10.1.6. A process to attempt to resolve every grievance tor which a formal
investigation is requested.

10.1.7. Following completion of a formal investigation, the board of directors of the
PSA shall issue a written decision to the member or participant within 20
budness days selling forth the disposition of the grievance.

10.1.8. Submitting a copy of the written decision in Section 10.1.7 of the complaint to
the Department within 10 days from the written decision,

10.1.9. An appeal process for members or participants to appeal the written decision
made in Section 10.1.7

11. Deliverables

11.1. The Contractor shall submit for Department approval by July 31 of each State Fiscal
Year a Peer Support Agency Quarterly Statistical Data Form provided by the
Depilmenl that provides each Stale Fiscal Years deliverables, such as but not limited
to the number of members, participants, program utilization, phone contacts, outreach
activities, educational events.

11 2 The Contractor shall increase the undupllcated numbers being served in Section 11.1
by ten (10) percent of the total served In the previous year, for each subsequent State
Fiscal Year.

11.2.1. The Contractor shall provide a plan for Department approval by July 31 of each
State Fiscal Year, describing how the Contractor will increase the deliverables
described In Section 11.2.

12. Reporting

12.1. The Contractor agrees to report on forms provided by the Department a list of the
lfs/-(it.nrli lalc fie In SnnCmD 7trained individuals as in Section 7.

-BBH-02-PEERS-06
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12.2. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, quarterly peer support service delfverables. as In Section 11 on forms supplied—
by the Department.

12 3. The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30lh of the month following the
quarter, quarterly Revenue and Expenses by cost and/or program category and
locations, on forms supplied by the Department.

124 The Contractor shall report to the Department by the 30th of the month following the
quarter, a quarterly Capital Expenditure Report, on a form supplied by the Department.

12 5. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the 30th of Ihe month following the
end of each month, the prior months, interim Balance Sheet, and Profit and Loss
Statements for the Contractor including separate statements for related parties that are
certified by an ofTicer of the reporting entity to measure the agenc/s fiscal Integnty as
follows;

12 5 1 Current Ratio that measures the Contractor's total current assets available to
"cover the cost of current liabtlities by using Ihe folfowing formula: Total current
assets divided by total current liabilities. The Contractor shaD maintain a
minimum cun'ent ratio of 1.1:1.0 with no variance allov»«d.

12.5.2. Accounts Payable that measures the Contractor's timeliness In paying invoices.
The Contractor shall not have outstanding invoices greater than sixty (60) days.

12 5 3 Budget Management that compares budget to actual revenues and ex^nses
to determine on a year -to-date basis the percentage of the Contractors budget
executed year-to-dale.

12.5.3.1. Formula; (Revenues) Actual year-to-date revenues compared to
budgeted revenues divided by Iwelve (12) months times the number
of months in the reporting period. (Expenses) Actual year-to-date
expenses compared to budgeted expenses divided by twelve (12)
months times Ihe number of months in the reporting period.

12.5.3.2. Performance Standard: Revenues shall be equal to or greater than
the year-to-date calculation. Expenses shall be equal to or less than
the year-to-date calculation.

12.6. The Contractor shall provide to the Department by the 30th of the month following Ihe
end of each rnonth, the prior months Board of Director meeting minutes Including all
attachments such as but not limited to the Executive Directors report.

13. Quality Improvement

13.1.The Contractor agrees to quality assurance review as follows:
13.1.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of contract

compliance requirements as identified in OMB Circular A-133..
13.1.2. Ensure the Department is provided with access that includes but is not limited

to:

13.1.2.1. Data

13.1.2.2. Financial records

RFP-2017-BBH-02-PEERS-06 Exhibit A Contraclor Initials:
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13.1.2.3. Scheduled access to Contractor worl^ siles/iocalions/work spaces and
associated facilities.

13.1.2.4. Unannounced access to Contractor worl^ sites/locations/woil^ spaces
and associated facilities.

13.1.2.5. Scheduled phone access to Contractor principals and staff

13.2, The Contractor shall perform monitoring and comprehensive quality and assurance
activities Including but not limited to:

13.2.1. Partidpate in quality improvement reviewas In Section 13.1
13.2.2. Conduct member satisfaction surveys provided by and as instructed the

Department.

13.2.3. Review of personnel files for completeness; and
13.2.4. Review of complaint process.

13.3. The Contractor agrees to provide a corrective action plan to the Departmwt wUhin
thirty (30) days from the date the Department notifies the Conlractor is not in
compliance with the contract
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iVtettTOd~aT^c^C0TTtf^tfTmsT^'ecgggnt^gTavmen^

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amounl not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
of the General Provisions of this Agreement, Form P-37. for the services provided by the
Contractof pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded by:
2.1. New Hampshire General Funds;
2.2. Federal funds from the United States Department of Health and Human Se^ces, the

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Community Mental
Health Services Block Grant (CFDA #93.958).

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Services in compliance
with funding requirements In Section 2 above,

4. The Department may make an initial payment to the Contractor each July of an amount
determined by the Departmant as necessary for the Contractor to initiate services each
State Fiscal Year.

5. Subsequent to the action in Section 4, the Department shall make monthly payments to the
Contractor of either 1/12 or based upon documented cash needs as submitted by the
Contractor to maintain services and approved by the Department, of the Deparlment
approved budget amounts in Exhibit B-1 and B-2.

5.1. In no event shall the total of the initial payment in Section 4 and monthly payments in
Section 6 exceed the budget amounts h Exhibit 8-1 ̂ d B-2.

5.2. The Department will adjust monthly payments for expenditures set forth in Section 9
below and arr>ounts paid to initiate services in Section 4 above.

5.3. Expenditures shall be in accordance with the budgets identified as Exhibits 8-1 through
Exhibits B-2. as approved by the Department.

5.4. Allowable costs arid expenses shall be determined by the Department In accordance
with applicable state and federal laws and regulations.

6. The ConLmdor agrees that v/hsn funding raceivod by ths Department exceeds the
Contractor's adual expenditures, the Contractor may submit In writing for Department
approval by June 1 of each State Fiscal Year a plan to expend the excess funds.
6.1. The Contractor agrees that when funding received by the Department exceeds the

Contractor's actual expenditures and does not submit a plan to the Department by June
1 of each Slate Fiscal Year, then Contractor agrees to return those unspent funds to the
Department.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions of this Agreement P-37, an
amendment limited to Exhibits B-1 through Exhibits B-2. to adjust amounts within the
budgets, within the price limitalion, can be made by written agreement of both parties and
may be made wthout obtaining approval of Governor and Executive Council.

tVw
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8. Payment for services provided in Exhibit A Scope of Services shall be made as follows;

8.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice on Department supplied forms, by the tenth
(KT) \working day of each month, v/hich identifies and requests reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred In the prior month. The State shall make payment to the
Contractor in accordance with Section 5, wtthin thirty (30) days of receipt of each DHHS
approved invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

8.2. The invoice must be submitted to:
Financial Manager

Bureau of Behavioral Health
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street, Main Building
Concord, NH 03301

9. Of the Budgeted amounts Identified in Exhibits B-1 and B-2, for each State Fiscal Year the
following activilies will be reimbursed only on a cost reimbursement basis (except for 9.2
Capllal Reserve Fund, See Section 11 below). only upon prior approval of the Department,
and up to the amounts listed below as follows:
9.1. Training and Development: S1.000.
92, Capital Reserve Fund: SO
9.3. Capital Exper>diture: $0
9.4. Crisis Respite: $87,561.
9.5. Retirement: $2,371.

10. The Contractor shall submit an invoice on Department supplied fonns for expenditures Hsted
in Section 9 above, by the tenth (10th) working day of each month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred In the prior month. The Stale
shall make payment to the Contractor on actual expenditures, within thirty (30) days of
receipt of each DHHS approved invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this
Agreement.
10.1. The invoice must be submitted to:

Financial Manager
Bureau of Behavioral Health
Department of Health and Human Services
ICS Pleasant Street, Main Building
Concord, NH 03301

11.Capltai Reserve Fund: The Contractor agrees that the amount budgeted for Capital
Reserve Fund In Section 9 is the maximum amount of funding the Contractor estimates to
use for a future expenditure (in subsequent State Fiscal Years of the contract period) of a
capital expense.
11.1. The Contractor agrees that a capital expense is for purchase of an item with a life of

greater than one year.
11.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with three quotes and explanation for

the capital Item and shall obtain Department approval prior to purchasing the item.
11.3. The Contractor agrees that real estate and major capital building improvements are

not an allowable capital expenditure.
11.4. The Conlractor shall invoice the Department by May of each Stale Fiscal Year on a

Department supplied form to receive funding for the Capital Reserve Fund.

RFP-20l7-BflH-02-PEERS^)6 EExhibil B Contractor
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11.5. The Contfaciof shall deposit funds identified as Caf^tal Reserve Fund in Section 9
—  Into a watrlcWd accuurti, Ih Sh arhCUrtl nw"to exceea tne equn»ajent oi~ine''

depreciation of real and non-real property capital items, for replacernent,
repairs/maintenance of same.

11.6. The Contractor agrees to obtain prior approval from the Department to withdraw the
funding from the restricted account and purchase the item In Seclion 11.2 above.

11.7. The Contractor agrees to return the unspent money In the Capital Reserve Fund
should the Agreement be terminated or end without the purchase of the capital item.

12. Capital Expenditure: The Contractor agrees that the amount budgeted for Capital
Expenditure in Seclion 9 is for a capital expense approved by the Department for an
expense in the current Slate Fiscal Year.
12.1. The Contractor agrees that a capital expense is for purchase of an item with a life of

greater than one year.
12.2. The Contractor shall provide the Department with three quotes and explanation for

the capital Item and shall obtain Department approval prior to purchasing the item.
12.3. The Contractor agrees that real estate and major capital building improvements are

not an allowable capital expenditure.

13. Retirement: The Contractor shall deposit funds Identified as Retirement In Section 9 Into a
restricted account The Contractor agrees to obtain prior approval from the Department to
withdraw the funding from the restricted account to pay for retirement benefits.

14. Any expenditure that exceeds the approved budgets in Section 5 shall be solely the financial
responsibility of the Contractor.

15. The Contractor shall provide supporting documentation, when required by the Department,
to support evidence of actual expenditures. In accordance with the Department approved
budgets In Section 5.

16. When the contract price limitation is reached the program shall continue to operate at lull
capacity at no charge to the Department for the duration of the contract period.

17. Funding may not be used to repiace funding for a program already funded from another
source.

18. Notwithslanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

19. The Department reserves the right to recover any program funds no! used, in vyhole or In
part, for the purposes stated in this Agreement from the Contractor within one hundred and
twenty (120) days of the Completion Date.

20. Contractor will have forty-five (45) days from the end of each State Fiscal Year to submit to
the Department final Invoices for payment. Any adjustments made to a prior invoice will
need to be accompanied by supporting documentation. .
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Exhibit B-1

Exhibit B-1

PdSe t o( 1

BUDGET FORM

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

1  Bidder Name: The ftltenialli/e Lite Canlcr 1

1 Riif(nelRanite.t1 tor Peer fiuuport Ssrvlces
fWameorR^^p;

1  Budut Period: r/1/1«thiDunhN30/17
1  ■

600 >ER86nNEL COSTS
601 Salary a Waa«5 3t 1.700

602 Empiovee Raneru 29.181

603 'avroU taxes 23.64S

Subtotal

620 ^OFESSIONAL FEES

624 Accounlina 7.500

625 Audit Fees 6.100

.eoal Fees 30

627 Other Professional Fees and Cotmrltanls 0

Subbtai 16,630

630 sitAFF C>e\/eloPMent and training
631 Publications and Journals 0

632 if»-Sefvice Traininq 1.000

63!} Conierences and Converttlons 0

634 Other Staff Development 0

Subtotal 1.000

640 OCCUPANCY COSTS

641 Rent 57.ea8

642 Morloaoe Payments 0

643 Heating Costs . 0

644 Other UtBfbee 6.M0

645 Maintenance and Repairs KI60

Taxes 0

647 Other Oocuoar^ Costs 0

Subtotal 66.860

650 CONSUMABLE SUPPUES

65 \ Office 4,051

652 Bundlno/Hotnahoid 2,640

653 RehabilitationTTrainino 0

653 Pood S.792

Other Consumable Suoolles 0

Subtotal
Other Exoenaes

660 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

665 CAPITAL RESFRVE FUND

670 EQUIPMEfyi RENTAL 1.560

680 EQUIPMENT MAlNTcNANCE 0

700 ADVERTISING 300

710 PRINTING 0

720 TELEPHONE/COMMUNICATIONS 11.773

730 POSTAGEfSHlPPINQ v.eoo

subtotal 15.932

740 TRANSPORTADON
741 Board Members 0

742 Staff 12.3i9

743 Members end Pa/ticioants 21.042

Subtotal 34.271

750 Assistance to Individuals

U\ Client Scrvxxrs

752 Cloth'mq
Subtota

760 INSURANCE

762 Vehicles 8.491

763 ComrHehendvQ Prooerty & Liat^itv 5.015

800 OTHER EXPENDITURES 234

801 INTEREST EXPENSE 0

Subloial 13.740

[ " toTAl program expenses 523,276
H,iU
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EibUt B-2

Pags 1 of 1

BUDGETFORM

New Hempshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bidder Neoie: Tht AltcroAtiva Life Center

Budget Request tor:

Budget Period:

Peer Suppon Services

fWame ofRfP)

7/1/17 throunh 6/30/18

600 PERSONNEL COSTS
601 SalarvS Waaea 3lf>66
602 Emolovee Bvnefli 29.181

603 Pevtoil taxes 23.645

Subtotal 364.732

620 PROFESSIONAL FEES

624 Accountino 7.500

625 Audit Fees 6.100

628 Leaal Fees 30

627 Other Professional Fees and Consuftants 0

Subtotal 16,830

£ii sfAFFOi^fLOhMENTANOTRAlNINO
631 Publications and Jcumals 0

632 in«S«rvtce Trainina 1.000

833 Contorencosand ConventioAS 0

634 Olhei Staff Develooment 0

Subtotal 1.000

640 OCCUPANCY COSTS V.":!

641 Rent S7.666

642 Mcrlqage Pavmenta 0

(i43 Hea^ Costs 0

644 Other UtHities 6.640

045 Maintenanceand Repeirs 1.160

646 Taxes 0

647 Other Occuoartcv Costs 0

Subtotal e<.4«
650 CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES

651 Ofllce 4.051

652 BuRdtnofHouseboid i.bAO
653 RehebiiltationfTrBlnino 0

655 Food 5.79i
657 Other Cdnsumabie Supplies 0

Subtotal 12:463

Other Exoenses

660 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
665 DEPRECIATION

670 E0UIPMEN1 RENTAL t.560

660 EQUlPMEt4T MAINTENANCE 0

700 ADVERT! SING 300

7tO PftWTIfiG 0

720 TELEPHONE/COMMUNICATIONS 11.773
730 POSTAGE/SHIPPING 1,900

Subtotal 16.632

740 transportation
Ui Qotrd Members 0

>42 StBir 1Z329

Members and Particibants 5i.942
Subtotal 34jn

7&D Aasbtance to individuals

751 Client Services

752 Clothing

Sublota

760 INSURANCE

^62 Vehlctes 6.491
753 Comorehensive Procertv S Lnbilitv 5.6i^
ibb OTHER EXPENDITURES 234

601 INTEREST EXPENSE 0

Subloiat 13.740

YdTAL f>R6ortAM EXPENSES 5S3,276
Coftlraetef Inllalst
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that aft funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall bo used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Lows: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, potlcies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility delerminaticns shaQ be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by (he Department^ the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereurKler, which file shaO include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eHglbDlly determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. FairHoarfngs: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hercunder, as well as
indMduals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an apptication form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Oratultics or Ktcltbaeirs: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if It Is
determined that parents, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactfve Paymonts: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments wH) be made hereunder to retmburae the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no paymenb shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as etherise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the indrviduai Is e&glble for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nolhing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor In excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rale wtilch exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineliglblo Individuals or other third party
funders (or such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Departmenl shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other ttiird party funders. the Department may elect to:
7.t. Renegotiate the rates for payment hercunder, In which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any fijture payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shaH constitute en Event ofJD^fault hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligfcTlity o?lndividuatr?w services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who (s found by the Department to be IneHgible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIOENTIALITY:

S. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, tho Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the foiiov/ing records during the Contract Period:
6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other exper^es Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and v/hich are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kkid conldbutlons, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibirity (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate artd as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of sen/ices.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department v^thln 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance vrith the provision of
Office of Management arxi Budget Circular A'133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review. During the term of this Contract and the period for retcnticn hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabiiitlesrin addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any stale
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection the performance ofthe services and the Contract shad be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Departrriant regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public cfflclals requiring such Information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the adminislratjon of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exnibit C - Special Provisions Conlractot Initials '
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditians contained In
the Paragraph shaR survive the lenninalion of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1, Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-aDowable expenses incufred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other fnfgrmab'on as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rale of payment hereunder. Such Firanctal Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thlr^ (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives slated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon Ihe purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of Ihe Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of Ihe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shaD disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its dtecreticn. to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with Ihe State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Senrices.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distfibutSon or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all orighsd matetlals
produced, Including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any fadlllies
for providing services, the ContractorshaH comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shaH impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the sen/ices at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will proojre said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
concStlons of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall .
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Stale Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Ran (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of 5500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it vvii) majntain a current EEOP on tile and submit an EEOP Certificalion Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
"^ith Ihdn bU 6hi{itoyees, regardless of the a'mount of the award, the recipient v^lj provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit crganizatiortt, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certificatiori.Forms are available at; http'7Avww.ojp.usdoyabout/ocr/pdfs/ceft.pdf.

17. Limited Engtish Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, improving Access to
Services for persons vsdtii.Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on (he basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the CIvH
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enharicement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
foliowing shad apply to en contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currentty, S160.000)

CONTKACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISREBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract arni employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whlstiebtowr protections established at
41 U.3.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization''Acl for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing. In the predorrrfnanl language of the workforce,
of employee whisllebiow^ rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, Including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the stmplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenierKO.
but the Contractor shati retain the responsibility arvi accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
functIon(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibflitiss of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and tiie Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibiiities and how sanctions/revocation will be' managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - special Provlsfons Contractor InitieES f'"^
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Idenfifying all subcontractora. delegated functions and
responslbtfities, end when ttie eubconUactor'a pertormance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS ehel), at Its discrefion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas lor Improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
lake corrective action.

DERNITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following ternts shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal taws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Sen/ices.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean thatsection of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled TInandal Management Guidelines" and which contains the regufations governing the linandal
activities of contractor agencies v^lch have contracted with the Slate of NH to receive Ibnds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department ar>d containing a descripBon of the Sen/ices to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor In accordance wilh the terms and condifions of the Conliact and setting forth

total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor Is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder. shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exhibit 8 of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulatfons, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall be'deemed to mean ail such laws, regulations, etc. as
Ihey may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shad mean that documerit prepared by the NH Department of Admlnlstrath/e
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act NH RSACh 541-A. for the purpose of implemenUng State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

i"
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

T. bubparagraph 4~of"the GeneTil Provisions'^ fRis contract,'Conditional Nature~o7*Aflreemftnt. Is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hcroundcr, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal leglslalive or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or avaliablDty of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in vvhole or in part In no event shall the
Stale be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of e reduction, termination or modrficatlon of appropriated or available hmds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, If ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any cither source or account into the
Account(s) identified In blockT.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any'other
account. In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions oi this contract, Termination, Is amended by adding the
foQowing language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days afrer giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising Its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early tarmination, the Contractor shall, within IS days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the state a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Pfan Including, but r>ot limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
servlcfts unrif.r the Agreemer^t. me transltioned to having services delivered by another entfty
Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establlst^ a method of notifying clients and other affected indrviduats
about the transition. The Conbactor shall Include the proposed communications In its
Transltion^ Plan subrnttted to the State as described above.

3. The Departnient reserves the right tn renew the Contract for up to four additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance ot services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisiom to Gsneral Proviskins Contractor InHiaht
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified In Seclion 1.3 of the Genial Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1908 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12oftheGeneral Provisions execute the fotlovnng Certification:

alternative I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This cerlificalion is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
WorkplaceActof 1908 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1969 regutatrons v^ere amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). arxj require certincation by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees end sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certincation. .The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certincation shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmenL Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or wHI continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispersing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that wiii be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabFrtation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

g'lven a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condfticnof

emplcyment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; ar>d
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was virorklng, unless the Federal agency

sj 'ZA
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has desigr^ated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include tho
tderrtifteaiion numbor(s) of each affected grant;
13Kmg one ot tne roitov^ng actions, within 30 catendar dayTbfreceiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such ar^ employee, up b and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactoriy In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved tor such purposes by a Federal. Stale, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
fmplementatfon of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 1,3.1.4,1.5. and 1.6,

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the slte(s) for the performar\ce of woric done in
connection with the specific granL

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each tocalion)

Check ̂  if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name;

Date Name: ■ O

U-'£i
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYtNG

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public 1^ 101-121, Government wide Guidance for Nev* Resthtfions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Conlmclor's representative, as Identified in SecllorJs 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the follovving Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title fV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under TKIe IV-0
^Social Senrices Block Grant Program under Title XX

.•Medicald Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her icf)o\^edge and beM, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Memtser
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee ofa Member of Congress In
ccrviection with the awarding of any Federal contract, conlinuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (arvj by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than F^eral appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Ifjfluend^ng or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an oFffcer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memt)er of Congress in corvieclior with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreefnenl (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LL1-, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its inslruclions. attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for su!>awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans,.afKJ cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify arxJ disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when tWs transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than S100.000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name;

U  /.LX, R .
Date

™r
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contradof ider^ltfled in Section 1.3 of the General f^ovisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment,
Suspension, and Other Responslbifity Matters, and furtiier agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 ofthe General Provisions execute the followino
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and sut>mlltlr>g this proposal (contract), the prospective prin^ary participant is providing the

certirication set out t>elow.

2. The lr»bl(ity of a person to proNnde theceflification required below v/ffl n(^ necessarily result In denial
of parUdpallon in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it canr>ot provide the certlRcatlon. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certfflcah'on or an explanation shall disqualify such person from parilcipalion in
this tmnsact'on.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Inio this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to <Aher remedies
availatile to the Federal Government, DHHS rrvay terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
v4iom tNs proposal (contract) Is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction,' "debarred." "suspended." "Ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction," "partjclpent," "person," "primary covered transaction,* "principal," "proposal," and
"vcrfuntarily excluded," es used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementirg Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.. See the
attached definitiGns.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, shotid tho
proposed covered transaction be entered Into, it shad not kno<^ngly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared IneliglWe, or voluntarlJy excluded
from parlidpaljon tn this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled Xertlflcatton Regarding Deborment, Suspension. Inetigiblity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in aD solicitations fa lower tier covemd transactions.

6. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, a involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method end frequency by which It determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement list (of excluded parties).

9. f^fothrng contained h the faegoing shall be construed to require eslabOshment of a system of records
In ada to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The Krtowtedge ar>d

Exhlbil F - Ceni/icaSon Reesnfing DcbannenU Suspeniiion ConlrartOf InSiAls
And Otnor RasponsibBily Metiers ... j <
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Exhibit F

Information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normai/y possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinal course of business dealings.

to. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant celiftes to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared inerigibie, or

voluntarily excluded from covered trans^ons by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a Ihree.year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rcrxtercd against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Stale antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, thefi, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

113. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or cIvlHy charged by a governmental entity
(FederaJ, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b}
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a throe-year period preceding this appllcatlon/propcsal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) termir^ated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certificalion, su^ prospective participant shaO attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospeclive lower lierparticipanl, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the t>e$t of its knowledge and belief that It and hs principals;
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily exclc^ed from participabon in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective tower tier particlpani is unable to certfy to any of the at)ove, such

prospective partidpant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier parfcipanl further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) lhal it will
indude this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name;

LLc-
S'-) I- \C

Date ^ Name; 5 1
Title; '<

ExhiWt F - CcrtiflcaHon Regarding Oebarmeni, Suspmsion ConlracJor lr\Uial3 4,i
And Olher ResponsiblTity Matters
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7^'

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRJMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORQANgATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the toUowing
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimlriation requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibua Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipierrts of federal fimding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the deBvery of services, or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civfl rights obUgalions of Ihe Sate Streets Act. Recipierrts of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from rfiscriminating, either in employment practices or in Ihe delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Ad of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 20C0d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohiWIs recipients of Federal finar>clal
assislance from discrimlnatjng on the basts of dtsabilhy, In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, In any program or activity:

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
, discrimination and ensures equal opportunity.for persons with disabilities In employment. Stale and local
government services, public accommodatiqiv, commercial faculties, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of1972 {20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrlminatjon on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrfminaticn Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basb of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It docs not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrim'nation; Equal Employrnent Opportunity; Policies
ond Procedures): Executive Order No. 1327S (equal protection of the laws for faith-based end community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles ond policy-making
Criteria lor partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organlzaticns); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 end The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 {Pub. L 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which prefects employees against
reprteal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material represerrtation of fact upon which reliance Is placed vrfien the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termirwtion of grants, or government wtde suspension or
debarmcnt.

CtAAcnan Bl Co.TipliMCM wauiic^jnawfci
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
(fiscnmlnation after a due process tearing on the grounds of race, color, reiigton, natkinal origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or drvtslon within the Department of Health and Human Services, aiW
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Omtiudsman.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foltowing
certification:

1. 8y signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Date Name; /
Title:

ExNbhG
Contractor inWate ^

C«rti^MonolCenp'iW<M mU ■•tfartmOs pnbifKig toFctfftMNMWKnNntken. Eo**' TxiomMoTma BniM Ogjiilutoni
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also knovm as the Pro-GNWren Act of 1994
(Act), requires thai smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for ttte provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16, if the services are funded by Federal programs eilher
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facsh'ties funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Conlrador's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contracl, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to compfy
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, krKwn as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

3"-nic

Contractor Name:

Dale Name: •

Title: ^

tnhlM H - Cenilicatioft Regarding Contiacior Iniitab .
Envirnnmenlel Toboccn Smohe
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit 1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portat)tlity and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set "shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section.164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TltleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Starxtards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Paris 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k- "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health /
Information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

S'ZOH Exhibil I ContoaclOf Initials 4 /?
Meattft Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement ^ , .
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N«w Hampshtre Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit I

i  'Required bv Law' shall have the same n^aning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretarv* shall mean the Secretary of the Ctepartment of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherat)le to ur^uthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from lime to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business/Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PH) will t:>e confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed lo the third parly; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
/\ssociale, in accordarKe with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, lo the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Assodate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects lo such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshiro Department of HcaKh and Human Services

Exhibit I

Assodale shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be t)ound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
llmKed to:

o The r^ture and extent of the protected health infonnatlon involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identirication;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 ExNbkl CoofraetOf WUals ^
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall t>e governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) twsiness days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
''amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

). Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associke shall make available
to Covered Entily such information as Covered Entity may inquire to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If retum or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeaslble, for so long as Business

3^2014 Exl^ I Conlfoclw Initials
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Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Assodate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shad certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQatiohs of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or lim{tatlon(s} In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Assodate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate (he Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specific by Covered Entity. If Covered 'Entity
determines that neither termir^tion nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the char)ges in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 ExhiWK CooVacU* Initials
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and corKJitions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

TheState '

Signature of Authorized Representative

ifCAr\o^ S -f—yX
Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Name of the Contractor

fl ytlLn-^
Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 Eichibil I
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CERTIFICATtON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AMD TRAHSPAREMCY
ACT (FFATA^ COMf>LIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Trartsparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010. to reporton
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is sut^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the followir>g information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier erf the entity (DUNS <f)
10. Total compensation and i^dn>e$ of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109^282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as idontined in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below r\amed Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Frnanclaf Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

>-3l-

Date Name:

/ Vc/'ii' VcTo t-
Tltle:

CxWbil J - Certiticaiion Regaroing the Federal Functng Contractor livtials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: y ^7

2. In your business or organization's precedlr^g completed rises) year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3, Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the followrng:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:,

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

CUOMHS/MOnj
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